ICHEA
HUITONGDA

@ ZRERIDBIRAE
HUITONGDA NETWORK CO., LTD.

(RREARHEMERMRIINRBERATE)
(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

B%{931X5% Stock Code : 9878

2 0 2 1 fNilEilUAL REPORT




H # Contents

2 NEER Corporate Information
5 B Definitions
8 MBHEREERE Financial Summary and Operation Highlights
9 EERNE Chairman’s Statement
17 EEEFREST Management Discussion and Analysis
29 B EERaMEEAEB Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
43 EEeRs Report of the Directors
70 TEERWME Corporate Governance Report
94 B ZEENSREE Independent Auditor’s Report
102 mEBERK Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
103 FeiEm REM R ERRE Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
104 FaUBRRER Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
107 IREEREER Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
109 FEBRERER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
111 g EEyiiksd Notes to the Financial Statements
246 MEIREHE Four-Year Financial Summary



2 EBERERGERAR
Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

NEER

Corporate Information

EEw THE BOARD

EERRIPTES Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director

pagcAcibtas Mr. WANG Jianguo

HITES Executive Directors

wEBRE (BFENTE) Mr. XU Xiuxian (CEOQ)

MR A Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng

FEPTES (TEFEESER) Non-executive Directors (excluding the Chairman of the
Board)

FlExaE Mr. WANG Jian

B EE Mr. CAl Zhonggiu

T E Mr. WANG Yi

BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

Bl E Mr. LIU Xiangdong

BrEkE Mr. CHENG Zichuan

=y Chte Mr. HUANG Shun

B EES AUDIT COMMITTEE

HIEEE (FF) Mr. HUANG Shun (Chairman)

TEELE Mr. WANG Yi

2R~ Mr. LIU Xiangdong

FMEEREZER REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

BRI E (EFF) Mr. LIU Xiangdong (Chairman)

REERE Mr. XU Xiuxian

HIBL & Mr. HUANG Shun

RELZE® NOMINATION COMMITTEE

BrEEE (FF) Mr. CHENG Zichuan (Chairman)

ToiaE Mr. WANG Yi

BIm R L E Mr. LIU Xiangdong

BHREZE® STRATEGY COMMITTEE

TEBSEAE (EFF) Mr. WANG Jianguo (Chairman)

REBERE Mr. XU Xiuxian

TEaE Mr. WANG Yi



Exg

FEERLE (EF)
FREELE
EEERLE

BELRWE
EHL L
EB&Tt
BREAXR
ERE L
BEBRLT
BB

2SR BB
HEEFTED

TA B 75 B R /= A6k £51) TS A

BE
FRERIEITIE105R
KFRESE

AR EERAS

+

AR

Z R $E B H 50 5%
ERERE

ERTEERME

&5
EREKER2485%
K& m 04012

M B RS R B

“B=—%5H 4

Annual Report 2021

NEER

Corporate Information

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Mr. WANG Xinghua (Chairman)
Mr. LI Wei
Mr. Mao Yijun

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. TANG Min
Ms. AU Wai Ching

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WANG Jianguo
Ms. AU Wai Ching

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8/F, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEADQUARTERS

Huitongda Building

50 Zhongling Street, Xuanwu District
Nanjing

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
248 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong



4 EEERKRNERAT
Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

NEER

Corporate Information

EERER LEGAL ADVISORS
ERLEREEER: Hong Kong and United States laws:
SRR E BT Clifford Chance
Ee 27/F, Jardine House
FREEREI5 157 One Connaught Place
aMARE271E Hong Kong
REEE PRC laws:
Bl & ARAD (R ) FT5FT Grandall Law Firm (Nanjing)
AR 7th-8th Floor, Building B, No.309 Hanzhong Gate Avenue,
P Nanjing
EHPPIRES0995BAET-812 China
ERER COMPLIANCE ADVISOR
ERMERRLR Altus Capital Limited
B 21 Wing Wo Street
IR Central
KA 2155 Hong Kong
HER BRI IBEERLE H SHARE REGISTRAR
BERRREFSELARAA Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
BB Shops 1712-1716
B E2ERBR1835% 17/F, Hopewell Centre
AP LTIE 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai
1712-17165% 48 Hong Kong
FEFRERT PRINCIPAL BANKER
B TR TR R I PR 1T Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Nanjing Shanxi Road
Sub-branch
PEEREER No. 143, Zhongshan North Road
ML EB& 14358 Gulou District
Nanjing
PRC
&g adiA STOCK CODE
9878 9878
AT COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.htd.cn www.htd.cn



SR -EER 5
Annual Report 2021

Bx

Definitions

RAFRT - BXESEMEIN > THRAZAEFGATERSE
In this annual report, the following terms shall have the following meanings, except otherwise stated:

[FTEEEAHEH] & MEEE (FE)@ERMAERAGR  ARFMNEERER 2 —
“Alibaba China” Alibaba (China) Network Technology Co., Ltd., one of the Company’s

substantial shareholder

NGRS i RARMARER  LARHER] BT
“Articles of Association” the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended, modified or

supplemented from time to time

(BT EEE ] i EFEeEEES

“Audit Committee” the Audit Committee of the Board

[E=g] i RAREEE

“Board” the board of Directors of the Company

[EEFg ] i RARIEES

“Board of Supervisors” the board of supervisors of our Company

g R<PAl] i AR B SR+ O AT E Y (R 2 B RSF A

“CG Code” Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

[ i REAREME - BREARXEMES - TRESEE  RFIENTHRR R & EE

“China” or “PRC” the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this announcement,
excluding Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
region

[ARR7A] i EREAERNHABRAR - REFEDEEN2010F12 A6 ARIH —RKHBER
NG|

“Company” Huitongda Network Co., Ltd. (E#@EMEEKMDBER AR, a joint stock

company with limited liabilities established under the laws of the PRC on
December 6, 2010

=3 i KRBIES

“Directors” the Directors of the Company

[ H | i RARREMERGR (RAXEME - AR REEA KA EKHERA])
“Group” our Company and its Subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of

its Subsidiaries, as the context may require)

[HA% ] i RARRAEHEREBEARKE1.007THIRI ETINER - ABTRBEREELR
BB LT
“H Share(s)” overseas listed foreign Shares in the share capital of our Company with

nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and traded in HK
dollars and are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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Definitions

[t
“HK dollars” or “HK$”

[&%]
“Hong Kong”

[ BB A
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[ B B 75 i 5 £ A

“IFRS”

[ R ERRAITT A

“Latest Practicable Date”

(=ia=Eil
“Listing Date”

[ i8]
“Listing Rules”

[1Z2E=F Al ]
“Model Code”

[REZE®]

“Nomination Committee”

[FMEZZEEE
“Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee”

[ 5
“Reporting Period”

BERETERET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

PEEERFRIITE R
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

BEEMARSHAARRAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

ERISHE LR - BEEESTENBREESHEMEDN  BTRRE - REK
gt EAIZEgRMNEE e ER LR

International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards,
amendments and interpretations promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the International Accounting Standards
and Interpretation issued by the International Accounting Standards
Committee

2022F4 H21 8 » BINARFRTIEZ ATHEE LR &G A TERNREZERAT
HE

April 21, 2022, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this annual report for ascertaining certain information contained herein

HEIRR BB e AMBEEN R - B12022F2 8188 (28F)
Friday, February 18, 2022, on which dealings in our H Shares first commence
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

EHEMERZHMERARES ETHRA (BRRER] - #sA BT E)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time)

AR BN SR ATE E BT ABEFHETE R HHFRLETE
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

EEERARET

the Nomination Committee of the Board
EFTCHMNEEZREES

the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of the Board

HZE2021F12A31ALLFE
the year ended December 31, 2021
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“RMB”

[EEe ]

=

“SFC”
[ &7 RS D]

“SFO”

[ &5 |
“Share(s)”

[ A%
“Shareholder(s)”

[BREZEe ]

“Strategy Committee”

il
“Subsidiary(ies)

[E%]

“Supervisor(s)”

[%]
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REVETEEBARE
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARRSMHESEHERRES

Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

EAEPIEST1ECEFRPE RN (ETRHERT » #F s AR 7T &)
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

AARRAREREEARE1.007TH T B
ordinary shares in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each

RRAFRR
the shareholder(s) of the Company

EECHKEEY
the Strategy Committee of the Board

BBBEBEDI2622F R AMEGI S 15 6P T %A RE
has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 15 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

RAFEFEEKE
member(s) of the Board of Supervisors of the Company

Anth
per cent
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Financial Summary and Operation Highlights

MERE FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,
20214 20204 20194 20184
2021 2020 2019 2018
ARBTR ARETT AREBTT ARETET
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 65,763,174 49,629,135 43,633,230 29,801,661
Heb o REEBREUKA  Including: revenue from service
business 437,814 242,722 55,448 25,264
EF Gross profit 1,867,966 1,344,511 1,279,088 1,006,984
LR Profit from operations 638,689 406,759 334,205 207,085
FRNEE Loss for the year (177,049)  (279,992)  (304,823) (275,613)
AR AIEHEREE AE(EEIE  Loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company (349,881)  (405,287) (415,333)  (295,749)
BRI EREERFTE ©  Non-IFRS measures:
KCAEFERE (ReEEEET)  Adjusted net profit (unaudited) 500,441 322,148 249,494 124,287
KARKRNRIBEAEREG A Adjusted net profit attributable to
FEMEFRE CREEET) equity shareholders of the Company
(unaudited) 327,609 196,853 138,985 104,151
wES) (), Net cash (used in)/generated from
TSR e 558 operating activities 815,009 472,263 613,936 (539,622)
BERTR Total assets 25,598,011 21,695,331 19,142,817 15,519,484
BEEZY OPERATING METRICS
HZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,
20214 20204 20194 20184
2021 2020 2019 2018
e BIEEE Total number of registered member
stores 169,466 140,481 125,885 104,598
TR BB Number of active member stores 62,203 32,715 34,225 34,968
ERREAERF Number of active wholesaler customers 16,756 18,807 19,425 12,955
SaaS+:] B AP 22 Total number of SaaS+ subscription
users 102,047 62,054 59,418 68,374
Hr : (f#&SaaS+AP Including: paid SaaS+ users 17,905 2,571 4,156 2,547
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders:

I would like to express my gratitude to all of you for your
continuous trust and support to the Group. 2021 was an
extraordinary year. In the macro picture, we are facing multiple
pressures including severe COVID-19 pandemic, continuous
economic downturn, and obvious local and regional turbulence. In
the micro environment, the industry was going through pains, the
consumer Internet has been fading out, and the industrial Internet
are rising to prominence. While at this time, Huitongda underwent
the greatest battle since its establishment — listing in Hong Kong.
We firmly grasped the general guideline of making progress while
maintaining stability, focused on the core strategy, which are
demonstrated as continue to deepen and strengthen the supply
chain, and push forward the construction of member stores to
build a self-driven organization, achieving gratifying achievements
in this extraordinary year.
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CIEERERA - ROFERTE SRRl - BEIRH
fESEFRAERREI -EXMER HEBETEM
BELEEHN  EKESRE  ZBHTHEAREX
RB|PESRITERLEREERTEBEAIE AR
NegEERHTETSMAE  SREROHEBRER -

BPFAR L+ G THBRENTR - BEHEREE S
BER - EHENNIEE - BEEENNET - BB
HWipg BEAERIE 2 THhRBUSIHE REMRETT -

ERHBERE  EKBEERS - ZBEHHE - AFW
ERERARBETERNNE  RMERBESEE
BEXZESHTRE2REDERNBY - SR
BEUMEGEEHHF LRI THERNEE -
EHEHRMNTIERRERES TRIFMNB N - 20215 -
EAERZESaaS+EMNERERENARIES @ M
ZHERHPAREDL T DA ©

During the Reporting Period, we continued to extend our industrial
chain by collaborating with top up-stream partners in the
industry. We have reached strategic cooperation with a number
of leading brands in sectors such as the household appliances,
consumer electronics, agricultural means of production, liquor and
beverages, and vehicles and auto parts merchandise, providing
high-quality and efficient supply chain products to our member
stores in lower tier market.

We have adopted an integrated mode of online + offline to help
rural member stores in achieving sales performance improvement
during the epidemic through the building of supply chain capacity,
the cultivation of marketing capacity and the improvement of
management capacity.

We regard difficulties as a path to self-development and
challenges as opportunities. During the epidemic, people’s
lifestyles have changed greatly; and we found that the demand
for online trading scenarios in rural member stores increased
significantly, which in turn prompted these rural member stores
to burst out great enthusiasm for digital construction, and has
effectively driven the growth of our core business. In 2021,
the number of member stores using our SaaS+ products has
increased significantly, and the resulting revenue growth was
remarkable.
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Chairman’s Statement

We were successfully listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in Feb, 2022, which is the starting point of our new development
phase. Therefore, we have established the guideline for 2022
as “Year of Quality” with the policy of “Maintaining Growth and
Improving Quality”. We will enhance the quality of our supply chain
by improving gross profit margin and strengthening cooperation
with top brands, helping our member stores to improve their
operational capabilities, providing SaaS+ services to enhance
the quality and viscosity of our member stores, continuing to
enhance our management capabilities, paying more attention to
the construction of a talent pipeline, continuing to reduce costs
and increase efficiency, and ensuring the implementation of our
strategies to create more value for our Shareholders.

| am pleased to present to Shareholders the financial performance
and operational highlights of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2021, a review of business development throughout
2021, and an overview of the Company’s strategy and outlook for
2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Business Review

The year of 2021 was a year full of challenges and changes.
Faced with the recurrence of the pandemic nationwide, the
intensified competition in the industry, the subdued market
consumption, etc., the Company adhered to the original aspiration
of “creating a better life for rural people” and has been committed
to empowering and serving small enterprise customers in the
retail industry of the lower-tier market. Through the continuous
improvement of supply chain capabilities, the continuous
development and in-depth operation of downstream customers
and the effective enhancement of our management skills, the
Company has achieved remarkable operating results in all
aspects.

In 2021, the Company recorded total revenue of RMB65.76 billion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 32.5%; our adjusted net
profit (non-IFRS measure) attributable to shareholders amounted
to RMB327.61 million, representing a year-on-year growth of
66.4%. Our operating efficiency continues to improve, with
inventory turnover days of 14 days, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 6 days.

11
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20215 HFEBEBR RN ETEPIEBMK -

—FHHEER - —FINRERY  EhREES
BTEMENRE  BETHFESETEMEN
RRBIERARTE - BEREHR - AR Rl

ETEMEAR169,466K  ALIEK20.6% &
HEReETEFE62,203%  AHIER0.2% :
SaaS+:]HIAF#2102,047% @ A IEK64.3% °

&t&lv?%ﬁ&ﬂﬁ)?ﬁuzi ‘G BTEME  RERRA
HEEZEED  QFEEL Téﬁi%% 1’E?ﬁa’1
A1E - BH=E &iﬁﬂi’ﬁ ERREAERPRAE
16,756 °

RXBEXKLH -

EERRAIRLERMRZ —  MEPAXRSEBHIR
BERETRHEERAARE52.3 T RLER

32.3% °

20214F » A R FHAR TR THE (L FE 58 % PR BE T 1 R O
N REMANEEZEMERHERESRNE R
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EHOMEER R - fln  SCEIBENER - &
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il
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RAEGETEMEEY  2FHAM2085KE
RIHEY  BEEET ’%F'EJJE%(EZ%%@%% CHERE

E%%F‘?Ei IAEHIG - BONRA T EETER]
R 5 R RE MBI -

In 2021, we continued to push forward the strategy of empowering
our member store through developing our new stores and
providing our extensive services. While expanding our incremental
member stores, we also intensified the activation and penetration
of our existing member stores. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, our total accumulated registered member stores reached
169,466, representing a year-on-year increase of 20.6%; the
number of our active member stores was 62,203, representing a
year-on-year increase of 90.2%; the total number of our SaaS+
subscription users arrived at 102,047, representing a year-on-year
increase of 64.3%.

In addition, in order to effectively expand and operate our member
stores and strengthen our supply chain bargaining power, we also
optimized our cooperation with channel partners. As of the end
of the Reporting Period, our total active channel partners were
16,756.

In respect of our commerce business:

As one of our core business layouts, the overall sales revenue
from our commerce business achieved RMB65.23 billion during
the Reporting Period, representing a year-on-year increase of
32.3%.

In 2021,
empowering supply chain and creating synergies so as to provide

the Company continued to improve the capabilities in

our member stores with more stable and high-efficient solutions
for trading of merchandise. On the one hand, we continued to
increase our efforts to connect and cooperate with upstream
premium brand manufacturers and continuously provided our
member stores with various merchandise with competitive
advantages by focusing on merchandise categories that are
closely related to the production and lives of rural people, such as
consumer electronic products including Apple and Dell; household
appliance including ACA and Corning; and liquor brands
including Wuliangye and Guizhou Chun, etc. As of the end of the
Reporting Period, we have formed partnership with nearly one
thousand premium upstream brand manufacturers. On the other
hand, we continued to focus on our customer-centric strategy, by
providing one-stop services to our member stores. We organized
a total of over 20 major promotion activities covering over 20,000
member stores throughout the year and over 40,000 trainings for
our member stores, which effectively enhanced the engagement
and stickiness of our member stores.
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Chairman’s Statement

In order to improve the delivery efficiency of our supply chain, the
Company continued to strengthen the construction of our supply
chain infrastructures: proactively developing our industry-wide
customized system, launching the proprietary industry channels,
and effectively empowering businesses of various industries by
assisting customers in their business expansion, for example,
the customization of the OTC business whole-process system
for Apple, the online operation of various industry channels
such as Liquor Hotch-potch (VEH{[E); meanwhile, we also
managed to provide diverse and flexible logistic solutions such
as direct delivery from manufacturers, three-stage logistics and
self-delivery, which fit in with differential and diversified trading
scenarios in the lower-tier market.

In addition, in order to meet the diversified needs of our member
stores for merchandise, we also further strengthened the
consolidation of our online marketplace platform with a full-year
GMV of approximately RMB280 million during the Reporting
Period.

In respect of our service business:

During the Reporting Period, revenue from service business which
is another core business segment of the Company, reached
RMB437.81 million as a whole, representing a year-on-year
increase of 80.4%.

In 2021, the Company further deepened the implementation of
the SaaS+ business strategy. As for the products, we have further
enhanced the three core functions of SaaS+ products, namely
“Help to Sale”, “Help to purchase” and “Help to Manage”, and
provided member stores with marketing services that perfectly
suit their needs through increasing investment in research and
development of SaaS+ products. At the same time, we have
also strengthened the data analysis function of the platform, and
launched functions such as smart recommendation and collecting
orders and reverse purchase, which facilitated convenient
purchase for our member stores. To better monetize our products,
on top of piloting the multi-channel sales model, we have also
increased marketing efforts in SaaS+ products promotion;
in response to differentiated customer needs, we have also
stratified products and customers to rapidly expand incremental
subscribers, and effectively improved the retention rate of existing
users.

During the Reporting Period, the number of SaaS+ paid member
store users reached 17,905, representing a year-on-year increase
of 588.5%; revenue from subscription service was approximately
RMB280 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 133.8%.

13
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In addition, in order to meet the diverse digital transformation
needs from downstream customers, we have adjusted the product
and delivery strategy of merchant solution services, upgraded
the product system centered on s2b2c and DSP marketing, and
acquired technical capabilities rapidly and improved product
delivery capabilities through resource integration, which facilitated
quick penetration into relevant market. During the Reporting
Period, the merchant solutions business achieved revenue of
approximately RMB160 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 28.9%.

In respect of construction of our digitalized infrastructures:

In 2021, the Company continued to consolidate the digitalized
infrastructures and increase investment in research and
development of technology. The “Cloud Field Special Project”,
which is being promoted as a key project, has successfully
completed and delivery for use. Focusing on the online
closed loop of procurement and transaction processes, its
12 functions have been fully realized, which guarantees the
closed loop of online transactions in all scenarios and the full
life cycle management of customers. In terms of improving
internal management efficiency, through building an online and
digital operation management and control system, as well as a
comprehensive risk assessment system for controllable assets, we
strengthened risk management abilities and therefore promoted
high-quality business development.

In respect of our organization and team building:

In 2021, the Company has always been adhering to the concept
of “people-oriented” for development, and made innovations
and fissions in the organization. The five business units of the
headquarters had been incubated into numerous small operating
units, driving the self-growth and self-breakthrough of the
business entities, and greatly enhancing the team’s business
awareness and operating capacity. We also continued to create
an internal competition mechanism and atmosphere for different
business entities.

As for talent and cadre training, we have held various special
training camps for professional talents to promote mutual sharing,
learning and communication; meanwhile, we have formulated
various theme training courses for management personnel,
indicating that middle-level cadres had grown rapidly and created
its organized force for the next decade.
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In respect of our corporate influence:

In 2021, our corporate influence continued to rise. The Company
was invited to participate in the special meetings organized by
a number of central and provincial ministries and commissions.
The Company also hosted and co-organized a number of
industrial summits, which further enhanced its influence in the
industry. In 2021, we have also won 12 national-level honors and
6 special projects of provincial-level honors, including China’s
Top 500 Enterprises, China’'s Top 500 Private Enterprises,
China’s Top 10 Industrial Internet Companies, China’'s Top 100
Internet Companies in Comprehensive Strength, China’s Unicorn
Enterprises, etc.

Business Outlook

The year of 2022 is the first year since the listing of the
Company. Facing complex and changeable domestic and
foreign environment and the impact of the repeated epidemics,
we will keep following the principles of “Run with the Dream”,
“People-oriented” and “Begin with the End”, and closely focus
on the goal of “guaranteeing growth and improving quality”, and
promote the following key tasks:

1. To focus on the diversified needs of customers, accelerate
the improvement of supply chain capabilities, and speed
up the transformation from decentralized supply chains
to headquarters supply chains. On the one hand, we will
continue to develop and strengthen the scale and depth of
cooperation with leading brand manufacturers in various
industries; on the other hand, we will enhance our own supply
chain capabilities through brand authorization, product
customization and joint ventures.

2. To continually deepen the strategy of member stores,
speed up the network layout of member stores and improve
operational capabilities. Through the upgrade of store image
and digitalized reconstruction of high-quality member stores,
the operating capacity of member stores and the stickiness
of our transactions have been improved; at the same time,
the extension and ability improvement of the customer
manager team will promote the expansion of member stores
in barren areas and improve the service quality.

15
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3. To increase investment in IT infrastructure, speed up
digitalized construction, improve the big data analysis
capabilities of platform and execution efficiency of
transaction system, and optimize the functions and risk
control systems of SaaS products, so as to improve the
operational efficiency of customers at each side of the link
and reduce operational costs.

4. To accelerate the construction of warehousing and logistic
distribution system, continuously upgrade its digitalized
infrastructure, integrate the socialized resources of
warehousing and logistics, establish a warehouse and
distribution system over the cloud, and build a unified
national warehousing and logistics system solution, so as to
provide customers with standardized, specialized, efficient
logistics and delivery experience.

5. To promote the continuous upgrading of organizational
construction and stimulate business vitality, as well as
increase the introduction and training of professional talents,
and optimize the personnel structure of the professional
business section; continue to innovate the team mechanism
to stimulate the potential and innovation of all employees;
continue to build a learning organization, create a
horseracing atmosphere and a culture filled with reflection
and review, and form a high goal-oriented team with high
execution and high innovation.

Our mission requires responsibility, and hard work shapes our
future. In the future, we will persevere and insist on our original
intention. In 2022, with the public offering in Hong Kong, we are
striving to become a public company of rapid growth, high quality
and great value with a new identity, a new look, a new attitude,
and a new start.

Finally, on behalf the Board of the Company, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all the shareholders for their
support to the Company and all the colleagues for their hard work
and dedication over the past year.

Chairman
Mr. WANG Jianguo



SR -EER
Annual Report 2021

BERENWED

Management Discussion and Analysis

WA

SERNREAEMNEEHES B RE e S
EOEBBEE URESEENRBEEXTNHE
F o REBWAE2020FH AR 49,629 1HETT
HR32.5%E2021FHW AR5 763.28&7L e
F#5112021 F K 20204F 2 5 F= AR B A0 AR 75 751k
RWABE B ERLEESH DL ¢

1 XBEBRSE

Revenue

Benefiting from the fast expansion of our sales network, the
increasingly enhanced strategic cooperation with the upstream
brand owners and the improved service penetration rate of
our member stores, our revenue increased by 32.5% from
RMB49,629.1 million in 2020 to RMB65,763.2 million in 2021. The
following table sets out our revenue of commerce business and
service business in absolute amount for 2021 and 2020 and the
year-on-year change:

1. Commerce Business

BZ12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR AREE [ b
Year-on-year
RMB RMB change

(AFRTARBE  BOLEKRM)
(RMB’ 000, except for percentage)

RS EBIRR : Commerce business:

BEXEK Direct sales 65,222,853 49,299,968 32.3%
HEBEfEM Consumer electronics 27,047,792 17,371,629 55.7%
BEAEEH Agricultural means of production 13,741,365 10,937,047 25.6%
KAERS Household appliances 12,212,346 12,173,644 0.3%
RHIT Vehicles and auto parts

merchandise 7,266,108 5,414,057 34.2%

KIEEM Homebuilding and renovation
materials 3,308,393 2,501,784 32.2%
NiWIN-/¢ = Liquor and beverages 1,348,200 756,126 78.3%
EHmo Others™ 298,649 145,681 105.0%
ERBEER Online marketplace 2,760 2,032 35.8%
RBEBIRBATT Total for commerce business 65,225,613 49,302,000 32.3%
(1) HEMFrEaEgBIREm - (1) Others mainly include various fast-moving consumer

goods.
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2. REEBIRE

Our revenue from the direct sales of the Group grew by 32.3%
from RMB49,299.968 million in 2020 to RMB65,222.9 million
in 2021, which mainly covered six major industries, namely
consumer electronics, agricultural means of production, household
appliances, vehicles and auto parts merchandise, homebuilding
and renovation materials, and liquor and beverages. Revenue
from the direct sales experienced rapid growth. In particular,
our revenue from consumer electronics, vehicles and auto parts
merchandise, homebuilding and renovation materials, and liquor
and beverages witnessed a rapid growth.

The Group has rapidly expanded our business in communications
products and entered strategic cooperation with top brands in the
industry, resulting in a 55.7% increase in revenue from sales of
consumer electronics compared to the same period of 2020; the
Group has increased efforts in sales of auto parts and vehicles,
resulting in a 34.2% increase in revenue from vehicles and auto
parts merchandise compared to the same period of 2020; thanks
to the rapid growth of the sales volume of glass and cables, our
revenue from sales of homebuilding and renovation materials
grew by 32.2%; as the domestic maotai-flavour liquor industry
was on the rise, the Group focused on expanding the channel for
maotai-flavour liquor and enriched the product offerings, and in
turn, the revenue of the Group from sales of liquor and beverages
grew by 78.3%.

To meet the diversified merchandise demand of member stores,
we further strengthened investment in online marketplace platform
in 2021, and achieved a year-on-year increase of 35.8% in
business revenue.

2. Service Business

BZ12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 2020%F
2021 2020
ARY AREE A bt 2 &)
Year-on-year
RMB RMB change

(A FRTARYEE > BDLLERIM)
(RMB’ 000, except for percentage)

RIS ER AR Service Business:
P95 SaaS+5] SaaS+ subscription 278,405 119,087 133.8%
[EEN: S PIES Merchant solutions 159,409 123,635 28.9%
B 3% £ AR SR A 5 Total for Service Business 437,814 242722 80.4%
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HEREHERX

The revenue from the service business of the Group mainly
included revenue from two segments, namely the SaaS+
subscription and merchant solutions, both with significant
growth. The rapid growth of revenue from the service
business was mainly attributable to (i) the increased efforts
of the Group in research and development and marketing;
and (ii) further classify our product category and customer
demand, the enhanced training for customer managers and
the improved service effectiveness of our member stores.

Cost of Revenue, Gross Profit and Gross Margin

The cost of revenue of the Group increased by 32.3% from
RMB48,284.6 million in 2020 to RMB63,895.2 million in 2021, and
our gross profit increased by 38.9% from RMB1,344.5 million
in 2020 to RMB1,868.0 million in 2021. The growth of the cost
of revenue and gross profit of the Group was mainly due to the
growth of our revenue.

The gross margin of the Group increased from 2.7% in 2020 to
2.8% in 2021, mainly due to the increase in revenue contribution
from the service business. While maintaining the stable gross
margin, the Group achieved an overall similar gross margin in
the direct sales under the commerce business to that in 2020, by
implementing the strategy of fast expanding new brands and new
regions and benefiting the market and customers.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,
20215 2020%
2021 2020
AR® 1A% ARE ELON Elids
Asa As a

percentage of percentage of  Year-on-year
RMB  revenue (%) RMB revenue (%) change

(A F st BRI
(In thousands, except for percentage)

HERTHEAS Selling and marketing expenses

864,241 1.3% 609,585 1.2% 41.8%
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Our selling and marketing expenses primarily consist of employee
salaries, business advertising expenses, promotion service fee
and storage fees. Our selling and marketing expenses increased
by 41.8% from RMB609.6 million in 2020 to RMB864.2 million
in 2021, primarily due to (i) an increase in employee salaries
compared to that in 2020, which was due to social insurance relief
from the relevant government authorities in 2020 and the increase
in the average salary per employee; (ii) an increase in business
advertising expenses as a result of our business expansion;
and (iii) an increase in promotion service fee, resulting from our
enhanced promotions efforts through third-party online platforms
that we cooperate with.

As the Group increased investment in marketing activities to
increase our customers’ engagement and stickiness during
the Reporting Period, our selling and marketing expenses as a
percentage of revenue slightly increased from 1.2% in 2020 to
1.3% in 2021.

THRHEMKERX Administrative and Other Operating Expenses
BZ12B31HLEE
Year ended December 31,
20215 20205
2021 2020
AR® EBA% ARE ELONS Blg=E)
Asa As a
percentage of percentage of  Year-on-year
RMB  revenue (%) RMB revenue (%) change
(UF st BRHERM)
(In thousands, except for percentage)
THREMSERT Administrative and other operating
expenses 478,961 0.7% 415,033 0.8% 15.4%

THREMEERTA2020EMARE415.08 8
TLHEAN15.4% E 2021 FMARMEA7TI.0EE T £
ZEHN()E2020F REMAL - B TFHEFHE LM
(BR2020F B RABUT BB RR L) © (i)
XM -

AEBERBREZRENRE > BBRARLEEW
R —SRA - TREEMEERAERARL R
F2020F A0.8% &K 22021 F M0.7% °

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by 15.4%
from RMB415.0 million in 2020 to RMB479.0 million in 2021,
primarily due to (i) an increase in average salaries of employee
compared to the same period of 2020, which was due to social
insurance relief from the relevant government authorities in 2020;
and (ii) an increase in our listing expenses.

While maintaining the fast development, the Group further
improved the team labor efficiency and the management
efficiency. Our administrative and other operating expenses as a
percentage of our revenue decreased from 0.8% in 2020 to 0.7%
in 2021.



SR -EER 21

Annual Report 2021

EEERWED T

Management Discussion and Analysis

TR 9N Research and Development Costs
BZE12B31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 2020%F

2021 2020
AR AR [A) tb & &)
Year-on-year
RMB RMB change

(AF st - BOLRIM)
(in thousands, except for percentage)

T EE B Research and development costs 78,547 58,276 34.8%

T3P AN 2020 F M) A RH#58.3 B &L £ 34.8%
FE2021FMARKET785FHET  TEHNAEEN
RTHOITERERBRA © R(i)HAZEABNEA
HEABM AR 182 A E201 A © ANEEMHE
HERETYaME BT ERERELEIIFRA;
& .

Hp A

HEMW AB2020F M ARKE23. 688 LIER
137.7% 22021 F M AR5 888 TEEMH
AT U B AN T 4 BH B N -

H e 35 5

HiWam F8EMA2020FMARK 1216 BB LIER
12.3% E2021FMARK136.6 AE T ° Efblizs
FREENEZEHANUAABEFEAEEHTAE
HEZNSREENER R REH N FEE g
m ZEemEERSRETERAIENERARM -

Our research and development costs increased by 34.8% from
RMB58.3 million in 2020 to RMB78.5 million in 2021,
because the Group increased investment in (i) IT infrastructures;
and (ii) research and development personnel,
which increased from 182 to 201. The research and development
projects of the Group included platform development, digitalized
services and operating support system upgrading.

primarily

the number of

Other Revenue

Our other revenue grew by 137.7% from RMB23.5 million in 2020
to RMB55.8 million in 2021, primarily due to an increase in tax
incentives and governmental grants.

Other Net Gain

Our other net gain grew by 12.3% from RMB121.6 million in 2020
to RMB136.6 million in 2021, primarily due to an increase in net
realized and unrealized gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, relating to structured deposits and wealth
management products.
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Net Finance Costs

Our net finance costs increased by 18.1% from RMB603.9 million
in 2020 to RMB713.0 million in 2021, primarily due to interest
expenses arising from discounted bills, interest expenses on bank
loans and redeemable capital contributions.

Our interest expenses arising from redeemable capital
contributions amounted to RMB677.5 million and RMB602.1
million in 2021 and 2020, respectively. The interest expenses
arising from redeemable capital contributions were primarily
attributable to the interest expenses arising from the special
rights and terms granted to shareholders in some of our financing
arrangements before the listing, and were recorded as finance
costs as redeemable capital contributions were ineligible to be
accounted for as equity. Such special rights and terms were
unconditionally terminated upon the listing and the redeemable
capital contributions had been transferred from liabilities to equity.

Income Tax

Our income tax increased by 23.9% from RMB81.5 million in 2020
to RMB100.9 million in 2021. The increase in income tax in 2021
was mainly due to the growth in our profit from operation.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Equity Shareholders of
the Company

As a result of the above, we recorded a loss attributable to equity
Shareholders of the Company of RMB349.9 million and RMB405.3
million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Adjusted Net Profit (Non-IFRS Measures)

To supplement our consolidated results which are prepared and
presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (the “IFRS”), we utilize adjusted net profit (non-
IFRS measures) and adjusted net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company (non-IFRS measures) as additional
financial measures. We define adjusted net profit (non-IFRS
measures) as loss for the year, as adjusted by adding back
interest expenses arising from redeemable capital contributions
and adjusted net profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company (non-IFRS measures) as loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as adjusted by adding back
interest expenses arising from redeemable capital contributions.
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We believe that the presentation of such non-IFRS measures
when shown in conjunction with the corresponding IFRS measures
provides useful information to potential investors and management
in facilitating a comparison of our operating performance from
period to period by eliminating potential impacts of interest
expenses arising from redeemable capital contributions that does
not reflect our ongoing operating performance. The use of the
non-IFRS measures have limitations as an analytical tool, and you
should not consider it in isolation from, or as a substitute for or
superior to, the analysis of our results of operations or financial
condition as reported under the IFRS. In addition, the non-IFRS
measures may be defined differently from similar terms used by
other companies.

The following table reconciles the adjusted net profit (non-IFRS
measures) of the Group to the most directly comparable financial
measure in accordance with IFRSs, loss before taxation, for the
periods indicated:

BZ12A31HLFEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®ETF T ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FREE Loss for the year (177,049) (279,992)
m: A EREEEEMNFEMAX Add: interest expenses arising from
redeemable capital contributions 677,490 602,140
RAEFNE GEERMBHRE Adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measures)
R E) CREER) (unaudited) 500,441 322,148
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2021 E R2020 FEARBHFFEORAAEE  In 2021 and 2020, our adjusted net profit amounted to RMB500.4

500.4B&E LR AREE3221HE T #£K55.3% million and RMB322.1 million, respectively, representing a growth
BRWAMIE R of 55.3%, which was higher than that of our revenue.

BRABKQATRERSEAESEFZFE (EBEME  Adjusted Net Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of
KR EERGTE) the Company (Non-IFRS Measures)

TREHFIRPAEAEBEAERRNRQRREEB A The following table reconciles the adjusted net profit attributable
JEMRERE GERBMERELBE) EREHE  to equity shareholders of the Company (non-IFRS measures) of

HERELENREEEAT L ENIEEERIZ © the Group to the most directly comparable financial measure in
RNTRER B AEGEEMEE accordance with IFRSs, loss attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company, for the periods indicated:

BZ12A31BLFEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ERATREFEAEEEE Loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company (349,881) (405,287)
m:AEEEEEEAMNFERX Add: interest expenses arising from
redeemable capital contributions 677,490 602,140
RABRKQNTRERFEAEML Adjusted net profit attributable to equity
I (FEERR B 3R & 2 Al shareholders of the Company (non-
FTE) CGREES) IFRS measures) (unaudited) 327,609 196,853

20214 R2020F LB AN TIRMEZ G AME(E  In 2021 and 2020, our adjusted net profit attributable to equity
MEIRAARKI7T6EETRARK1906.9HE  Shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB327.6 million and
JC v 18K 66.4% ° RMB196.9 million, respectively, representing a growth of 66.4%.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, our cash
and cash equivalents amounted to RMB2,966.9 million and
RMB4,316.0 million, respectively. The Group has sufficient working
capital for our operating requirements.

Inventories

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, our inventories
amounted to RMB2,718.6 million and RMB2,250.6 million,
respectively, representing an increase of 20.8%. As of December
31, 2021, the increase in our inventories was primarily in line with
the rapid growth of the scale of the direct sales in our commerce
business.

By optimizing the structure of our product offerings and
deepening our cooperation with upstream brand owners, the
Group has improved its operating efficiency, with the turnover
days of inventories decreasing from 20 days in 2020 to 14 days in
2021.

Trade and Bills Payables

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, our trade and
bills payables were RMB14,418.8 million and RMB11,419.3 million,
respectively, representing an increase of 26.3%. The increase in
our trade and bills payables was primarily due the expansion of
our business. Our trade and bills payables turnover days in 2021
were basically kept flat with that in 2020, and were 74 days and
75 days, respectively.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, our
prepayments, deposits and other receivables were RMB8,416.9
million and RMB6,620.0 million, respectively, representing an
increase of 27.1%. The increase in our prepayments, deposits
and other receivables as of December 31, 2021 compared to
December 31, 2020 was primarily due to the increase in our
prepayments, which were made to ensure supply, as requested
by customers that placed orders in advance, given the high
market demand of our merchandise and to serve as a precaution
against any potential adverse impact of an estimated increase
in the market price of products such as agricultural means of
production.
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Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures in 2021 and 2020 were RMB22.5 million
and RMB27.6 million, respectively, which were used primarily for
acquisition of properties and equipment to improve the capability
of the Group in supply chain and digitalized infrastructure.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had employed a total of
4,460 employees. The Group hires and promotes staffs based
on their on-the-job performance and development potential.
The remuneration package of our employees depends on their
performance and comparable market salary levels.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

For the year ended December 31, 2021, we did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.

STAFF STOCK OPTION SCHEME AND TRAINING
PROGRAM

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has no staff
stock option scheme. The Group provides its employees with a
comprehensive training program which it believes will enable them
to effectively acquire the necessary skills and professional ethics.
The Group participates in mandatory employee social security
scheme organized by provincial and municipal governments in
accordance with PRC laws, including endowment insurance,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work-related
injury insurance, medical insurance and housing provident fund.
The Group and its employees are required to pay a specified
percentage of the cost of the social security scheme. The Group
is required to contribute directly to the employee social security
scheme at a specified percentage of the employees’ salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances in accordance with PRC laws,
and the amount of contribution shall not exceed the maximum
amount prescribed by the local government from time to time.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of December 31, 2021, an inventory of RMB16.34 million (2020:
RMB12.5 million) was used as a guarantee for the issuance of the
letter of credit.

As of December 31, 2021, trade receivables of nil (2020: RMB4.0
million) was used as a guarantee for bank loans and other
borrowings.

As of December 31, 2021, a commitment in prepay of nil (2020:
RMB6.8 million) was used as a guarantee for bank loans and other
borrowings.

As of December 31, 2021, the pledged deposits for the issuance
of notes payable and letters of credit amounted to RMB5,023.6
million.

As of December 31, 2021, structured deposits and wealth
management products of RMB1,722.1 million (2020: RMB467.6
million) were used as guarantees for the issuance of notes
payable.

THE GROUP’S PLANS TO MAKE MAJOR
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSET PURCHASES IN
THE FUTURE

Unless otherwise disclosed, as of December 31, 2021, we had no
specific plans for material investments or acquisitions of capital
assets.

ADJUSTED GEARING RATIO

As of December 31, 2021, the adjusted gearing ratio of the Group
was 71.4%.

This adjusted gearing ratio is calculated based on the total
liabilities less redeemable capital contributions and then divided
by the total assets. The Directors believe that the Group’s adjusted
gearing ratio is within the normal range, which will promote the
enhancement of business vitality and the further exploration of the
market. The Group will continue to improve the gearing ratio to
support business development.
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RISK OF EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS AND
ANY RELATED HEDGING

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and its transactions are
mainly settled in Renminbi. As the Group does not have significant
financial assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the operating entities,
the business of the Group is not subject to any material foreign
exchange risk.

The Group is not currently engaged in any hedging activities
designed or planned to manage exchange rate risk. The Group
will continue to monitor changes in foreign exchange in an effort
to maintain its cash value.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities other than the maximum exposure as set out
in Note 34(b) to the auditor’s report.
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OVERVIEW

The Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising two
Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors and three
independent Non-executive Directors. The Board is responsible,
and has the general authority for, the management and operation
of the Company. Our Directors are appointed for a term of three
years and are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their term of
office. The independent Non-executive Directors shall not hold
office for more than six consecutive years.

Our Board of Supervisors currently consists of three Supervisors,
including one Supervisor appointed by Shareholders’ general
meetings and two employee Supervisors, elected at employee
representative meetings. The Board of Supervisors is responsible
for supervising the performance of duty of the Board and
the senior management of the Company and overseeing the
financial, internal control and risk conditions of the Company.
Our Supervisors are appointed for a term of three years and are
eligible for re-election upon expiry of their term of office.

Our senior management is responsible for the management of
day-to-day operations of the Company.

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. WANG Jianguo

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XU Xiuxian
Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (OTHER THAN THE
CHAIRMAN)
Mr. WANG Jian

Mr. CAl Zhongqiu
Mr. WANG Yi
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Xiangdong
Mr. CHENG Zichuan
Mr. HUANG Shun

SUPERVISORS

Mr. WANG Xinghua
Mr. LI Wei
Mr. MAQ Yijun

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chief Executive Officer, President

Mr. XU Xiuxian

Chief Financial Officer, Vice President

Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng

Vice President

Mr. XING Jianhong
Mr. SUN Chao

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. TANG Min
Ms. AU Wai Ching
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Jianguo, aged 61, is the founder of our Group and
has been the Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive Director
of our Company since November 2015. He is mainly responsible
for convening and chairing general meetings and Board meetings
and presiding over the decision-making of external affairs and
strategic development of our Group.

Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in retail business
and corporate management. He worked at the Department of
Commerce of Jiangsu Province (T#R&MEZERE) from July 1981
to April 1993 and served as the general manager of Jiangsu
Waujiaohua Corporation (IT#% Ac X E/L T4 7)), a state-owned
company mainly engaged in the sales of home appliances, where
he was primarily responsible for its overall management from April
1993 to June 2002. He served as the chairman and the president
of Jiangsu Five Star Appliance Co., Ltd. (T# A2 ERXEFRAF]),
a company engaged in the sales of household appliance, from
December 1998 to February 2009 and Mr. Wang does not hold
any direct or indirect equity interest in Five Star Appliance since
February 2009. Mr. Wang has been the chairman of the board of
Five Star Holdings since February 2009.

Mr. Wang concurrently serves as the chairman of Kidswant
Children Products Co., Ltd. (ZFETRERBBEMHERRAR -
a company engaged in the sales and service of maternal and
children products which is listed on the ChiNext, stock code:
301078) since June 2012. He also serves as an independent
Non-executive Director at Honma Golf Limited (AE&EBXE
[R/x7]), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6858), and Simcere Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(eBEEEEFERAA), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2096), since September 2016 and
November 2019, respectively.

Mr. Wang obtained a master's degree in Business Management
from The Australian National University in Australia upon
completion of the Executive Master of Business Administration
("EMBA") programme in July 2004. He completed all the
requirements prescribed by Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance for the DBA (Doctor of Business Administration) in Global
Finance Program (L85 & &2k 2kEE DBA BH) in July
2018. He also obtained a Ph.D. in Business Administration in
Global Finance from Arizona State University, U.S.A. in May 2018.
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Mr. Wang has been the vice chairman of Jiangsu General
Chamber of Commerce since December 2014. He was awarded
the Service Industry Professional Special Contribution Award (g7
B AABERER ) by Jiangsu Provincial People’s Government
in October 2014. He was also granted the Outstanding
Achievement Award by the China Chain Store & Franchise
Association (FEIEEEXFH) in November 2012. He was
elected as the Model Worker of the National Business System (&
Bl i 75 R 4 48R E8) by the Ministry of Personnel and the Ministry
of Commerce of the PRC in 2007.

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Xiuxian, aged 58, is the co-founder of our Group and
has been an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of our Company since its inception. He is mainly responsible for
leading the business development of our Group and presiding
over the decision-making and execution of the major business,
development and investment plans.

Mr. Xu has more than 20 years of experience in retail business
and corporate management. Mr. Xu served as the section chief
of the Consumer Price Office of the Department of Commerce of
Jiangsu Province (ILERETIFXREVELE), the manager of Jiangsu
Wujiaohua Corporation, where he was responsible for the air-
conditioning business from March 1993 to November 1998, the
general manager of Jiangsu Xingpu Technology Trading Co., Ltd.
(IEELTRIEE S AR AR, a home appliance trading company,
where he was primarily responsible for its overall operation and
management from November 1998 to December 2004, and an
executive vice president of Jiangsu Five Star Appliance Co., Ltd.
(IEREEXRERAF]) from December 2004 to March 2009.

Mr. Xu graduated from Hangzhou Business School (#i)N 5 Ep7)
(currently known as Zhejiang Gongshang University Hangzhou
College of Commerce (HTT T A2/ EER)) in the PRC with a
bachelor’'s degree in Business and Enterprise Management in July
1983. He subsequently completed postgraduate courses in Global
Economy at the School of Economics of Fudan University (88X
2) in Shanghai, the PRC in June 2000 and obtained a master’s
degree in EMBA at Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (&
ST ERT) in Beijing, the PRC in September 2011.
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Mr. Xu was recognized for his excellence in leadership and
obtained the award of National Trade and Circulation Services
Model Workers and Advanced Workers (2B E R BRIEELH
EEIF S TYEE) in September 2015, and won the 2018 China
Electronic Appliances Service Association Outstanding President
Award (FRIRERZEFEATREZTEHLESEER) in January
2019, and was also named one of the China Industrial Internet
TOP10 Leaders 2019 (P EIEZ TR T REEAY) in July 2019
and obtained the China Electrical Appliances Industry Outstanding
Leader Award 2019 (FBIKE1TE Z BEM2Z) in October 2019.

Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng, aged 47, has been an Executive Director
of our Company since May 2021, and has been the Chief Financial
Officer, the Secretary to the Board and a Vice President of our
Company since January 2013. Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible
for overseeing our Group’'s financial affairs and corporate
governance.

Mr. Zhao has more than 20 years of experience in financial
management. Mr. Zhao served as a project manager of Jiangsu
Tianheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. ((T#x A% &5HED
E%FTAR AR (Currently known as Tianheng Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) (K& &zHE ST (B R
A7) from July 1998 to April 2004, a financial Director in Zhejiang
Yulong Industrial Co., Ltd. (MIHMEE XKD ERAR]), where he
was primarily responsible for the overall financial management,
from May 2004 to September 2005, an audit manager in Zhengda
Tianging Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (IEAKRFBEEELBE R
B BRAE]), where he was primarily responsible for the internal
auditing, from October 2005 to December 2007, a deputy general
manager of Nanjing Shangde Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(AR LEEEEETEARAR) from 2007 to 2009 and the chief
financial officer of Five Star Holdings from 2009 to 2012.

Mr. Zhao has been a certified public accountant conferred by
Certified Accounting Examination Committee of the Ministry
of Finance (BB EMtest=ZHZ8€) since June 2001. Mr.
Zhao obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Business Management
(Accounting) from Southeast University (REAZ) in Nanjing, the
PRC in June 1998.
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Non-executive Directors (other than the Chairman)

Mr. WANG Jian, aged 58, has been a Non-executive Director
of our Company since November 2015 and is responsible for
participating in evaluation and approval of business plans,
strategies and major decisions of our Group through the Board.

Mr. Wang Jian has extensive experience in corporate
management, consulting and investment management. He
currently serves as the president of Five Star Holdings since April
2013. Prior to his current position, Mr. Wang Jian worked at the
Department of Commerce of Jiangsu Province (JT#t& E2E2) from
July 1984 to November 1998 and worked in Jiangsu Wujiaohua
Corporation, with his last position as the general manager where
he was primarily responsible for its operation and management
from November 1998 to December 2003. He served at Jiangsu
Five Star Appliance Co., Ltd. (I&RAEEEAR 7)), and
served in various positions including deputy manager, executive
vice president and president from December 1998 to March
2013, senior vice president of Best Buy Co., Inc., an American
multinational consumer electronics corporation which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: BBY) from February
2009 to March 2013.

Mr. Wang Jian graduated from the Party School of C.P.C.
Jiangsu Committee ((T&#R&ZEMR) in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in Economics in July 1992. He subsequently completed
a postgraduate course in Business Administration at the
International Business School of Nanjing University (F R A2
FERT) in the PRC in June 2000. He obtained a master's degree
in Business Administration from the China Europe International
Business School (FBEEEEET) in Shanghai, the PRC and the
Tsinghua University (EZEAZ) in Beijing, the PRC in September
2009 and June 2016, respectively. He also received the Third
China Industry Achievement Award (5 =J8F BIEHEMFLEE) in
October 2012.
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Mr. CAl Zhonggiu, aged 51, has been a Non-executive Director
of our Company since May 2021 and is primarily responsible
for participating in evaluation and approval of business plans,
strategies and major decisions of our Group through the Board.
Mr. Cai served as the investment director in SDIC Chuangyi
Industry Fund Management Co., Lid. (B AISEXESEEERER
al) from August 2016 to August 2018 and has been serving as the
executive director since August 2018.

Mr. Cai has extensive experience in equity investment and
corporate management. Mr. Cai obtained a doctoral degree in
Management Engineering in June 2011 from the China University
of Mining and Technology (Beijing) (FEIIEZE A2 R D) in the
PRC.

Mr. WANG Yi, aged 44, has been a Non-executive Director
of our Company since May 2021 and is primarily responsible
for participating in evaluation and approval of business plans,
strategies and major decisions of our Group through the Board.
Mr. Wang Yi currently also serves as a senior director at the
consumer electronics department of Alibaba Group Holding
Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9988) and the New York Stock Exchange (stock
code: BABA), since March 2020.

From September 2013 to February 2020, Mr. Wang Yi served as
a vice president, the chief financial officer, an executive director,
and the general manager of the China business division of TCL
Electronics Holdings Limited (TCLEF#ZRAR A A]), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1070).

Mr. Wang Yi graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics ((TAAEI4E KX£2) in the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree in
Accounting in July 1998, and obtained an EMBA degree from the
China Europe International Business School (FRENEIRE T ET) in
Shanghai, the PRC in September 2008.



36 EEERKRNERAT

Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

EE  ESEkeREEAE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BYFBITES

BIBEELE - 555% 0 B 202145 AREERQAFTN
BYNITERE - LEEEEEESURNEESIR
HBIER o

BIEAEFBRPRARKE - EBERBAAHE -
®ERIIE2016F 11 ARREFE LERFORNE
RAR(—RREEEHXR S ETHRR (BFHR
5 1 603777)) B IEWMITES o

B EEEDRIFN19884F7 A ~ 199147 A 20024
6AEFBARAKEZBEEEHEES BN - 15T
i -

FIBELLE - 485% 0 B2016F8 ARETARRIIE L
ERTEE  AEEEEEIVRNESSREB T
BER o

HEATECH AV EER T EEABB20EMNK
% o HE2003F 10 AR E ST H MR G TR 15
AR ARIEFESHE - B2021F 12/ - F|it
E-HEFLERIERERAE (—KREBH AT L
TH AT (DR : 0607)) B IERITES -

FEANRI1998F6 AEFTRHE R ABESBEEER
BBy > WR2003F6 AESAEELEMN - H
P1997 5 BT B M estiiih & RE Ak
GHTAD -

BETEEFEEEEZ8(ITMRARBYESEH
AI) ([2022]145R) B+ Ak (B EFEERBTE
RBBAE) RARRERE"EB=-+THKZET B
VIEHTESZIERETHER  AREEREX
CLEER - BERGFERREASERETNESH
BRI AR IEE RS TREARE -

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Xiangdong, aged 55, has been an independent
Non-executive Director of our Company since May 2021. He is
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to
the Board.

Mr. Liu has been working in Renmin University of China (FFEIAR
AE) with his current position as a professor. Currently he is also
an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Laiyifen Co.,
Ltd. (EBRFMDBEMHERLQE]), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 603777), since November 2016.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree, master's degree and
doctoral degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in
the PRC in July 1988, July 1991 and June 2002, respectively.

Mr. HUANG Shun, aged 48, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of our Company since August 2016 and is
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to
the Board.

Mr. Huang has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and financial management. He currently serves as the chief
accountant since October 2003 at Jiangsu Verti-Hor Certified
Public Accountants Co., Ltd. (I#4tBESAEIERMERAR).
Mr. Huang has been an independent non-executive director of
Fullshare Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0607) since December 2021.

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economic
Management in June 1998 and a bachelor’s degree in Law in June
2003 from Nanjing University in the PRC. He was accredited as
a Certified Public Accountant by the Jiangsu Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (L& =Mt & 5HAIHE) in May 1997.

Pursuant to Article 15 of the Rules Governing Independent
Directors of Listed Companies issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission ([2022] No. 14) (Independent Directors
shall not hold office for more than six consecutive years) and
Article 135 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. HUANG
Shun, an independent Non-executive Director, shall retire at
the annual general meeting upon the expiry of his term of
office. Details of the Directors to be re-elected and appointed
at the annual general meeting are set out in the circular to be
despatched to the Shareholders in due course.
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Mr. CHENG Zichuan, aged 39, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of our Company since May 2021 and is
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to
the Board. Mr. Cheng currently serves as an assistant president
of Leading Hong Kong Holdings Limited (Bit&SAERAT), a
real estate company, where he has been primarily responsible
for the overseas investment and financing business and investor
relations, since January 2021.

Mr. Cheng successively served as a manager of China Business
Division of ORIX Group, an investment company, from December
2009 to May 2016; a vice president in the investment banking
department at ORIX Asia Capital Limited, an investment
company, from June 2016 to October 2017 where he was
primarily responsible for the business development in China, the
execution of equity investment projects and the management of
post-investment companies; and a president of the investment and
financing department of Hong Yang Group Company Limited (5A
I BEARAR]), a real estate company, where he was primarily
responsible for the investment and financing, from November
2017 to December 2018.

Mr. Cheng graduated from Wuhan University of Technology (&
EE T K2 in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in Automation in
June 2004, and obtained a Master of Business Administration at
Waseda University in Tokyo, Japan in March 2010.

Confirmation of Independence from Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. WANG Xinghua, aged 41, has been the chairman of Board
of Supervisors of our Company since November 2015 and is
primarily responsible for supervising the Board and overseeing
our operations. He also serves as the director of president office
of our Company since February 2018, where he is primarily
responsible for our Company’s strategic management, public
affairs, public relations, administration and non-operational supply
chain planning. He also concurrently serves as a supervisor of
Jiangsu Dachuang Electric Co., Ltd. (T#rZ&IEZER A A]), one
of our Group’s subsidiaries, since January 2013.

Mr. Wang Xinghua has extensive experience in human resources
management and administrative management. He worked at the
human resources centers in Jiangsu Five Star Appliance Co., Ltd.
CIERAEEFEAR A7) from July 2003 to February 2009, served
as a director assistant at the human resources center of Five Star
Holdings from March 2009 to December 2011, and served as
the director of the human resources center of our Company from
January 2012 to February 2018.

Mr. Wang Xinghua obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Human
Resources Management from Nanjing University of Science
and Technology (FAR¥ETAKEZ) in the PRC in June 2003. He
obtained the Economics Professional Qualification (Intermediate
Level) in January 2013 from Nanjing Professional and Technical
Qualification Assessment Center (FRMZERITAEBEINH
).

Mr. LI Wei, aged 45, has been a Supervisor of our Company since
June 2020 and is primarily responsible for supervising the Board
and overseeing our operations. He also serves as the assistant to
the president and CEO of business division of our Company since
March 2019.
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Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in retail and distribution
business. Mr. Li successively served as the head of the air
conditioner business division of Jiangsu Five Star Appliance Co.,
Ltd. CIT8RA 2 EZERAR]); a deputy general manager of Jiangsu
Xingpu Science and Technology Trading Co., Ltd. (T# 2Ll
ZHMRAT]), a home appliance trading company, where he was
primarily responsible for assisting the general manager for the
internal management and the sales of air conditioner from October
2002 to February 2009; a general manager of Jiangsu Sanchuang
Trading Co., Ltd. (I#=&IBmEEMR2AF]), a home appliance
trading company, where he was primarily responsible for the sales
management of air conditioners and washing machines, from
March 2009 to September 2014; a general manager of the Sunan
branch of our Company from December 2014 to December 2018;
and a director of the platform support center of our Company from
December 2018 to December 2019.

Mr. Li obtained an associate degree in Marketing from Jiangsu
Provincial Party School of the Chinese Communist Party (T#& %
) in the PRC in October 1998.

Mr. MAO Yijun, aged 39, has been a Supervisor of our Company
since May 2021 and is primarily responsible for supervising the
Board and overseeing our operations. He joined our Group in April
2015 and currently serves as the director of the human resources
center of our Company since November 2019 and is responsible
for the organization, talent acquisition and management, work
incentive and cultural affairs of our Company. Mr. Mao worked
in Suning Electric Co., Ltd. (BFEERKMHBIRAF]), a company
principally operating franchised retail shops of electronics
appliances in China, where he was primarily responsible for the
production and marketing from October 2009 to August 2012;
and the manager of key customer division of Nanjing Skyworth
Household Appliances Co., Ltd. (A RAIEZBEZRERAT),
a company principally engaged in the R&D and production of
household appliances, where he was primarily responsible for
the domestic e-commerce business of refrigerators and washing
machines of Skyworth, from September 2012 to March 2015.

Mr. Mao graduated from the Northwestern Polytechnical University
(FAdt T KE) in Xi'an, the PRC with a bachelor's degree in
Software Engineering in July 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. XU Xiuxian. See “—Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management — Executive Directors”.

Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng. See “—Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management — Executive Directors”.

Mr. XING Jianhong, aged 51, has been a Vice President of
our Company since January 2015 and is primarily responsible
for assisting the President of our Company with operation and
management of our Group and the consumer electronics business.
Mr. Xing currently holds directorship or managerial positions at
several subsidiaries within our Group, including a director of
Wanhulian New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (B P REIF A
[R/~27A]) since July 2017, a general manager of Yifantong Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (B LA EHE BRE A F]) since October
2019, a general manager of Jiangsu Xinglihui Network Technology
Co., Ltd. (I#R 2 BAEEH AR A7) since December 2019, an
executive director of Tianjin Huayifan Network Technology Co.,
Ltd. (KEZEEAMHERL AR AF]) since December 2019 and an
executive director of Jiangsu Yiyuntong Digital Technology Co.,
Ltd. (LERIEEBEES R AR A F]) since December 2020.

Mr. Xing served as a deputy director of the procurement division,
a branch general manager and the director of the development
division of Jiangsu Five Star Appliance Co., Ltd. (I& L EE=HE
[R27]) from December 1998 to December 2012 and a regional
general manager of Shanghai Red Star Macalline Enterprise
Development Co., Ltd. (LA EXIECELEBRAT), a
homebuilding and renovation materials sales company, where he
was primarily responsible for the development and operation of
commercial properties from January 2013 to December 2014.

Mr. Xing completed postgraduate courses in corporate planning
and corporate development at Nanjing University, the PRC in
September 2004.
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Mr. SUN Chao, aged 34, has been a Vice President of our
Company since July 2015 and is primarily responsible for assisting
the President of our Company with operation and management
of our Group and the member stores. Mr. Sun currently holds
directorship or managerial positions at several subsidiaries within
our Group, including the chairman of the board of directors of
Jiangsu Wokewang Information Technology Co., Ltd ((T& % A48
= BRI AR AR since April 2018, a general manager of Huitong
Datatech Smart Technology Co., Ltd. ([EREFEIERERER AR
since September 2019 and an executive director and a general
manager of Nanjing Shumei Network Technology Co., Ltd. (F3
RMHEEFERHERAR AR since January 2020. Prior to joining
our Group, he served as a project team member and a general
manager of Haier mall of Haier Group E-commerce Co., Ltd. (/&
MEBETHSARAA), a company principally engaged in
the sales of Haier products, where he was primarily responsible
for the operation of Haier e-commerce platform from May 2009
to November 2010 and from November 2010 to July 2015,
respectively.

Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management in
E-commerce from Shandong University of Science and
Technology (IUWEFHZAE) in the PRC in June 2010, and a
master’s degree in Business Administration at Fudan University (18
BK&) in the PRC in January 2020. Mr. Sun received the Prize of
CTOA Most Influential Technological Leadership (CTOA A 4EE
N HEAiTEHEE); nominated for the Nanjing High-level Talents 2019
(MRMEERXAA) in January 2019; awarded the Prize of CTDC
Internet Industry Technological Leadership Outstanding Figures
2018 (CTDC EE@ITERMEE HREEAYE); and won the
first place in National Internet Commerce Innovative Application
Competition 2009 (2 BIA4E P9 15 AT FE A KE) in May 20009.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. TANG Min (E#), aged 42, is one of the joint company
secretaries of our Company and was appointed on January 13,
2022. Ms. Tang currently is the manager of Securities Affairs
Department, and the senior expert in securities affairs. She joined
our Group in April 2013 and is primarily responsible for capital
financing of the Company. She served as a financial accountant
of Jiangsu Shangfa Home Appliances Co., Ltd. (LE#REEXRE
[R27]) from June 1997 to November 2001 and a senior financial
supervisor of Pentagon Freight Services (Singapore) Private
Limited (i AAEEHRAF]) from October 2009 to January
2011.
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Ms. Tang obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science in Applied
Accounting from Oxford Brookes Business School in the UK
in July 2009. She completed Fundamentals Level of the ACCA
examinations in December 2008.

Ms. AU Wai Ching (EZ&) is one of the joint company
secretaries of our Company and was appointed on January 13,
2022. Ms. Au joined SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, which is a corporate service provider, in January
2016 and currently serves as a manager.

She is a member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as “The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries”) and the Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom. She obtained her bachelor’s degree in business
administration and her master’s degree in professional accounting
and corporate governance from the City University of Hong Kong
in July 2012 and July 2016, respectively.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE GLOBAL OFFERING

Issue of H Shares and Listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

On February 18, 2022, the H Shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a global
offering of 51,606,200 Shares, comprising a Hong Kong public
offering of 5,160,700 Shares and an international offering of
46,445,500 Shares. The H Shares were issued and subscribed to
Hong Kong and overseas investors at an Offer Price of HK$43.00
per H Share (excluding brokerage of 1.0%, SFC transaction levy
of 0.0027%, FRC transaction levy of 0.00015% and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange transaction fee of 0.005%) by way of the
IPO. The Over-allotment Option as described in the Prospectus
was partially exercised by the Joint Representatives (on behalf
of the International Underwriters) on March 12, 2022 in respect
of a total of 2,305,600 H Shares (the “Over-allotment Shares”),
representing approximately 4.47% of the total number of Offer
Shares initially available for subscription under the global offering
prior to any exercise of the Over-allotment Option, for the purpose
of delivering relevant H Shares to the cornerstone investors who
have agreed to defer the delivery of relevant H Shares subscribed
under their respective cornerstone investment agreements. The
H Shares were issued and allotted at an Offer Price of HK$43.00
per H Share (being the Offer Price per H Share under the global
offering, excluding brokerage of 1.0%, SFC transaction levy of
0.0027%, FRC transaction levy of 0.00015% and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange transaction fee of 0.005%).

Gross Proceeds from the Global Offering

The gross proceeds from global offering amounted to
approximately HK$2,219 million. On March 16, 2022, the Joint
International Underwriters partially exercised the Over-allotment
Option pursuant to the IPO, and the Company issued an
additional 2,305,600 H Shares at an issue price of HK$43.00 per
H Share. The total additional proceeds from the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option amounted to approximately HK$99 million.

There is no change to the intended use of the net proceeds and the
expected implementation timetable as previously disclosed in the
prospectus. From the Listing Date until the Latest Practicable Date,
the Group has not used any part of the net proceeds and will use
the net proceeds in accordance with the intended purposes and
expected implementation timetable as stated in the prospectus.
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In relation to the use of net proceeds from the global offering and
the expected implementation timetable, please refer to “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus.

BUSINESS AND COMPANY-RELATED INFORMATION
Principal Activities

We are a fast growing commerce and service platform dedicated
to serving business customers in China's retail market, and we
endeavour to provide quality merchandise and services to China’s
lower-tier market. We provide both commerce business and
service business to our customers:

° Commerce Business : we procure products, including
household appliances, consumer electronics, agricultural
means of production, vehicles and auto parts products,
homebuilding and renovation materials, and liquor and
beverages, from our suppliers and distribute mainly to
wholesaler customers and member stores through our
self-operated HTD Mall webpage. The revenue generated
from our commerce business mainly includes sales
revenue under direct sales model and commission income
and service fees charged under online marketplace model.

° Service Business: under our service business, leveraging
our digitalization capabilities, we mainly offer SaaS+
(through our Super Boss webpage and mobile app) and
merchant solutions to retail stores and wholesalers along
the industry value chain. The revenue generated from
our service business mainly includes subscription fees
we charged under SaaS+ business and service fees we
charged under merchant solutions business.

Results of Operations

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in this
annual report.

Four-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
financial position, and consolidated cash flow statement is set out
on pages 246 to 248 of this annual report.
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Dividend Policy and Final Dividend

The Company is a joint stock limited company incorporated
under the laws of the People’s Republic of China. Pursuant
to the Article of Association, the Company may apply cash or
by way of shares to distribute dividends. Any distribution of
dividends shall be formulated a distribution plan by our Board
and subject to consideration and approval on general meeting of
our Company. Any distribution of dividends paid by our Company
shall be determined by our Board with absolute discretion on
various factors, including actual operation results, cash flows,
financial position, expected working capital need in the future and
business expansion plan, laws, regulations and other contracts
restrictions, as well as other factors that the Board may consider
appropriate. The Company does not currently have any plan to
pay any dividend to its shareholders. However, the Company may
distribute dividends in cash or in such other manner as the Board
may consider appropriate in the future. Having due regard to the
long-term interests of the Shareholders and the Company, the
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

Business Review

A pertinent review of the Group’s business as required by
Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance, including an analysis
of the Group’s financial performance, indicators of the likely
future development of the Group's business, a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and key
relationships with stakeholders who have a significant influence on
the Group and on whom the Group’s success depends, is set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections of this annual report. These discussions form
part of the Group’s business review.

Future Development

The year of 2022 is the first year since the listing of the Company.
In the face of the complex and changeable domestic and foreign
environment and the impact of the repeated epidemics, we
will always adhere to the concepts of “Run with the Dream”,
“People-oriented” and “Begin with the End”, and closely focus
on the goal of “guaranteeing growth and improving quality”, and
promote the key tasks.

For details of key tasks, please see the Business Outlook section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” of the annual report.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group is not exposed to significant environmental risks.
During the Reporting Period, no fines or other penalties were
imposed on the Group for non-compliance with environmental
regulations.

Details of the Company’s environmental policy and performance
are set out in the Company’s environmental, social and
governance reports issued in due course.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Employees

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 4,460
full-time employees. The Group also uses some third-party
labor outsourcing and labor dispatch services, but most of the
employees are directly employed by ourselves. The vast majority
of our employees are based in China, mainly in Nanjing, where
our headquarter is located, and other cities, where our branches
are located.

The Group’'s success depends on attracting, retaining and
motivating qualified personnel. The Group adopts strict and
high-standard recruitment procedures to ensure the quality of
new recruits. The Group adopts a variety of recruitment methods
(including campus recruitment, online recruitment, internal
recommendation and recruitment through headhunting companies
or agencies) to meet the demand for different types of talents, and
pays competitive salaries in the industry.

The Group provides its employees with a comprehensive training
program, which it believes will enable employees to effectively
acquire the necessary skills and professional ethics. The Group
participates in mandatory employee social security scheme
organized by provincial and municipal governments in accordance
with PRC laws, including endowment insurance, unemployment
insurance, maternity insurance, work-related injury insurance,
medical insurance and housing provident fund. The Group and
its employees are required to pay a specified percentage of
the cost of the social security scheme. The Group is required to
contribute directly to the employee social security scheme at a
specified percentage of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and
certain allowances in accordance with PRC laws, and the amount
of contribution shall not exceed the maximum amount prescribed
by the local government from time to time.

Customers and Suppliers

The Group has a broad customer base, including enterprise
customers, channel customers and member stores, as well as
individual customers. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the
revenue from the Group’s top five customers (mainly “commerce
business”) accounted for less than 7.44% of the Group’s total
revenue. The Group's largest suppliers mainly include brand
manufacture suppliers, brand national agents and other wholesale
suppliers. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group’s
top five suppliers accounted for less than 14.38% of the Group’s
purchases.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, to the knowledge of
the Directors, none of the Directors or any of their close associates
or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5.0% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an
interest in any of the Company’s top five customers or suppliers.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

During the Reporting Period, details of changes in the Group’s
property and equipment are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

[ &N SHARE CAPITAL
SEHSTERE SREHSITERE
it B 7 52 B Al BERETHE
Immediately Preceding Immediately Following
the Completion of Partial the Completion of Partial
Exercise of the Over- Exercise of the Over-
allotment Option allotment Option
HE BT HE BT
28T  RAHHELY BT REAHHY
BREAEE Bk BREE B
Approximate Approximate
Percentage Percentage
Number of of the Number of of the
Issued Issued Share Issued Issued Share
PR 4348 Description of Shares Shares Capital Shares Capital
RNER Domestic Shares 382,303,498 68.24% 382,303,498 67.96%
NE % AHR H Shares converted from Domestic
Shares 126,354,539 22.55% 126,354,539 22.46%
BREEHEEETHHR H Shares issued under the Global
Offering 51,606,200 9.21% 53,911,800 9.58%
FCET Total 560,264,237 100% 562,569,837 100%

BE2021F12A31BLFE - ARFRHKRAEE)
HIEBRAFRiF e M HREMES3(C)

EXRERATDEMES

AARNREHNRFEEBFEHRYHREKE 107
Z108ELAEREEHE - HZE2021F12A318 1
FEE - RRQ B EEA A D IREER -

RITERREMER
BARARATIEMBAREE2021F12A31HILF
BZRTERIEMEROFBIRGETERE
BfsE23 o

For the year ended December 31, 2021, details of changes in
the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 33(C) to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

CAPITAL RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves during the Reporting Period
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 107 to 108 of the financial statements. For the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Company has no distributable reserves.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans or other borrowings of the Company and
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES

For the year ended December 31, 2021, no debentures were
issued by the Group or subsidiaries.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

From the Listing Date to the Latest Practicable Date, neither the
Company nor subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

In 2021, the Company had no arrangement for pre-emptive
rights and share options. Neither the Articles of Association nor
the PRC laws stipulates that the Company shall give priority to
existing shareholders in offering new shares in proportion to their
shareholdings.

TAX CONCESSION AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax concession or exemption
for any Shareholders who hold securities of the Company.
Shareholders are advised to consult an expert if they are in any
doubt about the tax implications of purchasing, holding, disposing
of and trading in shares or exercising any of their rights in relation
to them, including any right to tax concession.

DONATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group made
charitable and other donations of approximately RMB199,976.00.

CONTRACT WITH THE SINGLE LARGEST SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no material contracts
were entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries with
the controlling shareholders during the Reporting Period. After
the Listing Date, the shareholding of Mr. Wang Jianguo, the
single largest shareholder of the Company, has decreased to
less than 30%, and he is no longer the controlling shareholder of
the Company, and no shareholding of other shareholders of the
Company exceeds 30%.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Our single largest Shareholder and Non-executive Director,
Mr. Wang ("single largest Shareholder*) has signed the Non-
Competition Undertaking on January 25, 2022 in favor of our
Group (the “Non-Competition Undertaking”). Pursuant to Non-
Competition Undertaking, Mr. Wang has irrevocably undertaken to
our Group that he will not, and will procure his close associates
(other than members of our Group) directly or indirectly be
conducted, participated, engaged in or involved in any business
(other than our business) that competes with any business, which
includes commerce and service platform serving businesses in
China’s retail market (collectively referred to as the “Restricted
Businesses”), conducted by the members of our Group from time
to time.

In the event that single largest Shareholder and his close
associates have Restricted Businesses with members of our
Group from time to time, they will inform our Company in real time
and assist our Company and subsidiaries to obtain the business
opportunity in similar terms or more favorable terms.

For details, please refer to section headed “RELATIONSHIP WITH
OUR SINGLE LARGEST SHAREHOLDER" in the Prospectus.

Our Company has received confirmations by single largest
Shareholder in respect of compliance with the the Non-
Competition Undertaking as of the date of this report. Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance of single
largest Shareholder with the Non-Competition Undertaking.
Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed, single largest
Shareholder did not breach the Non-Competition Undertaking as
of the date of this report.

49
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

For the year ended December 31, 2021, no contracts were
entered into in relation to the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting high
standards of corporate governance, which is essential to the
Company’s development and protection of Shareholders’ interests.
Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the principles
and provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance as the
basis for its corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company as
of the date of this annual report. and to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, public float of our Company is 15.35% as of the Latest
Practicable Date. Our Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained the aforementioned minimum public float required by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since the Listing Date and up to
the Latest Practicable Date.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND COMPLIANCE

The Group may from time to time be involved in various legal
procedures, arbitrations or proceedings in the course of its
ordinary business. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not involved in any legal procedures, arbitrations or proceedings
that we believe would have a material adverse effect on the
ordinary business, financial condition or business performance,
and to the best of our knowledge, there was no risk of any such
legal procedures, arbitrations or proceedings.

The Group’'s business operations are subject to applicable
Chinese laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has not been involved in, nor does it involve in any
non-compliance incidents resulting in fines, enforcement actions
or other penalties that may individually or collectively have a
material adverse impact on the Group’s business, financial
condition or operating performance, and the Group has complied
with applicable laws and regulations in all material respects.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save for the subsequent events as set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no other
significant events affecting the Group have occurred since
December 31, 2021 and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The company’s annual general meeting will be held on Friday,
June 17, 2022. The notice convening the annual general meeting
will be published and dispatched to shareholders in due course in
the manner prescribed by the Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER REGISTRATION

To determine the eligibility to attend and vote at the 2021 annual
general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, May 18, 2022 to Friday, June 17, 2022
(both dates inclusive), during which period the registration of
share transfers will be closed. To be eligible to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates shall be lodged
to the H Share Registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(for holders of H Shares), or to the Company’s registered office,
at Huitongda Building, No. 50, Zhongling Street, Xuanwu District,
Nanjing, PRC (for holders of domestic Shares) no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 17, 2022 for handling share transfer
registration procedures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director:

Mr. WANG Jianguo

Executive Director:

Mr. XU Xiuxian
Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng (appointed on May 10, 2021)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. WANG Jian

Mr. CAl Zhonggqiu (appointed on May 10, 2021)
Mr. WANG Yi (appointed on May 10, 2021)

Mr. XU Jinrong (ceased on May 10, 2021)

Mr. LI Shaohua (ceased on May 10, 2021)

Mr. BAI Bo (ceased on May 10, 2021)

Independent Non-executive Director:

Mr. LIU Xiangdong (appointed on May 10, 2021)
Mr. CHENG Zichuan (appointed on May 10, 2021)
Mr. HUANG Shun

Mr. LUO Dejun (ceased on May 10, 2021)

Mr. Al Min (ceased on May 10, 2021)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and the senior
management are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors And Senior Management” of this annual report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

On April 25, 2021, Mr. Xu Jinrong, Mr. BAI Bo and Mr. LI Shaohua
as Non-executive Directors as well as Mr. Al Min and Mr. LUO
Dejun as Independent Non-executive Directors, summited
resignation application to the Board of the Company for work
reasons. Upon the consideration by the Board and approved by
the general meeting on May 10, 2021, Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng was
appointed as the Executive Director of the second session of the
Board, Mr. CAl Zhonggiu and Mr. WANG Yi were appointed as the
Non-executive Directors of the second session of the Board and
Mr. LIU Xiangdong and Mr. CHENG Zichuan were appointed as
the Independent Non-executive Directors, with the term of office
commencing from the date of approval by the Company’s general
meeting to the expiring date of the second session of the Board.

On May 10, 2021, Mr. YI Suning, the Supervisor, resigned for
personal work reasons. At the same day, Mr. MAO Yijun, the
Director of human resources of the Company, was elected
as the employee representative Supervisor at the employee
representative meeting to perform corresponding duties with
the term of office commencing from the date of the employee
representative meeting to the expiring date of the second session
of the Board of Supervisors.

After making specific enquiries by the Company and confirmed
by the Directors and Supervisors, save as disclosed as above, no
other changes in the information of any Directors and Supervisors
that are required to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e)
and paragraph (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules have to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Pursuant to Rules 19A.54 and 19A.55 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules, we enter into contracts with each of our Directors and
supervisors in relation to, among other things, (i) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations; (ii) compliance with the Articles of
Association; and (iii) arbitration clauses.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors or supervisors
had entered into any Director or supervisor service contract with
any member of the Group (excluding contracts that expire within
one year or may be terminated by the employer without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Details of Directors and Supervisors’ remuneration for the
year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS IN
MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report and the below section headed
“Connected Transactions”, to the knowledge of the Directors,
none of the Directors, Supervisors or entities connected with
the Directors, Supervisors had or or has had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, in any material transaction, arrangement or
contract in which the Company or its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended December 31, 2021 has any
rights been granted to any Directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18 to enable them to benefit from the purchase
of Shares or debentures of the Company, and such persons have
also failed to exercise those rights; and no arrangement has been
entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding
companies or subsidiaries of the holding companies whereby the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18 may have
access to the rights of any other legal entities.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As of December 31, 2021, Mr. Wang Jianguo, Chairman and

Non-executive Director, was entitled to exercise approximately
68.43% voting rights in Five Star Holdings, which in turn is also
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 10% or more of the
voting rights at any general meeting of certain companies which
have been engaged in the sales of electrical appliances. Details
of such companies are set out below:

TEER

Principal activities

FEANAER

Total interests held

EAEEE
EREEREREN
HAtB

Other positions
held by Directors/
senior management
of our Company

HERTBEEERERD
BRAF(THER])

Co., Ltd. (i ZRETEE &
ARAF]) (“Hosjoy”)

Hosjoy Comfortable Smart Home
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With the mission of
‘making home
more comfortable
and healthier”,
Hosjoy endeavors
to provide one-
stop comfortable
smart home
solutions through
four major sectors:
cooling and
heating system,
fresh air system,
water purification
system and smart
system for purpose
of improving the
environment of city
families.

T EBRFEH39.4%
Approximately
39.4% by Five Star
Holdings

TS RE KRR B FF
F#19%

Approximately 19%
by Mr. Wang and
his family member

FRTEEIRER
FTREFRTER
ErE=E

Mr. Wang and Mr.
Wang Jian, our
Non-executive
Directors, served
as Directors at
Hosjoy
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rARESR
BREEEREN
HAtB A

Other positions
held by Directors/

TEER FrsamakEs senior management
BERER Entity name Principal activities  Total interests held of our Company
EMNmEITREEREERAF Suzhou Xinhongda Electrical HEES TEERFFE10% TEA
(TERMNETRED) Appliances Co., Ltd. Sales of electrical 10% by Five Star N/A
(BN TR EERBRAR) appliances Holdings
(“Suzhou Xinhongda”)
RMMEZEERFEEAR  Taizhou Fuling Electrical Appliances $5&E 28 BN RERFAE100% A
NSES SN Sales Co., Ltd. (MM =EZEEE  Sales of electrical 100% by Suzhou N/A
BN REN—R SEEAFR QR (“Taizhou Fuling”, appliances Xinhongda
2EMBAF) a wholly owned subsidiary of
Suzhou Xinhongda)
B MEEERMEERR  Yancheng Chengling Electrical THEE R BN RERFE100% A
AR ([EEZE | %M Appliances Sales Co., Ltd. Sales of electrical 100% by Suzhou N/A
MREN—RE2E (EHMAEEREERRAA) appliances Xinhongda

B AR

Xinhongda)

(“Yancheng Chengling”, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Suzhou

BRAFRAFERERE—FARREAFRNEBNE
wHN  HE2021F12A31HIEFE » E—HKAR
RAFMESTETHASERESEEKHEERT
RATBERF M ER (KRB EBKKRIN FHEEEAA
BEETRAESA0EIEH B -

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the interests of the
Group held by the single largest shareholder, for the year ended
December 31, 2021, the single largest shareholder or any Director
has no interest in any business (other than the businesses of
the Group) that is subject to disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules and that directly or indirectly competes or is likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group.
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FHEZB e RIS EEMASENTFMER L2
BEFNRATEBZHMRE (KREEAKE 2K
BERE EEREREEEBZEARARAELR
ZTI5EH) °

RBERR - EFRAREZSHMATOZFIFS
N A B RAME8 RO -

RIS EERTAZ FANEXEB. 1.5 (2T A&
X E2022F1A1HREWEFRIEATREE
EA15{K) BlE2021F12A31HLFEES - B
BRERERENTHEE (FURN AERNH
B 0T
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Remuneration range
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is established to review the Group’s
remuneration policy and remuneration structure for all Directors
and senior management taking into account the Group’s operating
performance, individual performance of Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 8
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

According to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code which has
been reformatted as code provision E.1.5 from January 1,
2022, the annual remuneration range (including share-based
compensation) for Directors, Supervisors and senior management
members for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

A

Number of Individuals

£ % 1,000,000/ 7T

1,000,001;8 702 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 7T % 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 &7 % 4,000,000 7T

nil - HK$1,000,000 10

HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$4,000,000

ARBE021FEAFEXNHKIEA - RREEZSHA
TIBEARRRIBEMR
R ESEFGE

ARABERAKKEBRAGENFBENAFRES
FARE R MITE6(b) °

RS HE - ANEE W EE R ENERURER
BHFKF -

EEFHRERX

ARABERFREZEMERR  UWREARBEET4E
FEAEAMNEEEE LRERENTETRAS
BH R AT MR SR HRE o

No payment amount made by the Company in 2021 to procure
such person with high emolument to join in our Company.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 6(b) to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, no forfeited contributions had been
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has maintained Directors liability insurance to
protect the Directors of the Company against any losses that may
arise out of their actual or alleged misconduct.
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EE  EERRSTHRAERKS - HEKR
DRESFZEERXR

HRARER2021F12 A31 B AR E BB AT
FiRET - #HR2021F12A8318  B5LBHEK
BIEXVEBET R85 E0 K EE352& W 1 i AR A A7)
BEE EERERTHAE -

RERERAITEY  EF EFRESTTHRAR
RARBREBEER (ERERESFLREGRIIE

XVER) ety « R RERETHE - ARE
EFRPERAIEXVEE7RSDBAGEAARRE
B AR (BREREZES R AEKRGIH
BREREMIRASEBNER SRR - LARE
EHE LB EOIFIS2EMNREFH AZXIKAIEER
MAnERLRE B ARBELETHETAESE
TEFXHNFRETRIMGARRF REBB N
BamloRR (Bt E - ExRAEEIINERERX
M nE AR EEEREE) T

THE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF EACH
OF OUR DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As the Company has not been listed on the main board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange as at December 31, 2021, Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV and section 352 of SFO are not applicable to the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of our Company as at
December 31, 2021.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions
of each of our Directors, Supervisors and chief executive in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which is required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which is required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which is required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (for this purpose, the relevant
provisions of the SFO will be interpreted as if they applied to the
Supervisors) will be as follows:
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RAERATNER Interest in our Company
RAAREERST
REAEHER
REBERRGH BAEA
BRESESN Approximate
Approximate  percentage of
BENRHEA percentage of  shareholding in
Number of shareholding  the total issued
B RpER Sharesto  EME in the relevant Shares of
BR Shareholder Position Class of Shares be held  Nature of interest  class of Shares the Company
TRE Wang Jianguo BEERFFHIEE  HR 39516334  EXEBA 21.92% 7.02%
the Chairman of the H Shares Beneficial Owner
Board and non- RER 114439526  EHEBEBA 29.93% 20.34%
Executive Director ~ Domestic Shares Beneficial Owner
Hik 2991759  RiFzERER™ 1.66% 0.53%
H Shares Interest in a controlled
corporation™e?
RER 8,664,152  RiFzERER™ 2.27% 1.54%
Domestic Shares Interest in a controlled
corporation™e?
"EE Xu Xiuxian PTESRERNOE  HR 18,295,661  EXEHA 10.15% 3.25%
Executive Director and H Shares Beneficial Owner
the Chief Executive W& 52,984,339  EXEBA 13.86% 9.42%
Officer Domestic Shares Beneficial Owner
Th Wang Jian FUTES HER 7455912 EBHEEEA 4.14% 1.33%
Non-executive Director H Shares Beneficial Owner
RER 21592364  EEEHA 5.65% 3.84%
Domestic Shares Beneficial Owner
3 Li Wei ES Hik 745591  EBEEBA 0.41% 0.13%
Supervisor H Shares Beneficial Owner
RER 2150237  EFXEEA 0.56% 0.38%
Domestic Shares Beneficial Owner
fizE Notes:
1. FuiER AT E 1 All interests stated are long position.
2. THEAEBBAEERERERAT CTELEF 2. Mr. Wang indirectly controlled 99% equity interest in Nanjing

TEATF#168.43% MIE M N F)) MEIEHIE
REHACEEERL (BREE)99%ME -
EARBHCEEESRL (ERAE)EERH
2,991,759 H% 528,664, 152 W& % o
b STRAWRARERRACEERSL(F
BEE) ITHRH P EEER -

Yuanbai Enterprise Management Centre (Limited Partnership)
through Five Star Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (a company in
which Mr. Wang was entitled to exercise approximately 68.43%
voting rights). Nanjing Yuanbai Enterprise Management Centre
(Limited Partnership) directly holds 2,991,759 H Shares and
8,664,152 Domestic Shares. Therefore, Mr. Wang was deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Nanjing Yuanbai
Enterprise Management Centre (Limited Partnership).
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BEXPREEIN  RERERAIITEE  AQA
B EERESTHRAERROBERARFR
HiggzE (EERBHFRBEEMEXVE) B
0~ MR REEE T HEA LR SRR RIEE
HEAEGRPIEXVEE7 R8N BAMGARRLE
BB A EEIAR (BRREESLIE K
PIEBGRXEFRRREENEDEIAR)  HRE
&5 R BB DI 352 15 R E R B & IR DI Frig
BRMOERIOAR  IBRBRETRREANE
RRR R BB FTERIORR °

FERREEMALTRARD RAAER D E

BmRKE

HRARBR2021F12 A31 B AR E BB AT
FIRET - #HR2021FE 128318 B5RBEK
BISEXVEBEE 2 2355 5B & 55 336 &30 38 FE i AR A A
FTERR -REFEHAAN  BEREBRERAITAH
B U TAL (WIEARREERERTTRAR) R
A& sk AR BARR 1 P ¥ B BRI B H R A E KB B XV
BB 2 37 BRI M AR A A B8 50 8 AR RIAR IR
BHERBAEKAIEIIHRTENZTDMARESK

NP
=R

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none
of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions deemed or
taken under the relevant provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be entered in the register referred to therein under
section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As the Company has not been listed on the main board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange as at December 31, 2021, Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV and section 336 of the SFO are not applicable to
the Substantial Shareholders of our Company as at December
31, 2021. To the best of Directors’ knowledge, as of the Latest
Practicable Date, the following persons (not being the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO which were
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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RARAE RS

R AEHER

WEBERIRGAH LR 1
BREQTEAL  Approximate
Approximate  percentage of

BENRHEE percentage of  shareholding in
Number of shareholding the total issued
R Sharesto  E#HME in the relevant Shares of
BR Shareholder Class of Shares be held  Nature of interest class of Shares the Company
FEEE (RE) R i Alibaba (China) Network Hi& 24915812 BREEA 13.82% 4.43%
BRAR (Hi2) Technology Co., Ltd. (Nofe )~ H Shares Beneficial Owner
AR 72,156,332 BmEEA 18.87% 12.83%
Domestic Shares Beneficial Owner
PROZBREERE Central SOEs Industrial Hi 6,921,056 EmEAA 3.84% 1.23%
EeRABRAR (M3 Investment Fund for Poor H Shares Beneficial Owner
Area Co., Ltd. (Note 3) AR 20,043,418 BREBA 5.24% 3.56%

Domestic Shares

Beneficial Owner

iR RIR

MEDRE (FE)BERMARAFREE (h
Bl) MEARARMAMNIRERMER AR D
PIHEH H57.59% 2 35.75% iz o A (R
Bl) MBS AR AR KNI RERM AR QA S
Taobao China Holding Limited2&#%H -
i Taobao China Holding LimitedfTaobao
Holding Limited2&#7% ° Taobao Holding
Limited R 2EEEEZEREGR QI EE
2EAMBLF - Al - BT (FE)HEERA
A I RSEFAM AR A - Taobao China
Holding Limited » Taobao Holding Limited }&
MEEEERZERBRAFFERNFEEE
(PR Bl MR T A BR A R P B9 A 9 Fh R 5 4

Eo

PRMGEBNEEREEZSKRMDAERDRRE
£ | HERASEXELSEEARAREE -
Wi) A NBHERE (SR ERERE - RE
EREH BEEE EREER BRI
R7) #EA30.49% @ SREFBRELEL5%
F10%RIBRHE ¢ Kii) BFIER 104 BB R
F69.51% @ EWREFARPLESS5% A THIK
e ROESHBEBKREBRELEEREREZE
GRAEIEH] o

Notes:

2.

All interests stated are long position.

Alibaba (China) Network Technology Co., Ltd. is held as to
57.59% and 35.75% by Taobao (China) Software Co., Ltd. and
Zhejiang Tmall Technology Co., Ltd., respectively. Taobao
(China) Software Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Tmall Technology Co.,
Ltd. are wholly owned by Taobao China Holding Limited, which
in turn is wholly owned by Taobao Holding Limited. Taobao
Holding Limited is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Alibaba
Group Holding Limited. Therefore, Taobao (China) Software
Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Tmall Technology Co., Ltd., Taobao China
Holding Limited, Taobao Holding Limited and Alibaba Group
Holding Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Alibaba (China) Network Technology Co., Ltd.

Central SOEs Industrial Investment Fund for Poor Area Co.,
Ltd. (“SOE IIF") was managed by SDIC Chuangyi Industry
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BB EIREXESERBRAF)
and was owned as to i) 30.49% by six institutional shareholders
(mainly engaged in equity investment, equity management
consulting, telecom operations, energy investment and
integrated infrastructure services) each holding 5% to 10%
equity interest in SOE IIF, and ii) 69.51% by the remaining 104
institutional shareholders each holding no more than 5% equity
interest in SOE IIF. SOE IIF is ultimately controlled by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the State Council of the PRC (Bt N EEEEEEREES).
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B EXPrREES  MESHA  REREERATTT
BH - BEEAHAL (LFARREFLAESITHA
BAL) RARARMD REEBOHAEEREZS R
HIRGHIEXVEIE 2R3N BARBEN RS IKE
HIREE S R EIEPIFE 336 16RTFRLARRA A
BRFERMzEEIAAR -

R A0 BB =T &

BEEMA > AARRBEHAREEREERA
TEMYET L ABERRERAITANTEFE
TAERAREENREFBAE  ERRHEE
BREREFERERAFEERIRFIMMD LT

£

iR AR 0 180

AR FIR R P B B B 4T B R AT
ST EBE R BT A S A R
BB RARNRGTIRG  RBRAA TN LA
A L B A A A BT IR 9 40 k4 B B
-

BERXS
B

BAIE ETREARMBEAL CEER LTRANE
AR NEREBEET TETRS - HEXSR
RS BIRE ETRBBR BN ER

HEREAL

RIEETRA - BEEMETLZHH T T H
BRERMNEEAL

BEAL BEREE
fEEEHRE BPWEIERRZ—
s HFMES

Save as disclosed above, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge
and as of the Latest Practicable Date, there was no person (not
being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered
in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, the Company did not
enter into, and as of the Latest Practicable Date did not have,
any pre-IPO employee share plan, post-IPO share option plan or
post-IPO restricted share unit plan during the Reporting Period
and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company did not enter into, and as of the Latest Practicable
Date did not have, any equity-linked agreements which would or
might result in the issue of Shares by the Company, or require
the Company to enter into any agreements which would or might
result in the issue of Shares by the Company, during the Reporting
Period and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
OVERVIEW

We have in the past conducted certain transactions with entities
that become our connected persons (as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) upon Listing. Such transactions continue
after Listing and therefore constitute our continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

RELEVANT CONNECTED PERSONS
The following parties with whom we have entered into transactions

are regarded as our connected persons under the Listing Rules:

Connected Person Connected Relationship

Alibaba China One of our substantial shareholders

Directors Our Directors
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IRRETERERS NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

AR ARREZ2021F12A31HIEFEWIE LT  Since our Company has not been listed for the year ended

AR A ETRENETTNAZENFEEER S EHRR  December 31, 2021, annual review and reporting requirements

ETEBARARREE2021F12 A31ALFE - under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are not applicable to our
Company for the year ended December 31, 2021.

TXEFIANRRIAEILME TIHEREIFERERS  Below set out the details of certain non-exempt continuing
BIEEIS © connected transactions entered by our Company.

MEBBHERESERGS

R2021F 128218 » AAREMEEEH
BB AR S EERWZE ([MEREHR
BHEIERRE]) - Bt REBRE MM
BEEFEE REBEAREER (B21F
BTARREXAERMEEETER) BR
AE FTEEHEZE2023F12A31H1E M
BEERHEHEEELAGEILE TRERE
B WEBT EMRBFE14AZE R HAb
HRERMERBEE ©

RN B B S B IER B ER T2
BERER, SEBRABEAEETTA
#8170 2 TSR AT DA DR A R A A
IR - R B R AR
ok TEEERER /5B A
B 6 4200 L BB 0 SRR AT B W 2 O R R
FRETHA -

1. Alibaba China Sales Framework Agreement

On December 21, 2021, the Company entered into the
sales framework agreement with an associate of Alibaba
China (“Alibaba China Sales Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the Group agreed to provide Alibaba
China and/or its associates with goods (including but not
limited to household appliances and consumer electronics)
for a term commencing on the Listing Date and ending on
December 31, 2023. The Alibaba China Sales Framework
Agreement may be renewed as the parties may mutually
agree, subject to the compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

Subject to the terms of the Alibaba China Sales Framework
Agreement, Alibaba China and/or its associates will enter
into specific agreements or place purchase orders with
the Group to set out specific terms and conditions in
respect of the supply of goods. The consideration payable
by Alibaba China and/or its associates under the Alibaba
China Sales Framework Agreement will be paid at the time
and according to the method to be agreed in specific
agreements or purchase orders.
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HAARERENERAERNEMHISZ2E
EEREBERED WEEEHBE-—ERER
BEBBEPRARPIREE TEM - B
AEEERERAETHRETHRER /M
EEmnETRERKRER - Bit - WEB
EBhER,REBEAZENRMNEEZS
Mo o M EEERBEHEEERGRE Nt
TORZINAEE KRB EEBKBRET
RIERERRIGTETT ©

EERE

M EEERBEHEEERBRE M ETHR
ZERERDNTRHEPEEETE -

AEEWWMEDEREE SEBEAHE
BmERESEAEENREHE TEILS
=R EmEBRMRITHSERERE

EEREF

BB EEREBRAERE R
BB NNEBIEATHEERE KA
XGREE BTEBERBITHERBIE=
FIRENER - RIEMECE R HHEER
EHAER - RIS EEERT LB
SHERTE -

AREREAMNECEREE S EBE AR
CEBERATAE  BEMEBYE=ZFHATIER
HERE  AEEBREMEEEREE
HEBMBAGUIHEREN  ERELWR
EBYARMEUERBRAREBERE
B UEBRTME ZEERAE - Ll
FFrliERMEEE R BREEELRBREEBETNZ
RGBIE—MREEGTETT B FAEEER
RAREBRREZFz= - BMER B@ETE
BEIOREBERNEENEEBRRET

Reasons and benefits for the transactions

Alibaba China has been purchasing certain goods from
us during its ordinary course of business given the price
advantage of the merchandise offered by our Group
compared to other market players. Furthermore, the Group
is authorized as designated agents or sellers of certain
types and/or brands of goods in certain areas. Therefore,
Alibaba China and/or its associates could only purchase
such goods from us. The transaction contemplated under
the Alibaba China Sales Framework Agreement is made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group
and on normal commercial terms.

Pricing basis

The prices of transactions contemplated under the Alibaba
China Sales Framework Agreement shall be determined by
negotiation on an arm’s length basis.

The price for selling goods to Alibaba China and/or its
associates by the Group shall be determined with reference
to the price of the goods that the Group could sell to the
Independent Third Parties and prevailing market price.

Pricing procedures

The selling price of the goods are to be separately
negotiated for each sold by the parties based on the
principles that the selling price to be paid shall be
determined on normal commercial terms after arm’s
length negotiation, and shall be no less favourable
than the prevailing market price and the price offered
by Independent Third Parties. The parties will enter
into separate sales order in respect of each sales in
accordance with the terms of the Alibaba China Sales
Framework Agreement.

To ensure the selling price to Alibaba China and/or its
associates are fair and reasonable and comparable to
those offered to Independent Third Parties, the Group will
compare the price in relation to the similar product type
and volume with at least two other independent companies
prior to entering into sales order with Alibaba China and/
or its associates so as to know the prevailing market
price. The Directors consider that the above procedures
can ensure that the transactions under the Alibaba China
Sales Framework Agreement will be conducted on normal
commercial terms and not prejudicial to the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders. We confirmed that such
pricing procedures are in accordance with the Group’s

pricing policy.
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Historical figures and annual caps

We started to sell goods to Alibaba China and/or its
associates in 2019. The historical amounts of the
transactions contemplated under the Alibaba China Sales
Framework Agreement were RMB298.7 million, RMB120.3
million and RMB74.7 million for the years ended December
31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively.

Our proposed annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the Alibaba China Sales Framework
Agreement for the years ending December 31, 2022
and 2023 are RMB80.0 million and RMB60.0 million,
respectively.

Alibaba China Purchasing Framework Agreement

On December 21, 2021, the Company entered into the
purchasing framework agreement with an associate of
Alibaba China (“Alibaba China Purchasing Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Group agreed to
purchase goods (including but not limited to household
appliances and consumer electronics) from Alibaba China
and/or its associates for a term commencing on the Listing
Date and ending on December 31, 2023.

The Alibaba China Purchasing Framework Agreement may
be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject
to the compliance with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations.

Subject to the terms of the Alibaba China Purchasing
Framework Agreement, the Group will enter into specific
agreements or place purchase orders with the Alibaba
China and/or its associates to set out specific terms
and conditions in respect of the supply of goods. The
consideration payable by the Group under the Alibaba
China Purchasing Framework Agreement will be paid at the
time and according to the method to be agreed in specific
agreements or purchase orders.
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Reasons and benefits for the transactions

The Group has been purchasing certain goods from
Alibaba and/or its associates given the price advantage
of such goods offered by Alibaba and/or its associates
compared to other market players. The transaction
contemplated under the Alibaba China Purchasing
Framework Agreement is made in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and on normal commercial
terms.

Pricing basis

The prices of transactions contemplated under the
Alibaba China Purchasing Framework Agreement shall be
determined by negotiation on an arm'’s length basis.

The price for purchasing certain goods from Alibaba China
and/or its associates by the Group shall be determined
with reference to the price of the goods that the Group
could purchase from the Independent Third Parties and
prevailing market prices.

Pricing procedures

The purchase price of the goods are to be separately
negotiated for each purchase by the parties based on
the principles that the purchase price payable shall be
determined on normal commercial terms after arm’s
length negotiation, and shall be no less favourable than
the prevailing market price and the price offered by the
Independent Third Parties.

The parties will enter into separate purchase order in
respect of each purchase in accordance with the terms of
the Alibaba China Purchasing Framework Agreement.

To ensure the purchase price offered by Alibaba China
and/or its associates are fair and reasonable and
comparable to those offered by Independent Third
Parties, the Group will compare the price in relation to the
similar product type and volume from at least two other
independent companies prior to entering into purchase
order with Alibaba China and/or its associates so as to
know the prevailing market price. The Directors consider
that the above procedures can ensure that the transactions
under the Alibaba China Purchasing Framework Agreement
will be conducted on normal commercial terms and
not prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders. We confirmed that such pricing procedures
are in accordance with the Group’s pricing policy.
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Historical figures and annual caps

The historical amounts of the transactions contemplated
under the Alibaba China Purchasing Framework Agreement
were RMB1.3 million, RMB13.7 million and RMB108.9
million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2019 and
2020, respectively. The Company purchased goods of
RMBO from Alibaba China and/or its associates during the
year ended December 31, 2021.

Our proposed annual caps of the transactions
contemplated under the Alibaba China Purchasing
Framework Agreement for the years ending December 31,
2022 and 2023 are RMB50.0 million and RMB100.0 million,
respectively.

ANNUAL REVIEW CONDUCTED BY INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent Non-executive Directors of our Company have
reviewed aforementioned continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed such transactions are:

(1) entered into in the ordinary course of business;

(2) conducted with normal commercial terms or more favorable
terms; and

(3) conducted pursuant to agreements of relevant transactions,
with fair and reasonable terms and in the interests of
Directors of Listed Issuers as a whole.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, for the year ended
December 31, 2021 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company had no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which were required to be disclosed pursuant to
the provisions of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules relating to the
disclosure of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered into by Our
Group during the Reporting Period are disclosed in Note 36 to
the financial statements. Save as disclosed in Paragraph headed
Connected Transactions of this annual report, related party
transactions disclosed in Note 36 are not deemed as connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or are
exempt from the reporting, announcement and Shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Our Company had
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and were disclosed in this annual report.

AUDITORS

During the Reporting Period, the Company issued overseas listed
foreign Shares (H Shares) and was listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for which KPMG was appointed as
the auditor (the auditor engaged by our Company was ShineWing
Certified Public Accountants LLP ({E7k F& 560 &= 757 (5 5k
LBAE)) in 2020 and before). Save as disclosed above, our
Company has not changed auditor for past three years. The
Company’s accompanying financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2021, prepared in accordance with IFRSs, have
been audited by KPMG.

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming 2021 annual general meeting
and is eligible and willing to offer itself for re-election. A resolution
will be proposed at the 2021 annual general meeting to re-appoint
KPMG as the auditor.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and set its terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee consists of
three members, namely Mr. HUANG Shun (Chairman), Mr. WANG
Yi and Mr. LIU Xiangdong. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. HUANG Shun, who is an Independent Non-executive Director
with appropriate accounting and related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.
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Following discussions with the auditor, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and discussed matters relating to the Company’s risk
management and internal controls. There were no disagreements
between the Board and the Audit Committee with respect to the
accounting treatment method adopted by the Company.

The Company has prepared its annual results for the year ended
December 31, 2021 in accordance with IFRS.

On behalf of the Board
Chairman
Mr. WANG Jianguo

Nanjing, the People’s Republic of China
April 20, 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance to protect Shareholders’ interests and
enhance the corporate value. As the Company was not listed as
at December 31, 2021, the CG Code was not applicable to the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 but shall be
applicable to the Company from the date of listing. In the opinion
of the Board, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions in the CG Code for the period from the Listing Date
until the Latest Practicable Date.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which has been re-arranged as
code provision A.2.1 from January 1, 2022. The Board will review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, compliance
with the Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures
made in this Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code as its code of conduct for
securities transactions by the Directors.

As the Company has not been listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange during the Reporting Period, the Model Code was not
applicable to the Company during the Reporting Period. However,
having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the provisions set out in
the Model Code from the Listing Date until the Latest Practicable
Date.

The Company has also established written guidelines for
securities transactions by relevant employees who may have
inside information about the Company on terms no less stringent
than the Model Code (the “Guidelines for Securities Transactions
by Relevant Employee”). The Company has not been aware of any
non-compliance by employees with the Guidelines for Securities
Transactions by Relevant Employee.
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The following table sets out the information of the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company during the

Reporting Period and as at the Latest Practicable Date:

& EARRQREENRE ZEEH

Name Position in the Company Date of appointment
BE

Directors

R BEERMIFNTES 2015%F 11 16 H

WANG Jianguo

the Chairman of the Board and
Non-executive Director

REE WiTES

XU Xiuxian Executive Director

it WITES

ZHAO Liangsheng Executive Director

T FENITES

WANG Jian Non-executive Director

BARFK EMITES

CAl Zhonggqiu Non-executive Director

Tk FEITESF

WANG Yi Non-executive Director

IRERER AISEFNITE S

XU Jinrong Former Non-executive Director
- RIFEITE S

LI Shaochua Former Non-executive Director
SP1 RIZERITE S

BAI Bo Former Non-executive Director
=IE B IERITES

HUANG Shun Independent Non-executive Director
EIEES B IENITESR

LIU Xiangdong
(]
CHENG Zichuan

Independent Non-executive Director
BYFMITES

Independent Non-executive Director

EISE RIS SFRITE S

LUO Dejun Former Independent Non-executive
Director

¥R AIBY IENITES

Al Min Former Independent Non-executive

Director

November 16, 2015

2015911 A16H

November 16, 2015

202145 H10H

May 10, 2021

2015411 A16 H

November 16, 2015

20215 A10H

May 10, 2021

20215 H10H

May 10, 2021

201692 A1H (20214510 B HT)
February 1, 2016 (ceased on May 10, 2021)
20184 A 14H (202145 A10 A HT)
April 14, 2018 (ceased on May 10, 2021)
2018 4 A14H (20215 A 10 HEHE)
April 14, 2018 (ceased on May 10, 2021)
201648 A25H

August 25, 2016

20215 A10H

May 10, 2021

20215 H10H

May 10, 2021

201698 A25H (20214510 EHT)
August 25, 2016 (ceased on May 10, 2021)

201648 A25H (202145 A 10 B EMT)
August 25, 2016 (ceased on May 10, 2021)
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HE EAD B EENRS ZEEH
Name Position in the Company Date of appointment
EE

Supervisors
T

WANG Xinghua
FE

LI Wei

THE

MAO Yijun
SEE

Y| Suning

BREEAR

BEE

Supervisor

B=

Supervisor

B=x

Supervisor

IS

Former Supervisor

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BREE
XU Xiuxian
iz prtas

ZHAO Liangsheng

pjidi=2a

XING Jianhong
7

SUN Chao

BEARWE

BREATE

Chief Executive Officer

EREMBE EZSWERBIEH

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary to
the Board and Vice President

Blias

Vice President

ElEGE

Vice President

Joint Company Secretary

EE

TANG Min
BRER7T
AU Wai Ching

R A RME
Joint Company Secretary
BREARME
Joint Company Secretary

201511 516H

November 16, 2015

202046 A29H
June 29, 2020
202145 H10H
May 10, 2021

201511 F16 H (202145 A10 A H1T)
November 16, 2015 (ceased on May 10, 2021)

2010F12 A6 H

December 6, 2010

20131 H1H
January 1, 2013

201541 A4H
January 4, 2015
20157 A15H
July 15, 2015

202241 A13H
January 13, 2022
20221 H13H
January 13, 2022
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Biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report. The
Board is responsible for the management and operation of the
Company and has general powers in this regard. Directors are
appointed for a term of three years and are eligible for re-election
at the end of their term. Independent Non-executive Directors
shall not hold office for more than six consecutive years.

For the period from the Listing Date until the Latest Practicable
Date, the Board has complied with the Listing Rules in relation
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) and at
least one Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

None of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of
the Company has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships) with any
other Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management.

All Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors,
bring valuable business experience, knowledge and expertise in
different areas to the Board to enable its efficient and effective
operation. The Independent Non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, directing and supervising the affairs of the Company
and acting in the best interests of the Company and its
Shareholders.

The Board is responsible for and has general authority over
the management and operation of our business, including the
determination of our business strategy and investment plans,
the implementation of resolutions passed at general meetings
and the exercise of other powers, functions and duties conferred
by our Articles of Association. The Board is also responsible for
formulating and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
with respect to corporate governance, risk management and
internal controls, and legal and regulatory compliance.

The Board stands at the core of the Company’s corporate
governance structure and there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the Board and the senior management.
The Company has clearly delineated the responsibilities of the
general meeting, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors
and the senior management. The Shareholders’ meeting is the
highest authority of the Company, and the Board is accountable
to the Shareholders’ meeting. The Board has established four
specialized committees, which operate under the leadership of
the Board and advise the Board on its decisions. The Board of
Supervisors oversees the Board and senior management in the
performance of their duties, as well as the financial activities, risk
management and internal controls of the Company. Under the
leadership of the Board, the senior management is responsible
for the implementation of the Board’s resolutions and for the daily
operations and management of the Company, and reports to the
Board and the Board of Supervisors.

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. WANG Jianguo is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. XU
Xiuxian is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity in our Board. Pursuant
to our board diversity policy, selection of Board candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical capabilities, professional
qualifications and skills, knowledge, length of service and other
related factors. We will also consider our own business model and
special needs. The ultimate selection of Director candidates will
be based on merits of the candidates and contribution that the
candidates will bring to our Board.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, our board
diversity policy further provides that our Board shall take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female members over
time when selecting and making recommendations on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. Our Board would ensure
that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
our Board to gender parity. Going forward and with a view to
developing a pipeline of potential successors to our Board that
may meet the targeted gender diversity ratio set out below, we
will (i) continue to make appointments based on merits with
reference to board diversity as a whole; (ii) take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of our Company by recruiting staff of
different gender; (iii) consider the possibility of nominating female
management staff who has the necessary skills and experience to
our Board; and (iv) provide career development opportunities and
more resources in training female staff with the aim of promoting
them to the senior management or board of our Company so that
we will have a pipeline of female senior management and potential
successors to our Board in a few years’ time. We undertake to
identify and appoint at least one female Director, with appropriate
qualification and experience, in our Board within one year from
the Listing Date. Our Directors will exercise fiduciary duties in
the process, acting in the best interests of our Company and the
Shareholders as a whole when making the relevant appointments.
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Our nomination committee is responsible for ensuring diversity
within our Board members and will use its best efforts to identify
and recommend suitable candidates, including female candidates,
for the Board’s consideration. We also welcome candidates of
different genders to apply for our mid to senior level positions.
The ultimate decision of the appointment will be based on merits
and the contribution the selected candidates could bring to our
Board and management team. Our Board believes that such
merit-based selection criteria will best enable our Company to
serve our Shareholders and other stakeholders going forward.
After Listing, our nomination committee will review our board
diversity policy and its implementation from time to time to ensure
its implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness, and
the same will be disclosed in our corporate governance report,
including any measurable objectives set for implementing the
board diversity policy and the progress on achieving these
objectives on an annual basis.

Continuing Professional Development for Directors

Directors shall participate in appropriate continuing professional
development in accordance with code provision A.6.5, which has
been reformatted as code provision C.1.4 from 1 January 2022, of
the CG Code to develop and update their knowledge and skills to
ensure informed and relevant contribution to the Board. Seminars
are also arranged on a regular basis to update the Directors from
time to time on the latest developments and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements to
ensure that they have a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and their obligations under the relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The Directors are also
provided with regular updates on the performance, position and
prospects of the Company to enable the Board as a whole and
each of the Directors to discharge their duties. The Company’s
solicitors and joint company secretaries update and provide
written training materials to the Directors from time to time on their
roles, functions and responsibilities.
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Directors are required to submit to the Company details of the
training they have received in each financial year in order for the
Company to keep proper training records of the Directors. During

the period from the Listing Date to the date of the Directors’
Training Confirmation Letter, the Company held the following

trainings for the Directors:

FBREBEEXRRE
(P&t

Director Continuing
Professional
Development

EEnA Name of Directors Involved (Note)

EERFIYITES: Chairman and Non-executive Director:

B A Mr. WANG Jianguo a,b

BITEE Executive Directors:

wEBRE Mr. XU Xiuxian ab

WA E Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng a,b

FHITESE : Non-executive Directors:

FREE Mr. WANG Jian a,b

kL Mr. CAl Zhonggiu a,b

FEEAE Mr. WANG Vi a,b

BUFHTES: Independent Non-executive Directors:

Bl R e E Mr. LIU Xiangdong ab

BFEEE Mr. CHENG Zichuan a,b

=ELE Mr. HUANG Shun ab

FiaE - Notes:

a: 2MEMEFEEMNBERARAEBEHEAN  a Participating in the training offered by the law firm and related
=il to the Company’s business

b: MEZERE (BRECXELREH  EEHE - b: Reading materials on a variety of topics, including corporate

AR E A ARRAR) Bb

governance issues, Directors’ duties, Listing Rules and other

relevant laws
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Board Meetings

Notice of all regular Board meetings of the Company shall be
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance to give them an
opportunity to attend the regular meetings and place matters on
the agenda.

For other Board meetings and Board committee meetings, the
Company generally gives a reasonable notice. The meeting
agenda and accompanying Board papers are sent to the
Directors or Board committee members at least three days prior
to the Board meeting or Board committee meeting to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and are
well prepared to attend the Board meeting or Board committee
meeting. If a Director or Board committee member is unable to
attend a meeting, he/she will be informed of the matters to be
discussed and will have an opportunity to inform the Chairman
of his/her views prior to the meeting. Minutes of the meetings
shall be kept by the Joint Company Secretaries and copies are
circulated among all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings shall
record in detail the matters considered and decisions made by the
Board and Board committees, including any issues raised by the
Directors. Minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee
meeting are drafted and sent to the Directors for their comments
within a reasonable time after the date of the meeting. Minutes of
the Board meetings are open for inspection by all Directors.
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RREHA - ARFHLEIT T ZRERSHI B2 During the Reporting Period, three Board meetings were held and
KRR EG - FESR LMgZMOLFELs0T 2 general meetings were convened, and the attendance records
of each Director at the Board meetings above are as follows.
HERE
BRERAHE
Attendances/
EEpE Name of Directors Number of Meetings
BEEg RERE
Board general
meetings meetings
EERFFHITES: Chairman and Non-executive Director:
TR E Mr. WANG Jianguo 3/3 2/2
HITES Executive Directors:
BRFEBRE Mr. XU Xiuxian 3/3 2/2
Bt e Mr. ZHAO Liangsheng 3/3 2/2
FHITESE : Non-executive Directors:
TlEsfEsE Mr. WANG Jian 3/3 2/2
PR A Mr. CAl Zhonggiu 3/3 2/2
Tk AE Mr. WANG Yi 3/3 2/2
BIFLRILE (202155 A 10 B HE) Mr. XU Jinrong (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1 1/1
FES A (2021F5 10 A EHE) Mr. LI Shaohua (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1 1/1
BDR Se 4 (202145 B 10 BEMT) Mr. BAI Bo (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1 1/1
BUFHTES: Independent Non-executive Directors:
2R EE Mr. LIU Xiangdong 3/3 2/2
BFEEE Mr. CHENG Zichuan 3/3 2/2
=B A Mr. HUANG Shun 3/3 2/2
BSEHE (2021F5 A10HEE) Mr. LUO Dejun (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1 1/1
Y RAEA (2021F5 A10 B HT) Mr. Al Min (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1 1/1

REZFGSHIE  ARARASREEE MK RS
EERUDANEBEDRERZ2EN - TES
TRFEIFRITEERN - URBIREH AR %K
BREEESEEZER -

EEXgZETg

REPEBRZER JEZHR  RAERMEWRAR
EHNEERERESR  BAKLTHNEEEFEXRE
g ABREZEE  FEIZEES REZEEVH
MEEZLZES -

During the Board meetings, the senior management of the
Company provides the Directors with information on the business
activities and development of the Company in a timely manner.
The Executive Directors also frequently communicate with the
Non-executive Directors to obtain their views on the Company’s
business development and operations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In accordance with relevant PRC laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association and the corporate governance practice prescribed in
the Listing Rules, we have formed four board committees, namely
the Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.
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STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Strategy Committee of our Company consists of three
Directors, namely Mr. WANG Jianguo, Mr. XU Xiuxian and Mr.
WANG Yi. Mr. WANG Jianguo serves as the chairman of the
committee. The primary duties of the Strategy Committee of our
Company include (but are not limited to):

1. studying and regularly advising on our business objectives
and medium - to long-term development strategy in
accordance with operation and the changes in the market;

2. reviewing annual business plans and any material change
or adjustment in implementation and advise the Board
accordingly;

3. regularly assessing and inspecting the implementation of

the above issues after they have been approved by the
Board and report back to the Board; and

4. handling other matters required by laws, regulations, rules,
normative documents, regulatory rules of the jurisdictions
where the Shares of our Company are listed, the Articles of
Association or as authorised by the Board.

R EHME - BEZE 8782083 - MT2%  During the Reporting Period, the Strategy Committee held 2

ZENREBHELFERER meetings. The following is the attendance of each member during
the Reporting Period:

HERE &

EHRE

Attendance/Number

EEpE Name of Directors of Meetings Held

TEBLE (EF) Mr. WANG Jianguo (Chairman) 2/2

wEBRE Mr. XU Xiuxian 2/2

T8t (20215 F10HEE) Mr. WANG Yi (appointed on May 10, 2021) 11

S (202145 A10BET) Mr. LI Shaohua (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1

FEEE R AE (2021F5 A10BEE) Mr. LUO Dejun (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1

RR%&HE (2021F5 10 EE) Mr. Al Min (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of our Company consists of three Directors,
namely Mr. WANG Yi, Mr. LIU Xiangdong and Mr. HUANG Shun.
Mr. HUANG Shun serves as the chairman of the committee. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee of our Company include
(but are not limited to):

1. supervising the annual audit work, making judgement
on the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of
the information in the audited financial reports before
submitting to the Board for review;

2. providing recommendations on engaging or changing
external auditors, and supervising the performance of
external auditors;

3. responsible for the communication between internal
auditors and external auditors; and Directors, supervisors
and senior management; and

4. handling other matters required by laws, regulations, rules,
normative documents, regulatory rules of the jurisdictions
where the Shares of our Company are listed, the Articles of
Association or as authorised by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held 4
meetings. The following is the attendance of each member during
the Reporting Period:

HERE &

EHRE

Attendance/Number

EEpE Name of Directors of Meetings Held
S v Mr. WANG Yi 474
iR AE Mr. LIU Xiangdong 4/4
HIELAE (XE) Mr. HUANG Shun (Chairman) 4/4
Z A (20215 810 B EHT) Mr. LI Shaohua (ceased on May 10, 2021) TE A N/A
BEBLR I E (202165 10 B EIME) Mr. XU Jinrong (ceased on May 10, 2021) TEA N/A
BSE 4 (2021F5 810 HEHT) Mr. LUO Dejun (ceased on May 10, 2021) TEA N/A

Y R%&4 (202145 A 10 B HIE) Mr. Al Min (ceased on May 10, 2021) TEA N/A
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of our Company consists of three
Directors, namely Mr. WANG Yi, Mr. CHENG Zichuan, and Mr. LIU
Xiangdong, who were appointed on May 10, 2021. Mr. CHENG
Zichuan serves as the chairman of the committee. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee of our Company include (but
are not limited to):

1. formulating procedures and standards for the election
of Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the proposed
procedures and standards;

2. making recommendations to the Board on the nomination
of candidates for Directors and senior management to the
Board;

3. preliminarily examining the eligibility of candidates for

Directors and senior management;

4. making recommendations to the Board on the nomination
of candidates for chairmen and members of the Board
committees; and

5. handling other matters required by laws, regulations, rules,
normative documents, regulatory rules of the jurisdictions
where the Shares of our Company are listed, the Articles of
Association or as authorised by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 1
meeting. The following is the attendance of each member during
the Reporting Period:

HERE &

EHRE

Attendance/Number

EEpR Name of Directors of Meetings Held

%BFEB L (202145 510 B HT) Mr. XU Xiuxian (ceased on May 10, 2021) 11

S (202145 A10 B EE) Mr. LI Shaohua (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1

BISELE(XR) Mr. LUO Dejun (Chairman) 11
(202145 4108 EH1E) (ceased on May 10, 2021)

NRAEE (202145 B 10 BEHT) Mr. Al Min (ceased on May 10, 2021) 11

=IBL A (2021F5 A10 B EE) Mr. HUANG Shun (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1

FBFELE (2021F5 A10B &) Mr. CHENG Zichuan (appointed on May 10, 2021) TEA N/A

Tkt (20215 A10BET) Mr. WANG Yi (appointed on May 10, 2021) TEA N/A

BA R L (20215 A10B £ F) Mr. LIU Xiangdong (appointed on May 10, 2021) TEm N/A
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The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy which
sets out the selection criteria and procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors and considerations for succession
plan of the Board, with an aim of ensuring the balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diverse perspectives of the Board to
satisfy the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Director nomination policy contains several factors to
assess the suitability of proposed candidates and their potential
contribution to the Board, including but not limited to the following:

° reputation for character and integrity;

° in compliance with the qualification stipulated in the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Rules;

° commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest;

° diversity in the aspects, including but not limited to,
of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service; and

° potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the
Board.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
basic principles to be followed to ensure that the Board has an
appropriate balance of required skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives to enhance the effective operation of the Board and
maintain a high level of corporate governance. The Nomination
Committee shall review this policy and measurable objectives
at least annually when appropriate to ensure the continued and
effective operation of the Board.
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Currently, all members of the Board are male. To achieve gender
diversity on the Board, the Board will appoint a female member no
later than December 31, 2024.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has also adopted procedures for nomination
and election of Directors. The policy sets out the criteria and
procedures for selection and performance evaluation and provides
guidance to the Board on the nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company. The Board believes that a clear
selection process facilitates corporate governance, ensures
the continuity of Board, maintains the leadership of Board, and
enhances the efficiency and diversity of the Board.

Both the Nomination Committee and the Board can nominate
candidates for Directors. When evaluating the suitability of
recommended candidates and their potential contributions to the
Board, the Nomination Committee may refer to certain selection
criteria such as integrity, professional qualifications and skills,
achievements and experience in the Internet and technology
fields, commitment and related contributions. The Nomination
Committee shall report the evaluation results to the Board on the
appointment of suitable Director candidates and provide relevant
recommendations for the Board to make decisions and formulate
a general election plan. The Board shall bear the ultimate
responsibility for the selection and appointment of Directors.
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REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of our Company
consists of three Directors, namely Mr. XU Xiuxian, Mr. LIU
Xiangdong, and Mr. HUANG Shun. Mr. LIU Xiangdong serves
as the chairman of the committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of our Company include
(but are not limited to):

1. reviewing and making recommendations on the assessment
and remuneration management system for Directors and
senior management;

2. making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors, Supervisors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

3. assessing the Directors and senior management and
making recommendations; and

4. handling other matters required by laws, regulations, rules,
normative documents, regulatory rules of the jurisdictions
where the Shares of our Company are listed, the Articles of
Association or as authorised by the Board.

RIREHAR - FREEZREE 81782825 - LA During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration and Appraisal

TREEEZENREHEIEES RSN Committee held 2 meetings. The following is the attendance of
each member during the Reporting Period:

HERE &%

BEPRRH

Attendance/Number

EEnE Name of Directors of Meetings Held

wEBRE Mr. XU Xiuxian 2/2
BlRREE(EF) Mr. LIU Xiangdong (Chairman) (appointed on May 10,

(202155 B10B & 1E) 2021) 1/1
=B A Mr. HUANG Shun 2/2
/S AE (202145 A10B EE) Mr. LI Shaohua (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1
FEEERE (EF) (2021F5 108 H4E) Mr. LUO Dejun (Chairman) (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1

VR4 (2021F5 A10HHE) Mr. Al Min (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1
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EEg THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
EESHEMR Composition of Board of Supervisors
FEEESAE (EF) Mr. WANG Xinghua (Chairman)

FIEESE Mr. LI Wei

EHELLE (2021F5 8108 E ) Mr. MAO Yijun (appointed on May 10, 2021)
SEE LA (2021F5 A10BEE) Mr. YI Suning (ceased on May 10, 2021)

EREHLE - EFe2ERERBHPEATE A During the Reporting Period, all members of the Board of
RIERN(ERERKRMNABRARESEHSEHR  Supervisors have complied with the principle of integrity and

BMARIRTESTHERE - REBITEERE ©  earnestly performed their supervisory duties in accordance with
HEERR RS A QR FIE o the relevant regulations set out in the PRC Company Law, the

Articles of Association and Rules of Procedures for the Board of
Supervisors of Huitongda Network Co., Ltd. to protect the interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

20214 fF » S BRI EH WTREKZEE  For the year 2021, the Board of Supervisors held 3 meetings
RmERELEERENRN and the following is the attendance of each member during the
Reporting Period:

HERY &F

EPRE

Attendances,”

EEng Name of Supervisors Number of Meetings
FEEESAE (EF) Mr. WANG Xinghua (Chairman) 3/3
FlELE Mr. LI Wei 3/3
EEELE (2021F58108Z 1) Mr. MAO Yijun (appointed on May 10, 2021) 2/2

SEE LA (2021F5 A10BEHE) Mr. YI Suning (ceased on May 10, 2021) 1/1
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors has established a risk management and
internal control system in accordance with the requirements of
paragraph C.2.4, which has been re-arranged as paragraph
D.2.4 from January 1, 2022, of the CG Code, and is responsible
for independently reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s risk management and internal control system,
continuously monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of
its operation at least once a year. The system is designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, promote effective and efficient operations,
provide reasonable assurance of financial reporting reliability and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and safeguard
the Company’s assets. The Board of Directors can only make
reasonable but not absolute assurances that there will be no
material misrepresentation or loss.

Characteristics of risk management and internal control
organizational system

The Company has established a sound risk management and
internal control organizational system, including the Board of
Directors, the Audit Committee, the Board of Supervisors, the
Company’s management, financial management center, internal
control management center and other departments according to
the requirements of Clause C.2.2, which has been re-arranged as
code provision D.2.2 from January 1, 2022, of the CG Code, so
as to ensure that the Company has sufficient resources, employee
qualifications and experience, sufficient training courses and
relevant budget.

The Company has formulated risk management policies and
procedures, clarified the risk management structure and
responsibility permissions, established three lines of defense for
risk management and control, identified major risks that hinder the
realization of objectives, and controlled them within acceptable
levels to ensure the achievement of business objectives, the
improvement of operational efficiency, and the reliability of
financial reports and compliance with national regulations and
other compliance requirements.
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First line of defense:

The first line of defense is mainly implemented by the Company’s
business departments, which are responsible for daily operations
and for designing and implementing control measures to address
risks.

Second line of defense:

The second line of defense is mainly implemented by the
Company’s internal control management center, financial
management center, system operation department and other
departments with similar functions. This line of defense is
responsible for the formulation of policies related to operations,
information security and
internal control of the Company, as well as planning and
implementing the construction of the overall risk control system.
To ensure the implementation of such systems, the second line
of defense also assists and supervises the first line of defense in
establishing and improving risk management and internal control
systems.

finance, compliance and litigation,

Third line of defense:

The third line of defense mainly consists of the internal audit
team, the Audit Committee and the Board of Supervisors. The
Board of Directors shall assume the ultimate responsibility
for the establishment and improvement of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and the implementation
and shall serve as the highest
decision-making body for the risk management and internal
control of the Company.

of risk management,

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which has been re-arranged as
code provision A.2.1 from January 1, 2022. The Board will review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, compliance
with the Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures
made in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The Board of Directors has reviewed the risk management and
internal monitoring during the Reporting Period. The results of
the Company’s risk management and internal control during
the Reporting Period show that the Company does not have
any major risk monitoring errors, nor does it find any major
risk monitoring weaknesses. The Company is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The Board considers that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries
are effective and adequate.

We have put in place appropriate internal control procedures and
guidelines to avoid improper handling of inside information which
may constitute insider trading or breach of any other statutory
duty. At any time, access to inside information is limited to the
relevant personnel (i.e. the Directors, senior management and
relevant employees of the company) and as the situation requires
until it is disclosed or released in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Directors, senior management and relevant
employees of the Company who are in possession of potential
inside information and/or inside information are required to take
reasonable steps to ensure that adequate safeguards are in place
to ensure the strict confidentiality of inside information and that
recipients understand their responsibility to keep the information
confidential.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2021.

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for presenting a clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
inside information and other disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements. The senior management
has provided to the Board such interpretations and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company'’s financial statements and position,
which are submitted to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any event or circumstance of
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The auditor’'s statement of reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021 are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor’s remuneration for audit and non-audit services
provided to the Company during the year ended December 31,
2021 is set out below:

2B (AR TR
BR 75 38 Bl Service categories Amount (RMB’000)
FEETRTE Audit services 5,000
JEEATARTS (BIRE) Non-audit services (notes) 7,080
15 Total 12,080
BaE Notes:

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE » AR A E X AFRE
ERRIEFN RIS Z LA & AR 7,080,000 © &
P ARYES 027 000 IV A A L EBIHEERN Y
q:n °
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized
an auditor’'s remuneration of RMB7,080,000 for non-audit services in
connection with the initial public offering, of which RMB5,027,000 was
also included in the listing expenses separately disclosed above.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. TANG Min, the joint Company Secretary, is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring
that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. AU Wai Ching from
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, which
is a corporate service provider, as one of its Joint Company
Secretaries to assist Ms. TANG Min to discharge her duties as
company secretary of the Company. The key contacts of Ms. AU
Wai Ching in our Company is Ms. TANG Min.

Ms. TANG Min is aware of rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Given
that the Company has been listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange since February 18, 2022, Ms. TANG Min
will comply with the rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, Ms. AU Wai Ching has participated in
relevant professional trainings for no less than 15 hours to comply
with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which will
enable Shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions.

The annual general meeting(s) of the Company provides
opportunity for Shareholders to communicate directly with the
Directors. The Chairman of the Company, and the chairmen of
the Director Committees of the Company will attend the annual
general meeting(s) to answer Shareholders’ questions. Auditors
will also attend the annual general meeting(s) to answer questions
on the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s reports, the accounting policies and auditors’
independence.

To promote effective communication and establish a two-way
relationship and communication between the Company
and its Shareholders, the Company adopts a Shareholders’
communication policy and maintains a website at (www.htd.cn),
where up-to-date information on the Company’'s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

Policies Relating to Shareholders

The Company has established a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ comments and concerns are
properly addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

For the Company’s dividend policy, please refer to the section
headed “Report of the Directors — Business and Related
Information — Dividend Policy and Final Dividend” in this annual
report.
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Shareholders’ Rights

According to the Articles of Association, the procedures for
Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting, to
make inquiries and to make suggestions at the general meeting
are as follows:

1)

Convene an extraordinary general meeting

Shareholders who individually or collectively hold more
than 10% of the Company’s Shares may sign one or several
written requests in the same format to request the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
general meeting, and clarify the topics of the meeting. The
Board shall, in accordance with the provisions of laws,
administrative laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and the Articles of Association of the Company, provide
written feedback on whether or not to agree to hold an
extraordinary general meeting or a class general meeting
within 10 days after receiving the request.

If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general
meeting or a class general meeting, a notice of the meeting
shall be issued within 5 days after the resolution of the
Board is passed. Changes made to the original request in
the notice shall be approved by relevant Shareholders.

If the Board does not agree to hold the extraordinary
general meeting or the class general meeting or fails to
give a reply within 10 days after receipt of the proposal,
Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding no less than
10% Shares of the Company shall be entitled to propose
in writing to the Board of Supervisors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class general meeting.

If the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting or the class general
meeting, it shall serve a notice of such meeting within
5 days after receipt of the said request. In the event
of any change to the original proposal, the consent of
relevant Shareholder(s) shall be obtained. If the Board of
Supervisors fails to issue the notice for the Shareholders’
general meeting or the class general meeting within the
specified time, the Board of Supervisors shall be deemed
as failing to convene or preside the general meeting or
the class general meeting. The Shareholder(s) severally or
jointly holding no less than 10% Shares of the Company
for no less than 90 consecutive days may convene and
preside over such meeting on his or their own.
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Make enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to make enquiries about the
Company to the Board may send their enquiries to the
Investor Relations Department of the Company by email
at ir@htd.cn. The Company will not handle verbal or
anonymous enquiries in general.

Make recommendations to the Shareholders’ general
meeting

Shareholders who individually or collectively hold more
than 3% of the Company’s Shares may put forward an
interim proposal and submit it to the convener in writing
10 days before the Shareholders’ general meeting. The
convener shall issue a Supplementary notice of the
Shareholders’ general meeting within 2 days after receiving
the proposal, notify other Shareholders and submit the
interim proposal to the Shareholders’ general meeting for
approval.

A written notice shall be given at least 21 days prior to the
convening of the annual general meeting, and at least 15
days prior to the convening of the extraordinary general
meeting. Where laws, regulations and the securities
regulatory authority of the place where the Company’s
stocks are listed provide otherwise, such provisions shall
prevail.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each matter at Shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in a timely manner after each Shareholder meeting.

AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company has been listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on February 18, 2022. The latest Articles
of Association were published on the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on February 17, 2022.
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To the shareholders of Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.*
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FEifiE
PAxM D AR A7 Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.* (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 102 to 245,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2021, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at December 31, 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

For identification only.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on this matter.
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Recognition of revenue from merchandise sales

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 147 to 149.

The Key Audit Matter

The principal activities of the Group are sales of a comprehensive
suite of merchandise in lower tier cities and rural areas in the PRC
and provision of intelligent business and marketing subscription
service, offering merchant solutions and rendering other various
related services.

The Group recognized revenue from merchandise sales of
RMB65,223 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.
Management evaluates the terms of individual contracts to
determine the Group’s performance obligations and appropriate
timing of revenue recognition.

Revenue from merchandise sales is recognized at the point in
time when the control of the merchandise has been transferred to
customers, being when the goods are delivered and accepted.

We identified the recognition of revenue from merchandise sales
as a key audit matter because revenue generated therefrom
accounts for the majority of the Group’s revenue and involves
large number of individual sales orders and because revenue
is one of the key performance indicators of the Group which
increases the risk of misstatement of the timing and amount of
revenue recognized by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue from
merchandise sales included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s key internal controls in relation to revenue
recognition;

° inspecting sales contracts, on a sample basis, to
understand the terms of the sales transactions including
the terms of delivery and acceptance, applicable rebate
and/or discount arrangements and any sales return
arrangements to assess if the Group’s revenue recognition
accounting policy was in accordance with the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

° comparing sales transactions recorded during the year,
on a sample basis, with invoices, sales contracts, and
customer acceptance records, where appropriate, to
assess whether the related revenue was recognized
in accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition
accounting policy;

o confirming, on a sample basis, the amount of sales
transactions for the year ended December 31, 2021 directly
with customers and inspecting underlying documentation
relating to reconciling differences between the transaction
amounts confirmed by customers and the Group’s
accounting records;

° comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the year end date
with the underlying sales contracts, customer acceptance
records and other relevant supporting documents
to determine whether the related revenue had been
recognized in the appropriate financial year; and

° inspecting manual adjustments to revenue during the
financial year which met specific risk-based criteria,
enquiring of management about the reasons for such
adjustments and comparing details of the adjustments with
relevant underlying documentation.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.



REMRET FEMBRREABNELE

BAWEBR  EHHAMBRABEES T FHEH
REFFRERMEBWBEAHERRARG S ER
#FoUTHASERMEROREENERS - LME
[ BT (EREE)ME BRIt ZINRBEREE
B HATERERENRNBTREMEMAL
BREIREEMNRET -

EHEFITRRTINEE  BETERERRELESR
AHERETRE EX-ERERRAGTERE
BEEIR o SRR T A M BRFF S BARRSIE - INRA
BEEMERNERERAEERAMBRRER
ERBEAMBERERMELOLERE - ABERBN
B ERBR AL AT R AR E K

ERBEBBEENETETHNBRES - RAER
TEXHE  REFTEREREE - RN

. BB SRR RFFRERME RS E M5
BRGFEERERBGAORAR - HE R#IT
EtiEFAREZERR - A SERITEM
HEEMNETRE - FRARMAEENER - &
REGFA RS RER  HE E88F &
R - SOXBRARBESIZ £ - Bt ReE
EHRARFMERNEAERRANRR S
AR BE 3% 2R R 85 5R 1 G 2 m0 B K BH AR FR At 19
[\ o

o THRABHREONBEN - UHEEEN
B2 BRMLEE BEENBEE
BWAERERRER -

. FHEEEMRASTHRENREERIEL S
FHERT MR R EN SR -

SR -EER 99

Annual Report 2021

BYREEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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BYREEHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Ting Yuen.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

March 30, 2022
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mEBEmK
Consolidated statement of profit or loss
HZE2021F12 A31 HILFE (UARBFITR)

for the year ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

20214 2020
2021 2020
M et AR¥T R ARBEFTT
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 4 65,763,174 49,629,135
L PNDZN Cost of revenue (63,895,208) (48,284,624)
ER Gross profit 1,867,966 1,344,511
HA A Other revenue 5(a) 55,843 23,496
Hfth Y 25 % 58 Other net gain 5(b) 136,629 121,646
TR Research and development costs (78,547) (58,276)
HEREHMAX Selling and marketing expenses (864,241) (609,585)
TR REMEERS Administrative and other operating expenses (478,961) (415,033)
KeERHE Profit from operations 638,689 406,759
BRI Finance income 6(a) 166,308 101,006
B 75 K AR Finance costs 6(a) (879,292) (704,878)
B K AN 558 Net finance costs (712,984) (603,872)
FEIGEE & A RIEE Share of losses of associates 15 (1,820) (1,408)
MRE AR Loss before taxation 6 (76,115) (198,521)
Frig%t Income tax 7 (100,934) (81,471)
FREE Loss for the year (177,049) (279,992)
BT AT RS : Attributable to:
PAN/NGIL i 8 Equity shareholders of the Company (349,881) (405,287)
FEPEIRME = Non-controlling interests 172,832 125,295
FREE Loss for the year (177,049) (279,992)
FREE Loss per share 10
ERREE (ARE) Basic and diluted (RMB) (0.69) (0.83)

FINME245 AN EBRZEN BRI~ -

statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial
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GelBnkHEMEERER
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

BZE2021F12 A3 HIEFE (AARKFIR)
for the year ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

20214 20204

2021 2020

bt et AR¥T T ARBTTT

Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000

FRER Loss for the year (177,049) (279,992)

FREMSEE Other comprehensive income for the year - -

FREEKEEE Total comprehensive income for the year (177,049) (279,992)
BT AL : Attributable to:

Rl R Equity shareholders of the Company (349,881) (405,287)

FEPERR A Non-controlling interests 172,832 125,295

FRE2EKZLEHE Total comprehensive income for the year (177,049) (279,992)

FANME245 B R A ST HRERMW—8D o The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial
statements.
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e MBARRE

Consolidated statement of financial position

(AARFITR)
(Expressed in Renminbi)

20214 20204
2021 2020
k=3 AR®T T ARBT T
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FREBEE Non-current assets
Y -~ BB R&E Property, plant and equipment 11 42,635 45,085
FAEEE Right-of-use assets 12 111,171 127,927
WEME Investment property 13 3,707 3,901
REE DT 2 RS Interests in associates 15 1,990 18,042
AR BEFEREEE T A Financial assets at fair value through other 16 2,000 2,000
EmrENRNEmERE comprehensive income
EIRTFR Pledged deposits 21(b) 1,150,000 630,000
TEHIFR Time deposits 21(c) 865,000 530,000
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 31(b) 68,690 63,006
2,245,193 1,419,961
RBEE Current assets
AR BESEHEZE A Financial assets at fair value through 17 2,705,757 1,073,930
EHRBEmNERMEE profit or loss
w5 Inventories 18 2,718,623 2,250,583
B 5 R MRIE KRR Trade and bills receivables 19 2,652,767 1,847,404
TENFUE - e R EAMEYW  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 8,416,880 6,620,010
FRIA
R 177 3K Restricted deposits 21(a) 15,492 -
EHIFR Pledged deposits 21(b) 3,873,552 4,006,904
TEHIFE K. Time deposits 21(c) - 160,000
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22(a) 2,966,920 4,315,977
AT e B IE Taxation recoverable 31(a) 2,827 562
23,352,818 20,275,370

F1I R 245 B TEKZSE

Bz —En o The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial

statements.
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rE IR &
Consolidated statement of financial position

(AAREEZIR)
(Expressed in Renminbi)

20214 20204
2021 2020
i AR®T T ARBETTT
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
FEBEE Current liabilities
IRITER R HMER Bank loans and other borrowings 23 129,460 212,782
R E M B R R IEE AR R 8 Loans from non-controlling shareholders of 24 17,026 40,588
B subsidiaries

HEBE Lease liabilities 25 40,421 56,427
B S RENRIERENRE Trade and bills payables 26 14,418,802 11,419,335
Hith e I K JEET B Other payables and accruals 27 612,025 443,761
aHAaE Contract liabilities 28 2,937,060 2,133,207
B Provisions 29 = 843
AIEECEE Redeemable capital contributions 30 9,027,445 9,285,430
JERTHLIE Taxation payable 31(a) 48,819 50,822
27,231,058 23,643,195
REBEERE Net current liabilities (3,878,240)  (3,367,825)
BEERRBAS Total assets less current liabilities (1,633,047)  (1,947,864)

FRBERE Non-current liabilities
HEasE Lease liabilities 25 67,399 79,627
FEIEUTA Deferred income 32 17,000 17,000
84,399 96,627
BEFHE NET LIABILITIES (1,717,446)  (2,044,491)

FIN1E245 BN B ZEYT HIREH—3 D -

statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial
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Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

e MBARRE

Consolidated statement of financial position

(AARFITR)
(Expressed in Renminbi)

20214 20204
2021 2020
M et ARBT T ARBEFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
&N Share capital 33 508,658 508,658
i Reserves 33 (3,584,116)  (3,808,687)
RATERBRREGE 445  Total deficit attributable to equity (3,075,458)  (3,300,029)
shareholders of the Company
FEIERR R Non-controlling interests 1,358,012 1,255,538
EHAEE TOTAL DEFICIT (1,717,446)  (2,044,491)
EEEEHN202293 A30 B E R IRET)E - Approved and authorized for issue by the board of Directors on
March 30, 2022.
®hEE ) Xu Xiuxian )
) )
) )
- : o ) Directors
HEE ) Zhao Liangsheng )
) )
) )
) )

F1E245 BRI R ZE T HREN—E 5 - The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

HZE2021F12 A31 B ILFE (AAREZIR)
for the year ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

ARAERRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Wit Bx EXGh ZithR @i FEREE  FAARE
Non-
Share Capital Accumulated controlling
Notes capital reserve losses Total interests  Total deficit
ARETR  ARMTR ARBTn  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R202151 A1 AMER Balance at January 1, 2021 508,658  (2,676,383)  (1,132,304)  (3,2300,029)  1,255538  (2,044,491)
NNFRELE Changes in equity for 2021;
ERRENEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - (349.881)  (349,881) 172832 (177,049)
FrBETEENSBAES  Reclassification of redeemable capital 30 - 935,475 - 935,475 - 935,475
contributions as equity
FERERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - - - - 57,182 57,182
Wil seiniRiEs Acquisition of non-controlling interests 33(d) - (360515) - (360,515) (61,582 (422,097)
WEHBAMNER Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries - - - - 17,114 17,114
HENBLTER Disposal of interests in subsidiaries 22e) - - - - (11,735) (71,735)
HEHBRRERMAEAIEHE Disposal of interests in a subsidiary - (508) - (508) 1,828 1,320
without loss of control
RNEAREERIRESRRE  Appropriation of dividends to non-controlling - - - - (13,165) (13,165)
shareholders of subsidiaries
R2021 51231 AR Balance at December 31, 2021 508,658  (2,101,931)  (1,482,185)  (3,075458) 1,358,012  (1,717,446)

FINE245 BN R ZET BT —3 D -

The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial

statements.
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Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

MEREREBER

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

BHZE2021F12 A1 HIEFE (UARKFITR)
for the year ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

ARAERRRERS
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Wit s EXGE ZifhiE g FrkEE  BREE
Non-
Share Capital  Accumulated controlling

Notes capital reserve losses Total interests  Total deficit

ARETL  AREFR  ARBTR  ARETR  AREfR  ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

202051 81 R Balance at January 1, 2020 485361 (2319150)  (727017)  (2560808) 1109441 (1451365)
05EELE Changes in equity for 2020;

EREENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - (405,287)  (405,287) 125,295 (279,992)

ELhRk Issue of ordinary shares 33(c) 23297 1,176,703 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000

BABETERIATHAE  Recognition of redeemable capital 30 - (1,200,000) - (1,200,000) - (1,200,000)

contributions as current liabilities

FERERTE Capital contrioution from non-controlling interests - - - - 143,048 143,048

Bisativ an Acquisition of non-controlling interests 33(d) - (333,9%) - (333,93) (17.116)  (351,052)

HERBATER Disposal of Interests in subsidiaries 22e) - - - - (89.218) (89.218)

HHEAAEERRESERS  Appropriation of dividends to non-controling - - - - (15912) (15912)
shareholders of subsidiaries

R2020512A31 AiE Balance at December 31, 2020 508,658  (2676,383)  (1,132,304)  (3300,029) 1255538 (2,044,491)

FINE245 BN R ZET HREH 3D -

The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial

statements.
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mEHESRER
Consolidated cash flow statement

HZE2021F12 A31 B ILFE (AAREZIR)
for the year ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2021 % 20204
2021 2020
Mzt ARBT R ARBEFT
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000
REER Operating activities
remEhe Cash generated from operations 22(b) 928,817 540,134
BRI Tax paid 31(a) (113,808) (67,871)
RETHMERLTHE Net cash generated from operating activities 815,009 472,263
REEH Investing activities
WEEME - BE RSB ENTR Payment for the acquisition of property, plant and (22,492) (27,572)
equipment
HEME  MERREMSHRE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,240 3,583
EERERBUER MBS ERNN Payment for purchases of structured deposits and (23,313,959) (17,164,232)
wealth management products
HELBUEIREVESL Proceeds from disposal of structured deposits and 21,814,968 19,810,936
FriesE wealth management products
HEMBARERMEFIBFEE  Net proceeds from disposal of interests in subsidiaries 22(e) 34,734 62,242
HEMBAREZ (RE Proceeds from disposal of interests in a subsidiary 1,320 -
Sy B g without loss of control
WEEM B R AR T8 Net receipts from acquisition of interests in subsidiaries 1,914 -
HERE RAIERFTEHIA Proceeds from disposal of interests in associates 2,000 -
W Bg R i X B R R O 1T 3R Payment for acquisition of interests in associates (610) (16,600)
T FIE M Increase in time deposits (175,000) (600,000)
B S Interest received 118,376 63,946
B S Dividends received = 6,080
REEH (FTA),/ FBEELEE Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (1,535,509) 2,138,383

FIN1E245 B MM B EY BREN—3 D -

statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial
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Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

HEHESRER
Consolidated cash flow statement

HZE2021F12 A31BIEFE AARKEITR)
for the year ended December 31, 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

20214 2020F
2021 2020
i3 ARET R ARETTT
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB'000
METH Financing activities
ERHERSHNE RS Capital element of lease rental paid 22(c) (70,655) (46,876)
ERHERSHNF S Interest element of lease rental paid 22(c) (5,494) (6,021)
ISR TER R EMER Proceeds from new bank loans and other borrowings 22(c) 1,731,275 783,943
PG RE
EBRTERREMER Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings 22(c) (1,807,462) (1,055,453)
ERF 8 Interest paid 22(c) (197,524) (96,614)
L SELNI=NGIEIR 230 New loans from non-controlling shareholders of 22(c) 307,263 127,449
FHEEHR subsidiaries
EEMBATIEEIREEEZ  Repayment of loans from non-controlling 22(c) (328,118) (144,890)
shareholders of subsidiaries
T E Capital contributions from non-controlling interests 57,182 143,048
W BE SR B RE RS 7 [ 3 Payment for acquisition of non-controlling interests (305,549) (351,052)
AEBEFEREZIA Proceeds from redeemable capital contributions 33(c) - 1,200,000
BIGIEGIER 2 T Payment of dividends to non-controlling (9,475) (15,912)
SETRR B, shareholders of subsidiaries
REEE (FTA),/ e Net cash (used in)/generated from (628,557) 537,622
B4EEE financing activities
HERFALZEY CRL)/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and (1,349,057) 3,148,268
B4R E cash equivalents
ENRERBELZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the 22(a) 4,315,977 1,167,709
beginning of the year
FRBERELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22(a) 2,966,920 4,315,977

F1E245 WM B EM B MR —FF D ©

statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 245 form part of these financial
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NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
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(BRBHEREPI - LARKEZ5)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

[EREMEMD AR AR Huitongda Network Co., Ltd., (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) on December 6, 2010 as a limited
liability company. Upon approval by the Company’s board
meeting held on November 16, 2015, the Company was
converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock
limited liability company. The Company’s H shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on February 18, 2022.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”)
are principally engaged in sales of a comprehensive suite
of merchandise in the PRC and provision of intelligent
business and marketing subscription service, offering
merchant solutions and rendering other various related
services. The information of the principal subsidiaries is set
out in Note 14.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (the “IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interests in associates.

Iltems included in these consolidated financial
statements of each entity in the Group are
measured using the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company
is RMB. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB,
which is the presentation currency.

rounded to nearest thousands,

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as set out in the accounting policies
hereunder.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

liabilities,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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(BRBHEREPI - LARKEZ5)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 3.

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group has been prepared assuming the Group
will continue as a going concern notwithstanding
that the Group recorded net liabilities of
RMB1,717,446,000 and net current liabilities of
RMB3,878,240,000 as at December 31, 2021, which
is primarily due to redeemable capital contributions
totaling RMB9,027,445,000 are classified as current
liabilities (see Note 30). As at December 31, 2021,
certain conditions associated with redemption
rights attributable to the investors in Series A,
Series A+, Series B and Series C Investments (as
defined and detailed in Note 30) were met, but the
investors have not served any redemption notice
requesting for repayment. On February 18, 2022, the
Company’s H Shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, where
51,606,200 H Shares were issued and subscribed
at an offer price of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$")
43.00 per H Share by way of initial public offering
to Hong Kong and overseas investors, from which
the gross proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$2,219 million. The special rights associated
with the Pre-IPO Investments were unconditionally
terminated and the redeemable capital contributions
were reclassified as equity upon the listing of the
Company’s H Shares. The Directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital, to meet its financial liabilities and
obligations as and when they fall due and to sustain
its operations for the next 12 months from December
31, 2021.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
IFRSs issued by IASB to these financial statements
for the current accounting period:

o Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16, /nterest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

o Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021

None of these developments had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. Other than the amendment to IFRS
16, the Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and cash flows and any unrealized profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with Notes 2(0) or (q) depending on the
nature of the liability.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate (see Note 2(e)) or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(iii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal Group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see Note 2(j)(iii)). At
each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group'’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method, together
with any other long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’'s net investment in the
associate after applying the ECL model to such
other long-term interests where applicable (see Note

2()(1)).

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealized losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognized at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognized/derecognized on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs
are recognized directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value
of financial instruments, see Note 34(e). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

()

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortized cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see Note 2(u)(v)).

- fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) -
recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within
a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection
of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit
or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using
the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognized,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortized cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognized in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to
designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes
in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election
is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognized in profit or loss as other income
in accordance with the policy set out in Note
2(u)(iv).

Investment property

Investment properties are buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

121



122 EEERKRNERAT

Huitongda Network Co.,

Ltd.

B RS R AR B RE

Notes to Financial Statements

(= HE B -
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

AARKEZ5)

2 TESEEER (&)

(9)

REYE (E)
WEMERR AR ETITE RRER
BIER - e EREMEMEE
PR R B RN B ER - 188
YIEER & W AR M EE2(u) (i) Bt
F RN -

ERENE (UXEIRIEER/E)
B REMEXARFIEANEER
EREWME - AR AEEEAKAR
A REMEREXTERYMERZAN
BRISNEMERYENREE -
AT enEFt 8 BERENZY
EHIRAS o

FrEDRBEEMEN G A ERFH
158 A B AR R I SH EL B AR EL 7 & R i
EBE(MA)TE -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Investment property (continued)

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Any gain or loss arising from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognized
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in Note

2(u)(iii).

Transfers to investment properties shall be made
when there is a change in use, evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property. Since
the Group uses the cost model, transfers between
investment properties and owner-occupied
properties do not change the carrying amount of
the property transferred and they do not change
the cost of that properties for measurement or
disclosure purposes.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment property, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives.

fhEt T E A E

Estimated useful life

EF
Buildings

314

31 years
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets (see Note 2(i)), are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(j)(iii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognized in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

fhEt A EAFH

Estimated useful life

EF Buildings 204
20 years

HEMEEE Leasehold improvements AR JE i AR A R 5 & AT 5 A 4R A
(ABRRE & R2E)

The shorter of the unexpired

term of lease and the

estimated useful lives

B Electronic equipment 3E10%F
3 - 10 years

R HBRMAEZRE Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3E104F
3 - 10 years

B Motor vehicles 5E104F
5-10 years

EREEE Right-of-use assets RIEEA

Over the lease term
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Construction in progress represents properties
under construction and machinery and equipment
pending installation and is stated at cost less
Cost
comprises the purchase costs of the asset and the

impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(iii)).

related construction and installation costs.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is substantially
ready for its intended use and depreciation will be
provided at the appropriate rates in accordance
with the depreciation polices specified above.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

()

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each
lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease

component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalized are
recognized as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease
liability is initially recognized at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortized cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a
lease is capitalized is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
Notes 2(h) and 2(j)(iii)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from the
right-of use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments
in debt securities carried at amortized cost
(see Notes 2(f)(i), 2(u)(v) and 2(j)(i)). Any
difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments
made and is included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognized the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(1)

As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position,
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
Reporting Period.

the current portion of long-term

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognized in accordance with Note

2(u)(iii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in Note 2(i)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.



2 TESEEER (&)

() FEBEREERE

(i)

@ TAFEER
REBR A HERATHEND
BEE (BRAZLREEHE
Y B REMBWEIR - %
HEEERWIERKRE A
EXRNMANBRESREM S
BIRRERAABEFERR
R AR EEKRTE
(88 NEFBEFNESR
EFEEE (BHREEEBR)#
REIREE

Hipi AR EEFENERE
E - BREAREBEFEAR
HE) R AE BB RN RANE
BRSREAREBEFEAR
ZHit AR EEK T EN
BAFER (TAEE)  BAE
EITEMEE R

EHEEEENE

BEHMEEBRRREEBRNM
KNG - EREEBRUMAE
BEHReZR (AREALE
NAREENRSRERAEE
EHIWER R 2R E 2 FRE
B)MREE -

HWARFEEXN - MFAHRE
RS E AT BRER K ALIR

- EEREeRAE
CEPEL Tes
URAWAE: NP
TR T A IR

TR HTIUE -
- FEEREE  EH
BEERFE -

SR -EER
Annual Report 2021

B 75 ¥ R B

Notes to Financial Statements

(BrZAEIERI - UARKEZT)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognizes a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
financial assets measured at amortized cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, and
trade and other receivables which are held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal
and interest) and debt securities measured
at FVOCI (recycling).

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including equity and debt securities
measured at FVPL and equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognizes a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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(BrZAEIERI - UARKEZT)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the debtor is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument'’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological,
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

market, economic

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognized as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognizes
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in
debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is
recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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(BrZAEIERI - UARKEZT)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognized in accordance
with Note 2(u)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortized cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
asset becomes 3 years past due or when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognized as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. These contracts are initially
recognized at fair value in provisions.

The Group monitors the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract
and recognizes a provision when ECLs on
the financial guarantees are determined to
be higher than the carrying amount initially
recognized.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued (continued)

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the guarantee.
A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk
that the specified debtor will default has
increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured. The same definition of default and
the same assessment of significant increase

in credit risk as described in Note 2(j)(i)
apply.

As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amount that the Group
expects to receive from any other party. The
amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each Reporting
Period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired, an
impairment loss previously recognized no
longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;

- investment property;

- interests in associates; and

- interests in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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FESHEX (&) 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
f)) FEFREREERME (&) 1) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) BT EERE (&) (i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

FrEAKE SRR - Calculation of recoverable amount
BEEMAKE €55 The recoverable amount of an asset
ERAAEBEBHEK is the greater of its fair value less
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assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest Group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit
if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis or to
the smallest group of cash-generating
units if otherwise.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favorable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognized
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34,
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Interim financial

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase of goods after
deducting discounts from suppliers, and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognized as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognized.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realizable value and all losses of inventories are
recognized as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognized as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognized
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0

(m)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognizes the related revenue (see Note
2(u)). A contract liability would also be recognized
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognizes the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognized (see Note
2(m)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain
a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs. Receivables are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see Note 2(j)
(i)). Receivables that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (recycling).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(0)

(P)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(j)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade
and other payables are stated at amortized cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Capital contributions

The Company entered into a series of investment
agreements with certain independent investors,
pursuant to which, these investors agreed to make
cash investments to the Company to acquire the
equity interest of the Company (collectively referred
as "Pre-IPO Investments”).

Capital contributions from the Pre-IPO Investments
are classified as financial liabilities or equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Capital contributions from the Pre-IPO Investments
are classified as equity if they are non-
redeemable by the Company or redeemable only
at the Company’s option. Dividends on capital
contributions from the Pre-IPO Investments
classified as equity are recognized as distributions
within equity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

r

Capital contributions (continued)

Capital contributions from the Pre-IPO Investments
are classified as financial liabilities if they are
redeemable on a specific date or at the option of
the shareholders (including options that are only
exercisable in case of triggering events having
occurred). The liability is recognized and measured
in accordance with the Group’s policy for interest-
bearing borrowings set out in Note 2(qg) and
accordingly dividends thereon are recognized on
an accrual basis in profit or loss as part of finance
costs.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognized in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 2(w)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labor rules and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the
Group’s subsidiaries located are recognized
as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the Reporting
Period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilized, are recognized. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to Interests in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.



2 TESEEER (&)

(s)

Frig®i (&)

EEANELENECHEREERA
ERAENFEMNBERIOEETR R
BRBEHRCEMKEE LCRH
MR E - BEHRBREERBED
TREA -

BELERIAEENREERSREHR
BE - R BRIEEH B S AT PT
SRS B SN & E
B o R BEH R SR T AT IS ER AT
B RIE DA B

DIRBLEELEMRRINT SRR
THEER BB ERER -

B EAM IR 8 87 MOR AE TR TR AE BR A SR E
SEHEEORAIIR  LEFTHEE -
WAL B B EET AT IRE
EEENRHERE  LEFANUT
B 7 e - B B EAM IR & 22 AT 4K 84 B
HREAE  MEEHIREE K
EEBIBAE

- HRAHMHBEERAENS -
AR RSN B R A A
BE HFARBRZEENS
BZAE X

SR -EER
Annual Report 2021

B 75 ¥ R B

Notes to Financial Statements

(BRBHEREPI - LARKEZ5)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured
based on the expected manner of realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the Reporting Period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each Reporting Period and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognized when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realize the
current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realize and settle simultaneously.

(1) Provisions and contingent liabilities

()

Provisions

When determining the amounts to be
recognized in respect of liabilities arising
from the provisions, management makes the
estimates based on prior experience and
default history (see Note 2(j)(ii)). It is possible
that the prior experience and default history
is not indicative of all the future loss. Any
increase or decrease in the provisions would
affect the profit or loss in future years.

Provisions are also recognized when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

®

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

(i) Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognized for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognized when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognized under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from commerce business

The Group directly sells and leases self-
owned products and enables merchants
to sell their products to transaction users
through business-to-business commerce
platforms.
business primarily comprised revenue from
merchandise sales, commission income and
merchandise operating leases (see Note 2(u)

(iii)).

Revenue from commerce

Revenue from merchandise sales and related
costs is recognized on a gross basis when
the Group acts as a principal. Revenue from
merchandise sales is recognized at the point
in time when the control of the merchandise
has been delivered, being when the goods
are delivered and accepted.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

()

(1)

Revenue from commerce business
(continued)

Commission income is recognized for
transactions where the Group is not
the primary obligor, is not subject to
inventory risk and does not have latitude in
establishing prices and selecting suppliers.
Commission income is recognized on a net
basis which is based on a fixed percentage
of the sales amount.

Revenue from service business and other
services

The Group provides intelligent business
and marketing Software-as-a-Service plus
(“SaaS+") subscription service to the
merchants, offers merchant solutions and
renders other various related services.

The Group offers SaaS+ products and
services to subscribing merchants. Revenue
of SaaS+ subscription includes fixed
subscription fees and service fees for value-
added solutions under various modules, such
as online storefront build-up and promotional
activities. Revenue of fixed subscription fees
is generally recognized over time on a ratable
basis over the contract term beginning on the
date that the service is made available to the
customer. Revenue of service fees for value-
added solutions is recognized at the point
in time when the performance obligations for
the services performed are completed.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from service business and other
services (continued)

The Group earns revenue by offering
the merchant solutions and other related
services including various value-added
services to address paying merchants or
marketers’ online and offline operation needs,
including marketing digitalization, targeted
advertisement and other relevant services.
Revenue of merchant solutions and other
related services is generally recognized
at the point in time when the performance
obligations for the services performed are
completed.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognized when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

v)

(vi)

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues
under the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortized cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortized
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(j)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognized as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are recognized as deferred
income and subsequently recognized in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(w)

(x)

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise all
expenses that are directly attributable to research
and development activities or that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to such activities. Research
and development costs are recognized as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Asset acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are assessed to determine if they are business or
asset acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group chooses to apply a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is an asset rather than business
acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets.

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the overall
acquisition cost is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their
relative fair values at the date of acquisition. An
exception is when the sum of the individual fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
differs from the overall acquisition cost. In such
case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that are
initially measured at an amount other than cost in
accordance with the Group’s policies are measured
accordingly, and the residual acquisition cost is
allocated to the remaining identifiable assets and
liabilities based on their relative fair values at the
date of acquisition.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same Group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a Group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y)

(2

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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(BRBHEREPI - LARKEZ5)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
critical accounting judgement:

Revenue from merchandise sale from commerce
business

Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in the sales of goods
on the Group’s platform requires judgement
and consideration of all relevant facts and
circumstances. In evaluation of the Group acting
as a principal or an agent, the Group considers,
individually or in combination whether the Group
is primarily responsible for fulfilment the contract,
is subject to the inventory risk, has discretion to
establish prices. Having considered the relevant
facts and circumstances, the Directors consider
that the Group obtains control of those goods
sold in commerce business before the goods are
transferred to the customers. Accordingly, the
Group is acting as a principal for the merchandise
sales and the related revenue is presented on a
gross basis.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 16, 17 and 34(e) contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to
valuation of fair value of financial assets. Other
significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:
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3  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

()

(i1)

Inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business,
of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar

less estimated costs

nature. In addition, these estimates could
change significantly as a result of change in
customer preference and competitor actions
in response to industry cycles. Management
measures these estimates at each statement

of financial position date.

Loss allowance for expected credit losses

The Group estimates the amount of
loss allowance for ECLs on trade and
other receivables that are measured at
amortized cost based on the credit risk of
the respective financial instruments. The
loss allowance amount is measured as the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit
loss of the respective financial instrument.
The assessment of the credit risk of the
respective financial instrument involves high
degree of estimation and uncertainty. When
the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly.
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4 WA K28 2], 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

'ON (a) Revenue

AEENEREBRARTEEEEM
EEm o YRESEREREHEME
SaaS+AIHMRT  IREBEHRBAT R
Kzt MR BARERY - BEA%
B ZXBEE— FRFERHE4(D)

The principal activities of the Group are sales of
a comprehensive suite of merchandise in the PRC
and provision of intelligent business and marketing
SaaS+ subscription service, offering merchant
solutions and rendering other various related

R o services. Further details regarding the Group’s
principal activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

(i) WA 73 4% (i) Disaggregation of revenue
REZEBHEINEPEH Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
WADBIT - with customers by major business lines is as

follows:
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

BB 3R %5 2 Al % 155521 Revenue from contracts with
BAXEEFSHHKA  customers within the scope

of IFRS 15

& i 3H B FT S A Revenue from merchandise sales 65,222,853 48,248,712
RN Commission income 2,760 2,032
F9/ESaaS+:TBFT3UZ A Revenue from SaaS+ subscription 278,405 119,087
BES: VIR VN Revenue from merchant solutions 159,409 123,635
EMRISFEHRA Revenue from other services 99,375 65,820
65,762,802 48,559,286

REHARRAKA Revenue from other sources
EREEMSHEERE Gross rentals from merchandise leases - 1,051,256
Hith Others 372 18,593
372 1,069,849
65,763,174 49,629,135
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WARDEE2H (&) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)
(a) WA(&E) (a) Revenue (continued)

(i) WA () (i) Disaggregation of revenue (continued)
RWARRERESHERE Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
BWADEREFINT with customers by the timing of revenue

recognition is set out below:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR%T T ARBEFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ME—FEE A point in time 65,488,133 48,441,834
R—ERER Over time 275,041 1,187,301
65,763,174 49,629,135
AREBRBEWNT2(0)TENE The Group recognized its revenue from
ST ERREP G HUWA - contracts with customers in accordance with
accounting policy as set out in Note 2(u).
AEENEFERZITE - The Group’s customer base is diversified
HZE2021F12HA31 815 and nil (2020: nil) of the customers with
& B (20204 - ) R whom transactions have exceeded 10%
PHXZXZBEAREBRKAN of the Group’s revenues for the year
10% - REXPHEFREE ended December 31, 2021. Details of
[B s FHIEE A M FE34(a) © concentrations of credit risk arising from the
customers are set out in Note 34(a).
(i) TEEIRK AR AT A FK G R (i) Revenue expected to be recognized in the

e AHFENEFER

REB D ERM R EER
FARE 121N AIITRET
FERANEEMEERL
it - A RATRHIN AR RAE R AU
AHERIL ERENAEEE
BiTZEaK (RHAHRA—
FHEAT)BETHHRTREOR
ERERESHIA -

future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical
expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15
to its sales contracts for goods such that
information about revenue expected to be
recognized in the future is not disclosed in
respect of revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under these
contracts that had an expected duration of
one year or less.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organized by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’'s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

Commerce business

The commerce business segment, which mainly
includes direct sales and operating leases of self-
owned products and provision of marketplace
service that enables merchants to sell their
products to transacting users through the online
platform. Revenue from commerce business
primarily comprised revenue from merchandise
sales, commission income and gross rentals from
merchandise leases.

Service business

The service business segment, which mainly
represents the provision of intelligent business
and marketing SaaS+ subscription service and a
collection of merchant solutions.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

Others

Revenues from the others are primarily derived from

other services rendered by the Group.

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group's senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and cost are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the
costs incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation of
certain assets attributable to those segments.
The measure used for reporting segment
profit is gross profit.

There were no separate segment assets and
segment liabilities information provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management
as Group’s most senior executive
management does not use this information
to allocate resources to or evaluate the

performance of the operating segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s
most senior executive management for
the purpose of recourse allocated and
assessment of segment performance for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is
set out below.
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4 WARDEBE2IR (1E) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) SHEFH(E) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) SEFE BEREE (F) (i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)
20214
2021
RBEH REE® Hith @t
Commerce Service
business business Others Total
ARETR AR%Tn AR¥Tr AR®Txn
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B GEON Reportable segment revenue 65,225,613 437,814 99,747 65,763,174
A2 {7 HFE Reportable segment profit 1,498,255 286,952 82,759 1,867,966
20204
2020
RHEB R %% Hit @it
Commerce Service
business business Others Total
ARETL ARETT AR®EFTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A2EDHERA Reportable segment revenue 49,302,000 242722 84,413 49,629,135
265 BFE Reportable segment profit 1,163,622 122,417 58472 1,344,511

HE2021F &2020F 12 73
318 L FEEFI B AT E
BHHIRHNGRAEEE -

The reconciliation of gross profit to loss
before tax for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020 is shown in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.
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4 WARDEBE2IR (1E) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)
(b) SHEFH(E) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

5

(i) HEEH

B0 % B 745 9 o 2 | 55 8 SR AR &
DEREREBAN R KEEEE
BHERENER  MTARE
e (B EREE—
AE2HmOEM) - AEER—(E
WEMNERNEEEY - RAR
HrE W AR BEES - M
HAAERBEEREARRY
{ER S RETE - Bt
Wik 25 EF -

H WA B B At Uy 38 7 AR

(i) Geographic information

IFRS 8, Operating Segments, requires
identification and disclosure of information
about an entity’s geographical areas,
regardless of the entity's organization (i.e.
even if the entity has a single reportable
segment). The Group operates within one
geographical location because all of its
revenue was generated in the PRC and
all of its non-current assets and capital
expenditure were located/incurred in
the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical
information is presented.

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN

(a) HfbkA Other revenue
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARBEFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
B Government grants 55,175 22,575
Hith Others 668 921
55,843 23,496

HE2021F12A31BIEEE - &K
SEEREGKEBRTHEDARE
55,175,0007T (20204 : AR
21,887,000 T) ' 1E A& B ¥ 51y
Bl R [ 3 A5 B R /E B A Y 82
Ej]o

HZE2021F12A31HILEE » A&
BUREGRHEBTHBARBEE T
(2020%F : ARBZ L) ' tERHIE
B HRERER o 2 EE I ERR -
REERGABRRERILERBBA
RMEZ 5T (20204 : AR 688,000
JL) °

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the
Group received unconditional government grants of
RMB55,175,000 (2020: RMB21,887,000) as rewards
of the Group’s contribution to technology innovation
and regional economic development.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the
Group received conditional government grants
of RMB nil (2020: RMB nil) as encouragement of
project development. The Group recognized such
type of grants of RMB nil (2020: RMB688,000) in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss when
related conditions were satisfied.
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5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN
(CONTINUED)

RftlmRaE (b)  Other net gain
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR EBEFEAHEZE):T Net realized and unrealized gain on financial
AZHIEEMNESRMEER  assets at fair value through profit or loss
EERRABER K FEE 136,663 113,238
HENBAREDZ 2 WEF Net gain on disposal of interests in
# (M7t 22(e)) subsidiaries (Note 22(e)) 734 6,971
HEBEAR#ED 2 WaF Net gain on disposal of interests in
L) associates 185 -
HEME - BEREEZH Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
&=/ (B18) F8 plant and equipment 104 (396)
EAfth Others (1,057) 1,833

136,629 121,646
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6

BREL AT 1R

BUATEIRE HIRR (FEA) AT RIA

(a)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

R A F A (a) Net finance costs
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
AR¥T R ARBEFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
H|ITERFEHA Interest income from bank deposits (166,308) (101,006)
U ON Finance income (166,308) (101,006)
BRI EE RIRTTE M F S Interest expenses on discounted bills and
M (#1it22(c)) bank loans (Note 22(c)) 193,741 94,734
BB A Al JEIRARAR ER B F A Interest expenses on loans from non-
FMEFXZ (#fat22(c)) controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
(Note 22(c)) 2,567 1,983
HEBENEMX Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(KtzE22(c)) (Note 22(c)) 5,494 6,021
AEELTFEEAMFIERY Interest expenses arising from redeemable
(Btat22(c)) capital contributions (Note 22(c)) 677,490 602,140
BTSN Finance costs 879,292 704,878
B TS RR AN H 58 Net finance costs 712,984 603,872
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BRBLAIES B (&) 6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b) BIRK (b)  Staff costs

20214 2020%F

2021 2020

ARET T ARBEFTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

e TERHMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 540,619 485,010
TE R HFUR ARG B Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans 34,117 3,291

574,736 488,301

AEETEKELRNEERSLER
B EE RS E N EEHEER
PRETE) - ANEE R BB L~ RliRi
ATBRARENFHREEHSNET
B LRt ER R BIHR - S
BERRAEMNREHES - AREE
NEBERRTEARABERERE
BRI BIREN AR AES
BEt SR - AEEEERM
FORNET B RN E LR XT3 - iz
EFR B AR AR B AR 5T &
M HOR UL 3R T & R

B £l RN - 7N 52 B 3 M L4 B 5%
AEIBRNEXRREMNNREE

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’'s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated
on certain percentages of the average employee
salary as agreed by the local municipal government
to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees. The Group remits all the defined
contribution retirement scheme contributions to
the respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities relating
to the defined contribution retirement scheme. The
Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as incurred and
not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the plans prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
scheme beyond the contributions described above.
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AARKEZ5)

6 BRELATE 1R ()

(c)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

HihiEH (c) Other items
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BERAFAZHFERAK Cost of inventories recognized as expenses
(Kizti) (Note i) 63,509,813 46,853,217
TEXH Depreciation charge
—BEYE - BE KK — owned property, plant and equipment 20,763 18,949
—EREEE ~ right-of-use assets 59,402 60,867
—REWE - investment property 194 135
HEER A (BT i) Research and development costs (Note /i) 78,547 58,276
B REMERFIBEE Provision for credit loss on trade and other
R receivables
— B 5 RHEAMEWKFIE — expected credit loss on trade and
TEHIzE A other receivables 101,415 98,712
—FFALRIE M 2 E — write-on of other receivables previously
FE U R IE written off (11,115) (9,060)
BHERL Decrease of provisions (843) (11,552)
FEMR R Provision for write-down of inventories 15,747 54,191
EmAX Listing expenses 25,650 -
ZERT S Auditors’ remuneration
— BETIRTE - audit services 5,000 2,869
— B RIS (M a2iii) — non-audit services (Note iii) 7,080 -

Wizt

)

(if)

(iif)

BRAHINFEXRLBES

MBERABEEE TRARN
ERNXAEHENESE 2520
TRET A L XM EE6(b) st %18
X BB EORBAEN -

HZE2021F 12831 HILE
B AEERERARAEERHE
RIEFNRBEZBANE AR
#7,080,0007C ' P AR
5,027,000 7C R4 A LA L 28 B 45
B LEmHAXH -

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Cost of inventories recognized as expenses
includes provision for write-down of inventories.

Research and development costs include
amounts relating to staff costs and depreciation
expenses, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately
above or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of
expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2021,
the Group recognized auditors’ remuneration
for non-audit services in respect of initial
public offering of RMB7,080,000, among which
RMB5,027,000 is also included in the listing
expenses disclosed separately above.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FEBERRANBIERE (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR T ARBTIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BN ER B 18 Current tax
FNEE Provision for the year 109,588 97,361
IEERE Deferred tax
R EENEEREE Origination and reversal of temporary
(H1#£31(b)) differences (Note 31(b)) (8,654) (15,890)
SR % Total income tax expense 100,934 81,471

At -

ZN/NCIDSEal=PNEIb )l ek S o v
REBRNN AR LB AR EIE25%H
ETER RGN B EFTSR ([ AT
BEL]) « ELATERDIMIE A RIBR A -

BE(EHBMEERETERIE) (B
B A [2016]325%) « AQ BB & #
BT B 82018F E20206F %
5% K TS TREREBE o

RNAFR2021 FEEZE 82021
FE20283F ZX15%WMATBTREERR

M@ RS R AR ARG
MDEER  B2021FE2023FE%
15% M FTISFEBERE -

Note:

The Company and subsidiaries were all incorporated
in the PRC. The Company and subsidiaries within
the Group are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax
(“CIT”) at statutory rate of 25%, except for the following
specified subsidiaries:

According to the Administrative Measures for
Determination of High-Tech Enterprises (Guokefahuo
[2016] No. 32), the Company obtained the qualification
as a high-tech enterprise and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years from
2018 to 2020.

The Company renewed the qualification in 2021 and
was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for
the years from 2021 to 2023.

Huitone Datatech Smart Technology Co., Ltd. obtained
the qualification as a high-tech enterprise and was
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the
years from 2021 to 2023.
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7 HREBEBERANAER (B

(a) HFREBRBFRANBIEE @ (H)

1R AR 2 AR S50 B B BB I B R R
BHEBHMR2019F1 B17BEME R
[2019]13%% KR & He/ NV BRI b 2 3
FEBBORRBERORE) - FRAT
FT5E KA AR % 1,000,000 (B A
R #1,000,0007T) K)/NARUBR R 1 2
AZER75% K EMBAASERTESR
HER20% BB E: B20194F
E20215F  FEMABABENTAR
#1,000,0007T &= A R #3,000,0007T
(& AR®3,000,0007T) B/ N R FI 1B
¥ A ZER50% M ENTIFTISREETE
B EA20% KT EBIBIE o

BEFETBRIERERRBELERDR
20214 B2 B EME AR E /MK
TCENEAZEIEFAERERBRNR
EY(RE[2021]1125%) © B2021FF
20224 - FRERMBASHEERARE
1,000,0007T (& AK#1,000,0007T)
BNV EE - P E R 87.5%HIEM
FETSERFESR - BA20%MEH
T -

BRI (BN RAE DA B
BRI R e B M) (BB [2011]
FE585E LT [2020]5F 2358 ) - N E
AR INEE-"BEZEERAFAR
2021 FE2030F ZXEBEMBHBE
15% ©

AEEXZERFERRFEBTHEDR
NETFTHBRABFE/ N F S ERT
BB CEKE EEBREZE2021
FR2020F12A31 AL FEHHESR
BREBEESS -

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (continued)

According to Caishui [2019] No. 13, “The
Announcement of Implementation on Inclusive Tax
Relief Policy of Small-scaled Minimal Profit Enterprise”
issued by Ministry of Finance of the PRC and National
Tax Bureau on January 17, 2019, the small-scaled
minimal profit enterprise with an annual taxable income
below RMB1,000,000 (RMB1,000,000 included) is
entitled to a preferential tax treatment of 75% exemption
of taxable income and application of income tax rate
as 20%; the small-scaled minimal profit enterprise with
an annual taxable income between RMB1,000,000 and
RMB3,000,000 (RMB3,000,000 included) is entitled to a
preferential tax treatment of 50% exemption of taxable
income and application of income tax rate as 20%, for
the years from 2019 to 2021.

According to Announcement [2021] No. 12, “The
Announcement of Implementation of Income Tax
Incentives for Micro and Small Enterprises and
Individually-owned Businesses” issued by Ministry of
Finance of the PRC and National Tax Bureau on April
2, 2021, the small-scaled minimal profit enterprise
with an annual taxable income below RMB1,000,000
(RMB1,000,000 included) is entitled to a preferential
tax treatment of 87.5% exemption of taxable income
and application of income tax rate as 20% for the years
from 2021 to 2022.

Pursuant to Caishui [2011] No.58 and Caishui [2020]
No.23 Notice on Tax Policies for Further Implementation
of Western Regions Development Strategy, Chongaing
Sanmeng Agriculture Co., Ltd. established in the
western regions of the PRC, and is entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2021 to 2030.

Certain subsidiaries in the Group which are primarily
engaged in merchandise sales in commerce business
meet the conditions as small-scaled minimal profit
enterprise or western regions development enterprise
were qualified for the entitlement of such preferential
tax treatment during the years end December 31, 2021
and 2020.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and loss
before taxation at applicable tax rates:

20214 2020
2021 2020
AR¥T R ARBEFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
R 75 Al &S 18 Loss before taxation (76,115) (198,521)
B ATE1E 2 %% I - & Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated
FEEERFR25%E using the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% (19,029) (49,630)
EERENTE Effect of preferential tax rate (66,524) (44,005)
TRIMBFAZOBEFE  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 2,360 2,338
FERHEBEBNRIEFE Tax effect of tax losses not recognized 9,994 19,420
KRERERZEOHBEE Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognized 6,410 3,656
TR ARTEAL IR TR TS Tax effect of bonus deduction for research
TE and development costs (1,649) (843)
AEENTFEEAMFIERY Tax effect of interest expenses arising from
KIS R 2 redeemable capital contributions 169,372 150,535

BEBRRIER X Actual tax expense 100,934 81,471
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8 EEME 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
RBEBBARIEHIZEII(NEEAT (FE Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
BEENmER) RNF2BHENEZESe of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
T~ Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

5é 2R Gt 20215
EEHe  REUANG mMiERA #3% @t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2021
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARMTR  AR®TR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

BITES Executive Directors
#FE Xu Xiuxian - 1,648 836 37 2,521
Bt Zhao Liangsheng

(R2021F5 R10BEZ ) (appointed on May 10, 2021) - 1,009 584 37 1,630
FHTES Non-executive Directors
TRE Wang Jianguo - - - - -
I Wang Jian - - - - -
T8k (R2021 F5 108 EZ(T)  Wang Vi (appointed on May 10, 2021) - - - = =
BB (202145 518EZ) Cai Zhongaiu (appointed on May 1, 2021) - - - - -
2% (202155 810B8T)  Li Shaohua (resigned on May 10, 2021) = = - - -
Hi5% (R2021F5 5108 &) Xu Jinrong (resigned on May 10, 2021) - - - - -
A% (202145 A10B&()  Bai Bo (resigned on May 10, 2021) - - = = =
BUkHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
VR (H2021F5A10B84) A Min (resigned on May 10, 2021) 50 - - - 50
= Huang Shun 120 - - - 120
FHE(R2021F57108EE)  Luo Dejun (resigned on May 10, 2021) 50 - - - 50
27 (R2021F5810BEZ () Cheng Zichuan (appointed on May 10, 2021) 80 - - - 80
2[R3R (7202145 A 10BEZT) Liu Xiangdong (appointed on May 10, 2021) 80 - - - 80
3 Supervisors
FEE (R2021F5F108EZE) Mao Yijun (appointed on May 10, 2021) - 532 200 13 745
TEE Wang Xinghua - 500 175 13 688
SEE (R202145A1088) Vi Suning (resigned on May 10, 2021) - 172 - 12 184
3B Li Wei - 682 383 37 1,102

380 4,543 2,178 149 7,250
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8 EEME (E) 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
e 2HR RIRGHE 2020
EE Yk ENflE BT #3 e
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2020
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
ARETFT ARBFT  ARETR ARETR ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BITES Executive Director
A% Xu Xiuxian - 1,391 810 3 2,204
FHTES Non-executive Directors
TR Wang Jianguo - - - - -
Th Wang Jian - - - - -
FhE Li Shaohua - - - - -
Gt Xu Jinrong - - - - -
HR Bai Bo - - - - -
BUEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
B Ai Min 120 - - - 120
= Huang Shun 120 - - - 120
ERE Luo Dejun 120 - - - 120
gz Supervisors
B8 (R202056 A20A HHT) Gao Juan (resigned on June 29, 2020) - - - - -
TaE Wang Xinghua - 415 190 1 606
HEE Yi Suning - 448 258 1 707
T2 (R2020%6 F290REZM)  Li Wei (appointed on June 29, 2020) - 598 546 3 1,147
360 2,852 1,804 8 5,024
HZE22021F K2020F12A31HLLFE - During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
REEMERNEEREEI MBS ERK no amounts were paid or payable by the Group to the
H - EAWRSIEMAREE S INAREEEZ Directors and supervisors as an inducement to join or upon
WS EALEHEBAERTAKE A joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office
AIEHA BN TR BAAREE - in connection with the management of the affairs of any

member of the Group.

B E2021F K2020F12A31HIEFE + K During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
NAIBEFHEREXRBREEMAHMN - each of the Directors of the Company did not waive or

agreed to waive any remuneration.
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9 REHMAL

AEZEHWALTHRSRIEME (20204 -
—Z)BEEN—FZ (2020 — %) BE
£ EFHAWESEE - 8 TATHB &

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2020: one) are Directors and one (2020: one) is supervisor
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate

mEEW of the emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals
are as follows:

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR%T ARBT T

RMB’ 000 RMB’'000

e FARREDN G Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,016 2,746

BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 983 1,530

RIRETEIfER Retirement scheme contributions 74 8

3,073 4,284

M4 (20204F - =8) &= A L 2 5B
DRINFLATHE :

The emoluments of the two (2020: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

20214 20204

2021 2020

A AH

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

=B L2 1,000,000 7T HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 = -
1,000,001 702 1,500,000/ 7C  HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1
1,500,001 7C£2,000,000/87C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1

2,000,001#7c£2,500,000%7C  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1
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10 LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share during
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company for the purpose of
basic loss per share for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020 and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
loss per share calculated as follows:

Loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of Company for the purpose of basic
loss per share

20214 2020%F
2021 2020
ARET T ARBTTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RARERBREELRFA Loss for the year attributable to equity
B8 shareholders of the Company (349,881) (405,287)
A& O]+ & fE e AR SR RS Allocation of loss for the year attributable to
FAFEESE equity shareholders of redeemable capital
contributions 130,318 162,148
REREAREENS Loss for the year attributable to ordinary
RAEIEBERRE equity shareholders of the Company for the
FERFAEIE purpose of basic loss per share (219,563) (243,139)

REREXERTE - BERAIE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

F192 purpose of basic loss per share
20214 20204
2021 2020
REHE BITERR Issued ordinary shares at the beginning
of the year 508,658,037 485,360,723
A EEFERITEBAA)  Effect of ordinary shares issued for
=% redeemable capital contributions (189,456,188) (193,877,267)

REREREEN SR Weighted average number of ordinary shares
FARE)EBARNNIE TS E at the end of the year for the purpose of
basic loss per share 319,201,849 291,483,456
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10 BREE (&)
(a) EBREXEEGE)
FAEEFEHIT L BB EER
20214 K 20204 12 A 31 B #Y A ] i
EEE A BRI DR TS
H(RAME30)  HATFERLKEE
REAE B E PR -

(b) ERBEER

BIREEEE ) ERFAREEITEING
MR NEE T8 UREREILEEBR
BRAREERNREMNEEENED
HEMETE - & ZE2021F K 20204512
A31RLLFE - ARARFAIEREE
FIEASREE HABELEK-
MR AREEE F 20214 K 20209F12
A31HILGEEELEE  BLELH®
fRIARETAGREEBENTES
LT AR S ABEEREE -
It - HE 20214 %2020 12 A31H
IEFESRBEHERAESEFTNA
BREAEEAER -

10

LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share (continued)

Effect of ordinary shares issued for redeemable
capital contributions represent the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of the Company
associated with the redeemable capital contributions
(see Note 30) at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
which are subject to redemption and excluded from
the calculation of the basic loss per share.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume termination of redemption
rights attributable to the investors of the Pre-IPO
Investments. For the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Company had the redeemable
capital contributions as financial liabilities which are
potential ordinary shares. As the Group incurred
losses for the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020, the potential ordinary shares were not
included in the calculation of diluted loss per
share as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
Accordingly, diluted loss per share for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are the same
as basic loss per share of the respective years.
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M - BRERZE 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Bl - £ER
BF HENEEE ETRE  WOERE RE ERIE @it
Furniture.
fixtures
Leasehold  Electronic  and office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETR  ARETR ARETn  ARETR ARETR  ARETn ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
HA: Cost;
R202051A1R At January 1, 2020 1638 34,576 29,528 13598 16,977 173 96,490
TE Additions - - 6,039 5,409 4206 11918 27572
gz Transfers - 12,001 - - - (12,091) -
HE Disposals (1,638) - (3,163) (1,610) (2471) - (8,882)
HERBLARE (H222/e)) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Vote 2/¢) - (354) (1,103) (690) (152) - (2,299)
R2020F 12318 At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021
202151 81A - 46,313 31,301 16,707 18,560 - 1128
TE Additions 762 3848 8,840 1,308 4585 3149 22,492
YENB L RER Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries - - 35 o - - 62
B2 Transfers - 3079 - - - (3079) -
iHE Disposals - (38) (3.723) (1432) (4.783) - (9.976)
HEMBRRER (H:#29)) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Aote 22/e)) - (868) (1,297) (461) (268) - (2,894)
R2021512831R At December 31, 2021 762 52,334 35,156 16,149 18,004 70 122565
ZithE: Accumulated depreciation;
R202051A1R At January 1, 2020 200 25,864 15,847 5,696 7,668 - 55,075
ER Charge for the year 60 6,330 6,929 1954 3676 - 18,949
HERER Written back on disposals (260) - (2,364) (1,150) (1129) - (4,903)
HERBAFIER (:290)) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Note 22/e)) - (300) (784) (354) (87) - (1525)
R20205 12318 At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021
202151 81R - 31,804 19,628 6,146 10,128 - 67,796
EAR L Charge for the year - 7615 7351 2214 3,583 - 20,763
i ERRME Written back on disposals - (38) (2.492) (1,048) (3,262) - (6,840)
HERERFRE (H:200)) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Note 26)) = (466) (935) (270) (118) = (1,789)
R2021512831A At December 31, 2021 = 39,005 23552 7,042 10,331 = 79,930
BEFE: Net book value:
2020512 531R At December 31, 2020 = 14419 11673 10,561 8432 = 45,085
2021512831 R At December 31, 2021 762 13329 11,604 9,107 7763 70 42,635
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12 fEREEE 12  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
RBEHE  ASBEEERHERRESS The Group has obtained the right to use certain office and
FTHROAEREEMENERAE - HE—RA warehouse properties through tenancy agreements during
HI1ZE105F - BB ERR B D B A the Reporting Period. The leases typically run for a period
BEEREFESTEINNOT of 1 to 10 years. The analysis of the net book value of right-
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is presented
below:

BHEBAN
Y
Properties
held for own use
ARETT
RMB’ 000
R2020%F 1A 1H At January 1, 2020 158,138
WE Additions 34,979
FERNERSE Depreciation charge for the year (60,867)
HE M B A R (fit22(e)) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Note 22(e)) (4,323)
R2020F 12 H31H &2021F1H1H At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 127,927
NE Additions 58,666
FEFERE Depreciation charge for the year (59,402)
S B A Rl (AiE22(e)) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Note 22(e)) (16,020)
720214128318 At December 31, 2021 111,171
RESEANHEMRBRZEE TN T ¢ The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

recognized in profit or loss is as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T R ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FAEEENTERS Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 59,402 60,867
HEAERNE (Kit6(a)) Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) 5,494 6,021
HEHAEE@NRT Expense relating to short-term leases 40,339 49,439
FRMHEReRHBRE  HEAGIHES Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis
MAREARABRNEERREENRS R of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from
HFFE D RIS KT FE22(d) ~ 25 &% 34(b) ° leases that are not yet commenced are set out in Notes

22(d), 25 and 34(b), respectively.
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REWMZ 13  INVESTMENT PROPERTY
BF
Buildings
AR®T T
RMB’ 000
AN : Cost:
7K2020F1H1H + 20201231 H & At January 1, 2020, December 31, 2020 and
2021412 A31H December 31, 2021 4,036
Rt E . Accumulated depreciation:
M2020F1H1H At January 1, 2020 -
FRZH Charge for the year 135
202012 431 H &2021F1H1H At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 135
FRZH Charge for the year 194
R2021%F12A31H At December 31, 2021 329
BRIENFE ! Net book value:
7R2020%F 12 A431H At December 31, 2020 3,901
M2021F12A431H At December 31, 2021 3,707
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13

AARKEZ5)

BEWE (E)

MN2021E 128310 BEMEN AR
BERBYE - FHEMLEEAARYE
3,769,0007T (20204 : AR#3,953,000
JL) °

AEBEREMEMNTE - AEEBREYE
MARBEFEDPBERAABEENFE=
Fo AABEDIRBEAEEE - EFWE
AR HEELNTSHESRIRE SRR
VDS TE R H) T 45 Wan R AHE KRR IR - TISTH
eH2EYETHBEECOES AR
P E b BB B RETRE - M5l
KNS2ELMTEREURENENHER S
PSS REE » WEABRAGFRMERE
ENTISEY  URBRAKEREMENE
TRE - REVENREAZRRERS &
A -

AEBRBELEEERHREDE - HED
TRE15FE  WAREENIMARES
[ B P B R ] ERA A E

13

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED)

As at December 31, 2021, the fair value of investment
property is valued by an independent third-party valuer to
be RMB3,769,000 (2020: RMB3,953,000).

The Group’s investment property is located in the PRC. The
fair value measurement of the Group’s investment property
is categorized into Level 3 of fair value measurement.
The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units of
the properties are assessed and discounted at the market
yield expected by investors for this type of property. The
market rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighborhood.
The market yield is determined by reference to the yields
derived from analyzing the sales transactions of similar
commercial properties in the PRC and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment property.
The current use of the investment property is their highest
and best use.

The Group leases out investment property under operating
lease. The lease runs for an initial period of 15 years, with
an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated.
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

SN PR R R R B AR o or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.
frERREL b
IR BER Proportion of ownership interest
Y BAEARR  AREY Y| WELE
Place of Particulars of ERER fi&E fi&H
establishment issued and Group’s Held Held
kS and paidin effective by the bya ZEEH
Name of company business capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
ERFHEEMFTERAA hE N 100% 100% - BARBREY R REGERR
Huitone Datatech Smart Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 52,120,0007C BREREERREEBINER
(EBEHERMEERAA) RMBS52,120,000 Provision of intelligent business
and marketing solutions through
service offering platform and
other relevant services
TH=-2HEERAR hE NG 100% 100% - REEBPHEREE
Jiangsu Sanchuang Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(TH=EHRERAR) RMB20,000,000 business
IHEUBRENRERAT GilET AEE 92% - 0% REFBROEMEE
Jiangsu Xinglihui Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 2,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(THE UBBENRARAT) RMB2,000,000 business
HIERERENKERAT hE ARE 100% 100% - REEBPHERHE
Zhejiang Huabaihui Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FIEREBENZERAA) RMB10,000,000 business
EREMIELERAT i AR 100% 100% - RAERROEREE
Huitongda (Zhejiang) Network Co., Ltd. The PRC 30,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(EREMIELERAR) RMB30,000,000 business
Frizfz SHREREEAT HE ARE 100% 100% - REEBPOBREE
Qianyun Information Technology Co., Lid. The PRC 50,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FriaEEMEERERAR) RMB50,000,000 business
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14

REE AR NER (&) 14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
it L
HIR EEAR Proportion of ownership interest
XL B4EARR  AREN Y| HEAT
Place of Patticularsof ~ EBEH fikB fieH
establishment issued and Group’s Held Held
kL and paidin effective by the bya ZEEH
Name of company business capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
BHERRBEEERAT GileT AEE 60% 60% - RAERROEMEE
Xuzhou Huinongda Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,000t Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FHEREBERRAR) RMB10,000,000 business
ERHERGERAT Giléd N 59% 59% - RAEBMHEmEE
Changshu Suhui Network Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FRHERRARLA) RMB20,000,000 business
THESBEHRERAT i ARE 60% 60% - REEBPHEREE
Jiangsu Huidi Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(IHERAENEERAR) RMB20,000,000 business
HIGERRARAT GilET ARE 60% 60% - RAERROEMEE
Zhejiang Changhui Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FISEMRERAR) RMB10,000,000 business
TEECEBRENKERAT e ARE 100% - 0%  RAFHPHERHE
Jiangsu Huiyiheng Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(THEREBENTERAT) RMB10,000,000 business
MMESEFERAT hE ARE 60% 60% - REEBPHEREE
Hangzhou Huiyin Electronic Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(MNESETERAR) RMB10,000,000 business
PEERBENRERAA Giled AEE 65% 65% - RAERROEMEE
Shanghai Danao Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(LEERAEREARL) RMB20,000,000 business
FREETERENAERAT Giléd N 60% - 0% REXBIHEMAE
Beijing Huidechengda Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(tREEHERERRERLA) RMB10,000,000 business
MARAEFERAR i AR 60% 60% - REERPNEREE
Hangzhou Hangrong Electronics Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(AMBETERAR) RMB10,000,000 business
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14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

frERREL b
HIR EEAR Proportion of ownership interest
Y BREAHE  REEY £0F il ]
Placeof  Particularsof ~ EMEH fitA fikE

establishment issued and Group’s Held Held

kL and paidin effective by the bya ZEEH

Name of company business capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity

WREZREERERHARLA GileT ARE 60% 60% - REEBROEREE

Shandong Huihuanong Ecological Agriculture Science The PRC 20,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
and Technology Co., Ltd. RMB20,000,000 business
(LREEREEEENAARAR)

B EREEAENRERAT i N 60% 60% - REEBPHERHE

Hubei Huitongsaipu Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 15,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(ALERELEENEERLT) RMB15,000,000 business

LWREFERENEERAT e AR% 60% 60% - REERPNEREE

Shandong Huihaoyun Agricultural Science and The PRC 10,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
Technology Co., Lid (IR EFERZREERLR) RMB10,000,000 business

EREXBERRERAA GilET N 60% 60% - REERPOEREE

Ningbo Huimei Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 1,500,007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FREXBENRERAR) RMB1,500,000 business

SMTEBEEREERAA GilET ARH 60% 60% - RAEBMOEMEE

Quanzhou Guangsheng Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 22,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FNTEBBENEERAR) RMB22,000,000 business

FrREEBENAERAA Giléd N 60% 60% - REERPNEREE

Beijing Huizhongxin Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,0007c Sales of merchandise in commerce
(IREFEBEHEERAT) RMB10,000,000 business

AMBEESHKERAA hE NG 60% 60% - REERPOEREE

Hangzhou Pinchen Information Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 5,000,000 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(NREEERRERAR) RMB5,000,000 business

EREELBANEERAA GilET AR 60% 60% - RAEBMHEMEE

Jinan Huidafeng Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(BEEEZRERRARLT) RMB10,000,000 business
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14

REE AR NER (&) 14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
it L
HIR EEAR Proportion of ownership interest
XL B4EARR  AREN Y| HEAT
Place of Patticularsof ~ EBEH fikB fieH
establishment issued and Group’s Held Held
kL and paidin effective by the bya ZEEH
Name of company business capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
HLEREHZRRAT GileT ARE 73% 73% - REEBTOEREE
Hubei Huirongsheng Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 15,000,007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FEELEEEERAF) RMB15,000,000 business
NSRRI RERRERAA Giléd N 67% 67% - RAEBMOEMEE
Hunan Dingrun Tongda Building Materials Technology The PRC 12,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
Co, Ltd. (HESERERIMBEHRERAT) RMB12,000,000 business
HIERBRHKERAT hE NEH 51% 51% - REEBPHEREE
Zhejiang Huichao Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FIERBERRERAD) RMB20,000,000 business
EHERBHEARAT GileT ARE 100% 100% - REEBPOEREE
Wuxi Huijuheng Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 5,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(EHEZEHEERAF) RMBS,000,000 business
THERHSEREARAT Giléd N 100% 100% - RAEBMOEMEE
Jiangsu Huidenuo Electrical Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(IHERHSEHERRAA) RMB10,000,000 business
LSRR ERAR i AR 60% 60% - REERPNEREE
Shanghai Xunjida Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(LEREERENRERAA) RMB10,000,000 business
FRARERAZZERAT GileT ARE 100% 100% - REEBTOEREE
Zhangjiagang Shengshi Xinxing Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 5,000,000 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(RRASEMERZERAE) RMB5,000,000 business
ER-HREARAA Giléd N 40% - 0% REFBIHERHE
Chongaing Sanmeng Agriculture Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(BE=RREERAR) RMB20,000,000 business
THEFERBLERAT hE N 51% 51% - REEBPHEREE
Jiangsu Home Express Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,000 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(THEFEREEERART) RMB10,000,000 business
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14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

frERREL b
HIR EEAR Proportion of ownership interest
Y BREAHE  REEY £0F il ]
Placeof  Particularsof ~ EMEH fitA fikE

establishment issued and Group’s Held Held

kL and paidin effective by the bya ZEEH

Name of company business capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity

ERARBBANRARLT GileT ARE 40% - 0% REFBROEREE

Fujian Yishengtong Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(BEZRBRENEARLA) RMB20,000,000 business

EBTERSSHERRAA Giléd N 70% 70% - RAEBIHEMEE

Fuyang Huipeng Electric Appliance Sales Co., Ltd. The PRC 5,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(FETERSSHERRAA) RMBS5,000,000 business

ENEERSREARAR hE NEH 70% 70% - REEBPHEREE

Guangzhou Henghui Trade Development Co., Ltd. The PRC 12,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(BNBEEAERERAD) RMB12,000,000 business

HIERES TRRARLT GileT ARE 100% - 100% REEBTOBHRHE

Zhejiang Haijuhui e-commerce Co., Lid. The PRC 10,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(MTEZESTALKARLA) RMB10,000,000 business

THIRBEHAERAT hE ARE 100% 100% - RAEBPHEREE

Jiangsu Jiangge Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(TEIBRENERRAR) RMB10,000,000 business

BERE(RE) MRARAA hE ARE 60% 60% - REEBPHEREE

Changhui TEDA (Tianjin) Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(BERE(RR)MRARLR) RMB10,000,000 business

EREREERARAT e ARE 60% 60% - REEBROEREE

Ningbo Yunhuida Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. The PRC 2,000,0007 Sales of merchandise in commerce
(EREEEERERAF) RMB2,000,000 business

ERAT (L&) iR ERAA Giléd N 55% - 5% REEBRHEMAE

Huizhongtianxia (Jiangsu) New Energy Technology The PRC 10,000,00070 Sales of merchandise in commerce
Co., Ltd. (ERX NI&) M FRHARAR) RMB10,000,000 business

THEYERENRERAT hE N 100% 100% - RAEHPHEREESales of

Jiangsu Huibangbang Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,000 merchandise in commerce
(IHEERBENRERLA) RMB10,000,000 business
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14 RHEBEATRINER (&) 14 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
ZEEBRNFBRKINEREERF © Z These entities are limited liability companies established
EEBNEFLZBARBRN - RAIEHME in the PRC. The official names of these entities are in
XEZEHEA - Chinese. The English translation of the company names is

for identification purpose only.
HZE2021F K2020F 12 A31AILFE - & During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
SEAEEREERINBATPIFEER - the Group’s non-controlling interests are diverse among
AEEMBARMEES EAIEERAERS - the subsidiaries. None of the Group’s subsidiaries has a
material non-controlling interest.

15 REBERT2ERE 15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
TEREIAEEHEE AT ZHE - T The following list contains the particulars of associates
BN RFELTAREE  BUEMISH of the Group, all of which are unlisted corporate entities
& : whose quoted market price is not available:

freERREL b
20215124318
Proportion of ownership interest
HIR ERTR as at December 31, 2021
XY BMEARK  KREN AR HEAT
Place of Particulars of ERER fi&sH fisH
establishment issued and Group’s Held Held
BELALE and paidin effective by the bya ZEEH
Name of associate business capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
BEZRBRENEARAN (Wit hE AR 40% - 0% HEAERHESR
Fujian Yishengtong Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 20,000,000t Sales of vehicle accessories
(REZRBRHBREAERLF) (Note ) RMB20,000,000 merchandise
ARERERARRERAR Wti) e AR% 19% 19% - BRERETEBRRBREEYS
Nanjing Nongpaidang Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 16,000,000t Development of agricultural
(ERERRREREERAR) (Note i) RMB16,000,000 e-commerce and service
offering platforms
BEERERGERRARDR (Wit hE AR 0% - 0% REANERRE
Hainan Huitong Youcheng Information Technology Co., The PRC 10,000,000t Rendering human resource
Ltd. (BREREREEMHERRAR) (Mote i) RMB10,000,000 services
EEBANE (BB)BRAR (W) i N 51% - 1% HENEEMER
Xingda Network Technology (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. The PRC 10,000,000t Sales of vehicle accessories
(EERBRR(BE)ERAT) (Note iv) RMB 10,000,000 merchandise
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REtE AR 2 Em (&) 15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
it L
20215123318
Proportion of ownership interest
HIR BRIk as at December 31, 2021
EXNE  BMEARE  KEEN RE WEAE
Place of Particulars of ERER fisH 5%
establishment issued and Group’s Held Held
BELAER and paidin effective by the bya IEZEE
Name of associate business capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
AREEEEENRARAT My hE AR®T - - - HEREEBETEM
Nanjing Yunhuihua Wisdom Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 5,000,000 Sales of home consumer
(EREEERERKERAR) (Mote v) RMB5,000,000 electronics merchandise
ABREE (TR BRAA (i) G ARBETL 40% 40% - HEEKHH
Fenxing Tongda Liquor (Henan) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB nil Sales of liquor and beverages
(ARBEEZ (W) ERAA) (Note v)
EEERERESRNERAR Witvi) f AEH - - - HERERM
Shanghai Huidapuzhao Information Technology Co., The PRC 1,950,0007T Sales of home building
Ld. (DEZEERELRAMERLA) Note vi) RMB1,950,000 and renovation materials
merchandise
ARmEEBARRARAR (Wtvii) i AEH 30% - 30% REKERBRERHE
Nanjing Shumei Network Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 1,710,0007T Rendering technology services

(BRMEEFENRERLE) (Note vii)

e

(i) HR2020F 108 » AEEEBEIEAR
#8,000,000 TR &R EL R MABLEE
BRERAG ([REZRB]) M40%K

AR -

RIBREXZRBOREZNT

REBRAERGMHSENLEE - B
20211 R AEBEH—RE=FHEL
— BT HERERER BN ANER

BB A A -

RMB1,710,000

Notes:

(i)

and sales of merchandise

In October 2020, the Group invested 40% of the equity
interest in Fujian Yishengtong Network Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Yishengtong”) through capital
injection of RMB8,000,000. The investment in Fujian
Yishengtong increases the Group’s involvement in
vehicle accessories market. In January 2021, the
Group entered into an agreement of concerted actor
with a third party, and Fujian Yishengtong became a

subsidiary of the Group.
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15 REBERXT2ERE (&)
Wiz : (&)

(ii) #H2019F9 A « NEEFILIRE e -
FiBEEARY5,100,0007 TR ERE
REBEAEREAERAR ([BRER
1) M51% R AR - LB R EHE
RAREBEMTEAR - NERRAE
(—HFIRBEREEETFES RS
RETEMBIFAR) HKRE  24K&
EEUPRREEEERTIS -

M2020565R  AEBEEE=F7FT7 1
FoB ARERELHEERERE
HEM20%RAEZ REHBEAA
R#1,600,0007C ° A - S—HE=
J5 B EEE ANRY6,000,000 T 88/
FEMEN37 5% AR - RAER
ERHERFZNTE%  AEBRE
FEMEZESLAIEEEE19% M
EREAETHAEAEEZWE AR -
W AREEZEE AR - RIBARE
B AEEEEZT—RESNAER
BHBEESZS At AAREERA
AEENEHERRAEEEEATE
71 WEERAAEEMNEE AR

(iiiy  R2020FE 118 AEEBEBIEAR
#2 000,000 Ci% & /B8R ERERES
RHFZ AR A RIH20% R Az o

(iv)  72020F58 @ AEBBBTEARE
4,600,000 T E 2ERERE(F5)
ERAT ([EESE]) 46% M ANHE
o REZEMBHIREENT ALEER
RBERMTSENREE -

M20215628  AEBE—ZE=7IK
B BIEMREIINS % IR - PRI T
% REBEREEMBHIRERI6%E
E51% R EERBRAASENNER
aj °

15

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

In September 2019, the Group entered into an
investment agreement to invest 51% equity interest in
Nanjing Nongpaidang Network Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Nongpaidang”) through capital injection of
RMB5,100,000, upon which Nanjing Nongpaidang
became a subsidiary of the Group. The investment in
Nanjing Nongpaidang, an innovative company focusing
on development of agricultural e-commerce and service
offering platforms, enables the Group to have exposure
to market of agricultural production materials.

In May 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with
a third party, pursuant to which, the Group agreed to
dispose its 20% equity interest in Nanjing Nongpaidang
at a cash consideration of RMB1,600,000. Meanwhile,
another third party acquired 37.5% equity interest
in Nanjing Nongpaidang through capital injection of
RMB6,000,000. Upon the completion of the Group’s
disposal and capital injection from the third party, the
proportion of the Group’s equity interest in Nanjing
Nongpaidang has been diluted to 19% and Nanjing
Nongpaidang ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group
but became an associate of the Group. The Group
has a right to appoint one Director to the board of
Nanjing Nongpaidang in accordance with the articles
of association, therefore the Directors of the Company
are in the view that the Group can cast significant
influence on Nanjing Nongpaidang and consider it is
an associate of the Group.

In November 2020, the Group invested 20% of the
equity interest in Hainan Huitong Youcheng Information
Technology Co., Ltd. through capital injection of
RMB2,000,000.

In May 2020, the Group invested 46% of the equity
interest in Xingda Network Technology (Qingdao)
Co., Ltd. (“Xingda Network”) through capital injection
of RMB4,600,000. The investment in Xingda Network
increases the Group’s involvement in vehicle
accessories market.

In February 2021, the Group acquired additional 5%
of the equity interest in Xingda Network from a third
party. Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group
increased equity interest shareholding in Xingda
Network from 46% to 51% and Xingda Network became
a subsidiary of the Group.



15 REBERXT2ERE (&)
Wiz : (&)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

R2020F 11 A - REEFBTIEAR
#2,000,000 LA R EEZEL ZF
BBERAR ([MREEZE]) H40%K
o RBEREEENRELNT KK
ERNHEBETESMBHNERE - B
2021F6 R AEEHEENERERE
EM R - EB B ARK2,000,0007T °

BH2021F 1A » REEF L MA
BEREMNBBEBRZCOTE) BRAR
(DB BE])I0BEE  HEAAR
#2,000,0007T © #ZE2021412 A31
H ANEEHBEELLE -

#2021F3A  AEBEF L HELRAE
BRELBRELRBEBRINTABRAA
([ E/BEEEMR ) 35%AIE - HEAA
R #3,500,0007T ° 7420214128 + K&
FEHEEREN L RETRARE -
REAT - HEERH  AEEBER
PEEETRELLE -

H2021F11 A AEEUTHELE
HRBOEAMEEREREAR AR
([FREE]) 53%MARE - ZARIIA
EEZHBAR - TERERITRE R
EmEE e RHERY  AEEHER
ERHEEELLE - RAEETKLE
% AEEREREEZESLIIE S
EE30% MERHSETHBARNEERY
MEAR - ERANEEZHE AR -

MRiEEER BN EEMEN2021FRALNE
BEMB AT - LA E QRS EA
AR A MIERALR -
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15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

In November 2020, the Group invested 40% of
the equity interest in Nanjing Yunhuihua Wisdom
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Yunhuihua”) through
capital injection of RMB2,000,000. The investment in
Nanjing Yunhuihua increases the Group’s involvement
in consumer electronics market. In June 2021, the
Group disposed its equity interest in Nanjing Yunhuihua
at a consideration of RMB2,000,000.

In January 2021, the Group entered into an agreement
and agreed to subscribe 40% of the equity interest in
Fenxing Tongda Liquor (Henan) Co., Ltd. (“Fenxing
Tongda”) at a consideration of RMB2,000,000. As of
December 31, 2021, nil capital contribution was made
by the Group.

In March 2021, the Group entered into an agreement
and agreed to subscribe 35% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Huidapuzhao Information Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Huidapuzhao”) at a consideration of
RMB3,500,000. In December 2021, the Group disposed
its subscribed equity interest in Shanghai Huidapuzhao
at nil consideration. As of the date of disposal,
nil capital contribution was made by the Group in
Shanghai Huidapuzhao.

In November 2021, the Group disposed 53% of the
subscribed equity interest in Nanjing Shumei Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Shumei”), which was
the Group’s subsidiary principally engaged in rendering
technology services and sales of merchandise, at nil
consideration. As of the date of disposal, nil capital
contribution was made by the Group in Nanjing
Shumei. Upon the completion of the Group’s disposal,
the proportion of the Group’s equity interest in Nanjing
Shumei has been diluted to 30% and Nanjing Shumei
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group but became an
associate of the Group.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements,
except for Fujian Yishengtong and Xingda Network became
subsidiaries of the Group in 2021.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether this is any objective evidence
that its interest in the associates are impaired at the end
of each Reporting Period by considering the associates’
business development process, any significant financial
difficulty, default or bankruptcy encountered by the
associates and adverse change in technological, market,
economic or legal environment. Based on the assessment
above, the Group concluded that no impairment indicator
was identified at the end of each Reporting Period and
no impairment loss of interest in associates is considered
necessary to be recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T AR®ET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ERIFEE KRB E N FIREA  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
B RNRERE immaterial associates in the consolidated
financial statements 1,990 18,042
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REBEFELZFEE AR Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of
B 4258 those associates’
HERLEBER Loss from continuing operations 1,820 1,408
Hib2miizs Other comprehensive income = -
FEWNEE AT Total comprehensive income 1,820 1,408
LUARBETEEESH:t AHME® 16 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
HRENESHEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
EEAAAEETEEHBEBTA Equity securities designated at FVOCI
Htt 2 AR ENRAFS (FAEE) (non-recycling)
—IRERIFELETRAZS — Investment in unlisted equity security 2,000 2,000
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

The unlisted equity security is equity interest of a private
entity incorporated in the PRC. This entity is principally
engaged in offering pawns services to individuals or small
and medium enterprises.

The Group designated its investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling), as the investment is held for strategic purposes.
No dividends were received on this investment during the
year (2020: nil).

The analysis on the fair value measurement of the above
financial asset is disclosed in Note 34(e).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

20214 2020%F
2021 2020
ARET T AR®ET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
UAREBEFTEBESEHTAE Financial assets at FVPL
BENEREE
— BT IR E M - Structured deposits and wealth
management products 2,705,757 1,073,930

NAnBEFEEEZHFIAEHEENS
REESBHTHEZRERMEBRITNERENE
FREEMER  BFPEHHERESR
B SRBR PN o

R2021F12H31H + AR#1,722,100,000
7L (20204 + AR¥E467,602,0007T) M4
MHERREBMEREEREAZRITENZE
E@}ﬁﬁuu °©

FHemEENARBEAED THRME
34(e) W -

The financial assets at FVPL are structured deposits and
wealth management products issued by various financial
institutions in the PRC with a floating return which will be
paid together with the principal on the maturity date or on
demand.

As at December 31, 2021, structured deposits and wealth
management products of RMB1,722,100,000 (2020:
RMB467,602,000) were pledged as security for issuance of
bills payable.

The analysis on the fair value measurement of the above
financial assets is disclosed in Note 34(e).
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18 INVENTORIES

FENBRRRANEERSE : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®T T ARBEFT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

[ Merchandise 2,620,770 2,182,345

BT Em Goods in transit 180,623 147,039

2,801,393 2,329,384

FEHUR Write-down of inventories (82,770) (78,801)

2,718,623 2,250,583

BRABIEFABEZNEERED (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

faw recognized as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

20214 20204

2021 2020

ARET T ARBTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

EEFENREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 63,494,066 46,799,026

FERREE Provision for write-down of inventories 15,747 54,191

63,509,813 46,853,217

2021412 4318 + AR#16,337,000 As at December 31, 2021, inventories of

70 (20204F : AR#512,522,0007T) H7F
HEEMEAZTEAEAEIRR -

RMB16,337,000 (2020: RMB12,522,000) were
pledged as security for issuance of letters of credit.

FrEFETEER —FAUE - All inventories are expected to be recovered within

one year.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®T T ARBET T

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

E S EWGRIE Trade receivables 1,616,940 951,910
B IR R Less: loss allowance (45,692) (24,271)
1,571,248 927,639

EKEE Bills receivable 1,081,519 919,765
2,652,767 1,847,404

BB SRR R ERERBRN —FR
Wem o

EWEE T EREVERARTALRE - K
SEBENHE (KRB ELBEHAE
128 8) BRITWEREHEE - AEBBE
TEEREENEERE - AEETERIEH
RS ERKEE  WEEE S REMEN
IR °

R2021F 128310 - AEEREERES S
ETRITEARLEE  WRE2HEEBRALEL
HEHBHREMENKIE - AEEE X
PRITERZERENES R EMNHER R
o ZERIEBRBITEALZENIHA R
HERKREF IR+ @A - KRFESE
RE AEBECEEZSREMAENEXR
HoRBEER  WEBITEEMNHERRK
HEHMEMF  MWETRITREREBREE
2 AIARSEEREERETRBERARER
RZEEBEENEEETAENRRE
R ANEERABZERENBITRITAGR
THEBEEE  BRITEITAIRAERE
R LA EZERE - 2021412 A31
B WETRITRERIBRLEERE - K
FEMNHKNEBRAMEREIE SR L ER (8
REBRBSEZREMNEEFNFIERR)
A ANERK643,419,0007T (20204 : AR
500,284,0007T) °

All of the trade and bills receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Bills receivable primarily represent short-term bank
acceptance notes receivable that entitle the Group to
receive the full face amount from the banks at maturity,
which generally ranges from 3 to 12 months from the date
of issuance. Historically, the Group had experienced no
credit losses on bills receivable. The Group from time to
time endorses bills receivable to suppliers in order to settle
trade and other payables.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group endorsed certain
bank acceptance bills to suppliers for settling trade and
other payables of the same amount on a full recourse
basis. The Group has derecognized these bills receivable
and payables to suppliers in their entirety. These
derecognized bank acceptance bills had a maturity date
of less than twelve months from the end of the Reporting
Period. In the opinion of the Directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of these bills and has discharged its
obligation of the payables to its suppliers, and the Group
has limited exposure in respect of the settlement obligation
of these bills receivable under the relevant PRC rules and
regulations, should the issuing banks fail to settle the bills
on maturity date. The Group considered the issuing banks
of these bills are of good credit quality and non-settlement
of these bills by the issuing banks on maturity is not
probable. As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to loss and undiscounted cash outflow, which
is same as the amount payable by the Group to suppliers
in respect of the endorsed bills, should the issuing banks
fail to settle the bills on maturity date, amounted to
RMB643,419,000 (2020: RMB500,284,000).
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19 EBZRRFEREBURERS (&)

ETRBERUNBRES MR TS
o ERATEENEARSS RER BRI R
HY  BHRAEBRFESACDEREE -
MR 2021F 12 A31 B EAR IEHERBARE
1,904,0007¢ (20204 : AR# 23,700,000
JL) B BRIR FEUREIE o

MR2021F 128318 » ARBZ L (2020
F: AR¥4,040,00070) NE S EWFIES
WIEBIRITE R R EMEFRAER -

AR 2 4T

BERSHR BZFREFARERRER
EHRAHRIRERBENREDTNOT

19

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Certain bills receivable were discounted to financial
institutions with recourse, where substantially the risks
and rewards of ownership had not been transferred. Since
the Group has continuing involvement in the transferred
assets, discounted bills receivable of RMB1,904,000 (2020:
RMB23,700,000) were therefore not derecognized as at
December 31, 2021.

As at December 31, 2021, trade receivables of RMB nil
(2020: RMB4,040,000) were pledged as security for bank
loans and other borrowings.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivable, based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR¥T AREFIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

3EAR Within 3 months 2,472,909 1,753,897
HBE3EAEEI2EARN Over 3 months but within 12 months 155,894 77,674
HBiE12ME A Over 12 months 23,964 15,833
2,652,767 1,847,404

BHREGRBENERBHE0RARE
H - ERAEEEERRENRE S RYWAE
EREERBRINE — FRIBRNMES4(a)

Trade receivables are generally due within 90 days from
the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables are set
out in Note 34(a).
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20 PREPAYMENTS,

RECEIVABLES

DEPOSITS AND OTHER

202145 20204

2021 2020

ARET T AREETTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AN B Prepayments 7,475,689 5,795,940
AU [l HE{E R Value added tax recoverable 151,778 162,829
2R B FE P A R R FE UL FRIA Refund receivables from suppliers 293,739 156,174
FEU AT FY 8 2 B FRIE Amounts due from former subsidiaries 344,139 368,839
EabiE e M EWEA Other deposits and receivables 308,816 285,885
8,574,161 6,769,667

B BEREE Less: loss allowance (157,281) (149,657)
8,416,880 6,620,010

FRBE BN IR  BE REM BRI

R—FRREREBHFHX -

R2021F12A31H » BRFBARBZT
(20204 : AR¥6,801,0007T) BT IEA

RITER R EAEROERR

All of prepayments, deposits and other receivables are

expected to be recovered or recognized as expense within

one year.

and other borrowings.

As at December 31, 2021, prepayments of RMB nil (2020:
RMB6,801,000) were pledged as security for bank loans
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20 FEAMNFE- -BREREMEWTE(E) 20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

REBERA - AEEFEMNFKIE - e REM Movement in the loss allowance in respect of the Group’s
FERFIER BERESE ST ¢ prepayments, deposits and other receivables during the

Reporting Period is as follows:

2HES 2HES
128A%S EEFE- EEER-
BEFE BEERE EERE i
Lifetime ECL- Lifetime ECL-
not credit- credit-
12-month ECL impaired impaired Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#2020 1A1H As at January 1, 2020 1817 44,944 202,326 249,087
HESE (BE)/ #R Impairment losses (reversed)/recognized (86) 27,220 57,836 84970
ERT2UREESFE - EEERHAE  Transfer to lifetime ECL-not credit-mpaired (497) 497 - -
SRZLHEHEERE-FEWA  Transfer to lifetime ECL-creditimpaired - (25,576) 25,576 -
fiis# Write-off - - (49,938) (49,938)
LENBLRER Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (34) (1,787) (132,641) (134,462)
12020124318 k20211 A 1A As at December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 1,200 45,298 108,159 149,657
EHRAEER Impairment losses recognized 1,508 22,489 49,179 73,176
ERTREBHEEEE -EEEHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL-not credit-mpaired (679) 679 - -
ERCREBHEEFE-F8WE  Transfer to lifetime ECL-creditimpaired - (5,184) 5,184 -
btz Write-off - - (59,083) (59,083)
LENBARER Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (993) (1,302) (4,174) (6,469)
20215128318 As at December 31, 2021 1,036 61,980 94,265 157,281
21 RilFR - BAERREHFR 21 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, PLEDGED DEPOSITS
AND TIME DEPOSITS
(a) MREEFERERE (a) Restricted deposits comprise:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR%TT ARKEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AR HI 77 3K Other restricted deposits 15,492 =
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21 RilFR - BRAERREHFR (F) 21 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, PLEDGED DEPOSITS
AND TIME DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

(b) EREREE: (b) Pledged deposits comprise:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BIHEAER Current portion 3,873,552 4,006,904
JERNERER Non-current portion 1,150,000 630,000

BTN EREREREMIEAEFR  Pledged deposits for issuance of bill
payables and letters of credit 5,023,552 4,636,904
HHEFERENEEREENEZERE The pledged deposits will be released upon the
FAEBERE - settlement of the relevant bills payable and letters of

credit.
(c) REHEIREHE: (¢) Time deposits comprise:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BNEAER 5 Current portion = 160,000
JERNERER Non-current portion 865,000 530,000
865,000 690,000

22 HERBRLHEEYUREMBEELAE 22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

=% CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) HBHeRRLEEYWERE: (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARBFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
RITHER Cash at bank 2,966,875 4,315,499
FEERS Cash in hand 45 478

2,966,920 4,315,977
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22 HERHRLZEYLUREMEKEEAKEE 22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

&H (&) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(b) KRBABEEKEMESESNEE (b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash
generated from operations
2021 % 2020
2021 2020
AR¥T R ARBT
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
BRELATE R Loss before taxation (76,115) (198,521)
AR Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 80,359 79,951
B REMENFBEEHERE Provision for credit loss on trade and
other receivables 101,415 98,712
SEASERTEME 2 E A Write-on of other receivables previously
written off (11,115) (9,060)
FEMREE Provision for write-down of inventories 15,747 54,191
FBRA Finance costs 879,292 704,878
B Finance income (166,308) (101,006)
HENE  BERREZ (W), BEFE Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (104) 396
AR BEEREEH T AEIEAA  Net realized and unrealized gains on
SREEREARAERA N FE financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (136,663) (113,238)
HEME A AR W T8 Net gain on disposal of interests in
subsidiaries (734) (6,971)
SRS A A F 58 Net gain on disposal of associates (185) -
kNG Share of losses of associates 1,820 1,408
EELESEE Changes in working capital:
BE (N, B (Increase)/decrease in inventories (941,329) 361,167
B 5 Lk Bt B Increase in trade and other receivables (2,881,502) (901,990)
PR 77 8 A0 Increase in restricted deposits (15,492) -
BITENZBR RERBOERFIILM Increase in pledged deposits for issuance
of bills payable and letters of credit (386,648) (1,822,128)
B 5 R E A FIEE M Increase in trade and other payables 3,511,458 3,191,420
anamEEm,/(Rd) Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 955,764 (786,835)
BERS Decrease in provisions (843) (11,552)
B AR D Decrease in deferred income - (688)
RemERE Cash generated from operations 928,817 540,134
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22 HBHERHESZEYUREMEELRKE 22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
B8 (&) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) BMEFHELENEEYIR (c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

TEFRAEEREFHELNHAE
88 BERLRIRLED - WA
EBELHBEARE RBIRKR

ERENAEEGERERERSE

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash

RBERDASRERENEE -

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated cash flow statements as
cash flows from financing activities.

REWEAR
RITEHR FERRR
EfhfeR WER HESE EEEE Eh)
Loans from
non-
Bank loans controlling Redeemable
and other  shareholders Lease capital
borrowings  of subsidiaries liabilities  contributions Total
ARETT ABETR ABETR ABETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
(Hi23) (Hito4) (Hi25) (it30)
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 30)
#0211 1R At January 1, 2021 212,782 40,588 136,054 9,285,430 9,674,854
HERSRESD: Changes from financing cash flows:
HERTETREBERAERE Proceeds from new bank loans and other borrowings 1,731,275 = = = 1,731,275
EEBTERREABER Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings (1,807,462) - - - (1,807,462)
REMELAFERRR 2 IEER New loans from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries - 307,263 - - 307,263
EENBAREARRRER Repayment of loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries - (328,118) - - (328,118)
BRRERSMERTS Capital element of lease rentals paid - - (70,655) - (70,655)
ENREREHNE TS Interest element of lease rentals paid - - (5,494) - (5,494)
AEETEMERE Proceeds from redeemable capital contributions - = = =
ERHE Interest paid (193,905) (3,619) - - (197,524)
HERSNERBER Total changes from financing cash flows (270,092) (24,474) (76,149) - (370,715)
HfiRE Other changes:
ERUFHEEHREE BEN Increase in lease liabiliies from entering into new leases
during the year - - 58,666 - 58,666
ISR (fie) Interest expenses (Noie 6/2)) 193,741 2,567 5,494 677,490 879,292
HERBRRER (W22e) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Note 22/¢)) (6,97) (1,655) (16,245) - (24,87)
AEETEEN B ARE Reclassification of redeemable capital contributions as equity - - - (935,475) (935,475)
AthenaE Total other changes 186,770 912 47,915 (257,985) (22,388)
20215128318 At December 31, 2021 129,460 17,026 107,820 9,027,445 9,281,751
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22 HERHRLZEYLUREMEKEEAKEE 22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

&H (&) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(c) RMEITHEENEMB/YHIER (E) (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)
REHBAR
BAEFR  FERREY
Hfbfe3 B HEEE AEETE ey
Loans from
Bank loans  non-controlling Redeemable
and other  shareholders Lease capital
borrowings  of subsidiaries liabilities  contributions Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(st23) (i) (Hizs) (Hits0)
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 30)
H202081 718 At January 1, 2020 484,539 79,666 151,937 7,483,290 8,199,432
RERSHERD: Changes from financing cash flows:
MERTETREGERNEE Proceeds from new bank loans and other borrowings 783943 - - - 783,943
EEBTERRABER Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings (1,055,453) - - - (1,055,453)
RENBLAAFERRE  EER New loans from non-contralling shareholders of subsidiaries - 127,449 - - 127,449
EENBATFARREER Repayment of loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries - (144,890) - - (144,890)
ERRERSRERSS Capital element of lease rentals paid - - (46,876) - (46,876)
BREERSMAETS Interest element of lease rentals paid - - (6,021) - (6,021)
AEETEMESE Proceeds from redeemable capital contributions - - - 1,200,000 1,200,000
ERFIE Interest paid (94,981) (1,633) - - (96,614)
BERSTEZDAE Total changes from financing cash flows (366,491) (19,074) (52,897) 1,200,000 761,538
R8s Other changes:
ERETUFHEEEREE BEN Increase in lease liabilties from entering into new leases during
the year - - 34,979 - 34,979
FISRx (Hiee) Interest expenses (Noie 6(2)) 94734 1,983 6,021 602,140 704,878
LENBLRER WiE22k) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Note 22/e)) = (21,987) (3,986) = (25,973)
AthenaE Total other changes 94,734 (20,004) 37,014 602,140 713,884
2020512831 At December 31, 2020 212,782 40,588 136,054 9,285,430 9,674,854
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22 HERHRLZEYLUREMEKEEAKEE 22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

EH(E) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d HERSREHAE (d) Total cash outflow for leases
REEHFAGEHERERNESEE Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow
FBATEIE - statement for leases comprise the following:

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBEFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BEREREN Within operating cash flows 40,339 49,439
BMEREREA Within financing cash flows 76,149 52,897
116,488 102,336
ZESHEUTRIERR : These amounts relate to the following:
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T R ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

EEERS Lease rentals paid 116,488 102,336
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22 HBHERHESZEYUREMEELRKE 22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
B8 (&) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(e) HEMBARAEZEMGSRERE (e)
FHE

R2021F K 2020F 12 A31 H IEF
B AEEEEERE THB AR
o ZEMBAREERFEKESE
REFEBHOERIEE - BHEERZ
ZEHENBRAREASEMS BN
EKX

RHEMBRAR AL EZEHEZE

Net cash flow arising from disposal of
interests in subsidiaries

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, the Group disposed its interests in certain
subsidiaries, which were principally engaged in
the merchandise sales in commerce business in
the PRC. None of these disposed subsidiaries are
individually material to the Group.

Aggregate of assets and liabilities at the date of

EXEEERE disposal of the subsidiaries over which control was
lost:
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
WME - BEREE (HiE11) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 1,105 774
EREEE (Hi12) Right-of-use assets (Note 12) 16,020 4,323
BREHIREE (H1531(b) Deferred tax assets (Note 31(b)) 3,103 10,818
T8 Inventories 457,542 348,161
RekB2EEY Cash and cash equivalents 44,141 11,075
B S REWGIE R ENRE Trade and bills receivables 62,637 248,209
TBRRIE - He REMbERIE Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 233,603 326,063
URABEFEB S8 AEHIEER  Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 3,827 -
AR EIREIE (H7231(a)) Taxation recoverable (Note 31(a)) 12 -
RITERREMIER (HF22(c)) Bank loans and other borrowings
(Note 22(c)) (6,971) -
B SN FIEREN ST Trade and bills payables (347,098) (105,725)
H A0 FE( FRIE R FERT & A Other payables and accruals (121,138) (375,877)
REMB R REERBRRNER Loans from non-controlling shareholders
(B1i#22(c)) of subsidiaries (Note 22(c)) (1,655) (21,987)
ERAE (H728) Contract liabilities (Note 28) (163,011) (271,103)
HERE (MiF22(c) Lease liabilities (Note 22(c)) (16,245) (3,986)
JERNTIIE (H1231(a)) Taxation payable (Note 31(a)) (60) (746)
ERETIEEE (Mi731(0)) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 31(b)) (126) (84)
IR Non-controlling interests (71,735) (89,218)

BHEEEFE Net assets disposed 93,951 80,697
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22 HERHRLZEYLUREMEKEEAKEE 22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

&H (&) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(e) HEMBARERFBELRE (e) Net cash flow arising from disposal of
HE (E) interests in subsidiaries (continued)
S B A Rl 2 W e FEE Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries:
20214 2020
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBEFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B Consideration 102,839 453,595
EHEEEFE Net assets disposed of (93,951) (80,697)
FREWE L ERTHE A FHRIE Effect of amounts due from former
pd-Z subsidiaries disposed during
the year (8,154) (365,927)
o S BT /B 2 B A ) M R H R Net gain on disposal of interests in
(Ft5t5(b)) subsidiaries (Note 5(b)) 734 6,971
EHLEWNBRAREZZHSFES Analysis of net cash in respect of the disposal of
war interests in subsidiaries is as follows:
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
HE Consideration 102,839 453,595
B ERERe KRB EEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents
disposed of (44,141) (11,075)
JE W S (B 35 hn Increase in consideration receivables (15,810) (14,351)
FRREWE L ERTE A THRIE Effect of amounts due from former
2B subsidiaries disposed during
the year (8,154) (865,927)
HEME A RS RIEFE Net proceeds received for disposal of

interests in subsidiaries 34,734 62,242
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23 HMITERRHAMER 23 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
RB|EIR - AEBEF BRITERG I HIE The maturity profile for the interest-bearing bank loans of
AT the Group at the end of the Reporting Period is as follows:

20214 2020%F
2021 2020
ARET T ARBTTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
—FAFIRENR Within 1 year or on demand 129,460 212,782
REREHAR - RITERRZE M ERAEIR At the end of each Reporting Period, the bank loans and

BRAT other borrowings were secured as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

RITER R H MDA Bank loans and other borrowings

— B - secured 101,904 184,503
— AT - unsecured 27,556 28,279

129,460 212,782
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RITERRHEMERR (F) 23 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

st Notes:
(i) RITERREMERNAEEETEE (i) The bank loans and other borrowings were secured by
EER - ZZEEEMNREESTOT - certain assets of the Group. An analysis of the carrying

value of these assets is as follows:
2021%F 20204
2021 2020
AR®TR AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B W oE (MiE19) Trade receivables (Note 19) = 4,040
FEUREIE (B 19) Bills receivable (Note 19) 1,904 23,700
TEfFRIE (MtaE20) Prepayments (Note 20) - 6,801
(i) W2021F 12 A31H » REEETE (i) At December 31, 2021, certain bank facilities granted
RERNETRITHERAERE —& to the Group for bank loans were guaranteed by Mr.
KIREEFERLEE « RRAFMITEEHR Wang Jianguo as the single largest shareholder of the
FEGXE  AEEREEAERAFIRE Group, Mr. Xu Xiuxian as the Executive Director of the
GEB AR ERTBEERERNDER Company, Five Star Holdings Group Co., Ltd. and its
NEIER  WOTEELEER T EITR affiliate Hosjoy Comfortable Smart Home Co., Ltd., and
EFEER AR - BFEE TN were pledged with Mr. Wang Jianguo’s equity interest
2021F 12 A1 HHRITER L AR E in Five Star Holdings Group Co., Ltd. Guarantees and
REEFRIEE N 202256 A28 HATE pledges issued by related parties for bank loans at
Hy o December 31, 2021 will be expired by June 28, 2022 at
the latest.

20215 2020%F
2021 2020
ARET T ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

FREEESE 5 AR R MR IRITE R Bank loans with guarantees and
pledges issued by related parties 100,000 150,000
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24

25

REMBARFEZERRRAER 24 LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REME R R IEERAR R A ER Loans from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 17,026 40,588

R2021F 2020612 A31H » REAMBEA
RAIIEERR RN ERRFEFNEN F4.35%=
T%5T B BEEAREAN —FAETHIE

EfEE -

HESRE 25
RIRE R - EEENHESENT ¢

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, loans from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries were subject to an
interest rate, ranging from 4.35% to 7% per annum, were
unsecured and expected to be settled within one year or
repayable on demand.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At the end of the Reporting Period, the lease liabilities were
repayable as follows:

20214 2020%F

2021 2020

ARET T ARBTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

1R Within 1 year 40,421 56,427
1620 R After 1 year but within 2 years 27,832 26,789
2FESFN After 2 years but within 5 years 25,699 35,075
54 1% After 5 years 13,868 17,763
67,399 79,627

107,820 136,054

R2021F 128310 BETHERHZET
HeNREEMEAEREAREZIT (2020
F£: ARM12,735,000) HEEEREH
BRARER -

At December 31, 2021, lease liabilities of RMB nil (2020:
RMB12,735,000) related to rental payments under certain
tenancy agreements were guaranteed by Five Star
Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

202145 20204

2021 2020

AR®T T ARBEFTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

B A Trade payables 1,588,378 1,338,206
EANESEY Bills payable 12,830,424 10,081,129
14,418,802 11,419,335

BERSHR  AEEEREREHNES
N RIBR BN EERNREDITAOT

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the ageing analysis
of the Group’s trade and bills payable, based on the
Group’s invoice date, is as follows:

20215 20204

2021 2020

AR¥T T AREFIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

3EAR Within 3 months 4,942,782 4,412,451
3E12{@A 3 to 12 months 9,362,080 6,916,119
HBiE121E A Over 12 months 113,940 90,765
14,418,802 11,419,335

A B 5 R A R AR RS TR — 4
R ERIRE MR -

R2021F & 2020F 12 A31H - AEEphEE
TENEEMERMNE TIRITHE RTER
EE(ERBAEBENE —5ARAKRE)  HFB
Tk (EREARRINMITES) RERRKRE
EERABILREBB AR ZRITFEEER
B BRATHRAIER o BIHE S R 20214F
12A31ERENEZEREANERZEKRN
2022912 A31 AR ERHEH -

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or repayable on demand.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, certain bank facilities
granted to the Group for issuance of bills payable were
guaranteed by Mr. Wang Jianguo as the single largest
shareholder of the Group, Mr. Xu Xiuxian as the Executive
Director of the Company, Five Star Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd. and its affiliate Hosjoy Comfortable Smart Home Co.,
Ltd. Guarantees issued by related parties for bills payable
at December 31, 2021 will be fully released by December
31, 2022 at the latest.

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBTTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
T H B RO ENRIR Bills payable with guarantees issued by
related parties 5,998,851 5,077,929
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27

28

Hit et REREFER 27 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
20214 2020
2021 2020
AR%T ARBET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BRI Accrued expenses 198,001 223,580
Bt B TR0 < 5/ 1E Payable for staff related costs 76,234 77,046
H b EEiIE Other taxes payable 88,522 51,072
B iz e Deposits received 21,967 33,083
FET A AN Logistics cost payables 41,168 22,055
FERIMT B A=) I8 Amounts due to former subsidiaries 27,631 16,804
FERTHI B A R R B Dividends payable to shareholders of
subsidiaries 4,964 1,274
W s IE iR i o 2 JE ST SR8 Payable for acquisition of non-controlling
interests 126,168 9,620
A, Others 27,370 9,227
612,025 443,761

AT EBRELHIEREMNS - IREK
AR EAFE o

FrEEMEMNSFRRETERBHHEN—F
NEBIIZERKER -

Accrued expenses primarily comprise marketing and
promotion expenses, service costs and other expenses.

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be
settled within one year or repayable on demand.

eHEaE 28 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REFRE 4584 Balance at the beginning of the year 2,133,207 3,191,145
BERFARRFENTAELHEENZD Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
BRIMABHE DA ERD recognizing revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (2,032,806) (2,921,242)
RAFEARIREMNREERASLHAE Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
o receiving advance payments during the
year 2,988,570 2,134,407
I F B A Rl R Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries 11,100 =
HEWBARERERALAERML Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
(Ht:z22(e)) disposal of interests in subsidiaries
(Note 22(e)) (163,011) (271,103)
RERI AR Balance at the end of the year 2,937,060 2,133,207
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HItEE 29 PROVISIONS

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBEFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RFA]] As at the beginning of the year 843 12,395
FREE Reversal for the year (843) (11,552)
RER As at the end of the year - 843

A EEFE 30 REDEEMABLE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

R2016F » AAREETREEIUKE
Wik Bl REREEREREARE
500,000,0007T * AW EEAR R R EREI10%
i ([ARVIZE]) - BAF - NARIH#E—
WEETREELIEE S - Bt - &
BEHEREHREARE500,000,0007T * W
AN B ERFHS.34% 1 ([A+E 5
&) -

MR2016F » ARAIE-—FKREEIT UK
Bz Bt ZREHFEREREAR
#300,000,0007C @ AU BEAR R FE
4.41%E#E ([BRIILE]D) -

MR2017F » ARRHE—ZREET LK
Bz Bt ZREEFEREREAR
#500,000,0007C © AUEARRQ R E R
4.76%MIE ([CRIEE]) o

R2018F » ARAIRARAETRE
REXEH-ZREEITUEEDGS &
i ZBREERBEAARARKREARE
2,500,000,0007T * WABRBFEREEZFA
R#2 000,000,000 * AUWEEARRQ BE B
20% M5 ([DRFIEE]) »

In 2015, the Company entered into an investment
agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which, these
investors agreed to invest RMB500,000,000 to acquire
10% of the then equity interest of the Company (referred
as “Series A Investment”). In the same year, the Company
further entered into an investment agreement with certain
investors, pursuant to which the investors agreed to
invest RMB500,000,000 to acquire 8.34% of the then
equity interest of the Company (referred as “Series A+
Investment”).

In 2016, the Company entered into an investment
agreement with an investor, pursuant to which, the investor
agreed to invest RMB300,000,000 to acquire 4.41% of the
then equity interest of the Company (referred as “Series B
Investment”).

In 2017, the Company entered into an investment
agreement with an investor, pursuant to which, the investor
agreed to invest RMB500,000,000 to acquire 4.76% of the
then equity interest of the Company (referred as “Series C
Investment”).

In 2018, the Company and certain existing investors of the
Company entered into an investment agreement with an
investor, pursuant to which, the investor agreed to invest
RMB2,500,000,000 in the Company and pay the existing
investors RMB2,000,000,000 to acquire 20% of the then
equity interest of the Company (referred as “Series D
Investment”).
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30

AARKEZ5)

AEEEE (&)

R2020%F  AARIEETFTREEFLIRE
Wk Bl REREBEREREARYE
1,200,000,0007T * AW A DA SR
4.58% 5% ([ERFILE]) »

BRAHEENRENKELEEZERRANRR]
Hip gl RAARNEREELREE - BX
ARABRENRECREERIENE T IR
RIREMBEAL LT -

e

RRARPARY ~ A+ BB R D REF|IREEET
R ERARNR RARAGBIFRENEEE
ETEHRED  T2EEE: WREER
RA(ARTIRETE £2020F6 A30H
Al - BLA+RFIRE M E 22020512 A 31
HA : BEDRFIKE M F H2022%F4 H26H
AT WHEETAERARBE @ (i) AQF
AN FBIRBRRERE LERKETTE
ThH -

\o

=\

RRBRBRIIEEEITHRMD EHARA A
RAAGRIPR RN EE T ErER
FEKEM A (HR2019F 12 A31 B AT &
ETABERAMRRE (VAR AERITERA
BEE  sk(ii) AR B AR R Al IR E R
BENERBETTEITH °

ARBNRCEINFEETHRMDEHARA
HAR BRI BRR AR R RAR B8R
REREFMANERRITRTERREL -

30

REDEEMABLE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
(CONTINUED)

In 2020, the Company entered into an investment
agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which, these
investors agreed to invest RMB1,200,000,000 to acquire
4.58% of the then equity interest of the Company (referred
as “Series E Investment”).

The investors of the Pre-IPO Investments are entitled to the
same voting rights and dividend rights as other founding
shareholders of the Company. Certain key special rights
attributable to the investors of the Pre-IPO Investments are
summarized as follows:

Redemption rights

Shares issued by the Company in the Series A, Series
A+ and Series D Investments shall be redeemable by
the Company and the founding shareholders of the
Company upon the occurrence of certain events, with
the main conditions being: (i) a qualified public offering
does not occur within the stipulated time frame (before
June 30, 2020 for Series A Investments; December 31,
2020 for Series A+ Investments; April 26, 2022 for Series
D Investments) or (ii) any breach of contractual terms or
misconducts by the Company or the founding shareholders
of the Company.

Shares issued by the Company in the Series B Investments
shall be redeemable by the Company and the founding
shareholders of the Company upon the occurrence of
certain events, with the main conditions being: (i) a
qualified public offering does not occur before December
31, 2019; (ii) changes to the Company’s beneficial
controlling shareholder; or (iii) any breach of contractual
terms or misconducts by the Company or the founding
shareholders of the Company.

Shares issued by the Company in the Series C Investments
shall be redeemable by the Company and the founding
shareholders of the Company upon the occurrence of
any breach of contractual terms or misconducts by the
Company or the founding shareholders of the Company.
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RRARRERILEEITHORD EHARR]
RARBAIRERNEESETENHRED
TEGRMGR  (WERIIRETRIZ4FAALE
ETRERRMEE (AR AHARRE
MBERD W BRI ERRHAEEMRE
MR EENBRENR (i) AQFETEIR
BRRAEEBARMBEERERFIRETKIZS
FUARFERE) THERERRENRAR
BB (V) ARARBEREEREREE
(V)R RABE T 8l R B AR £ 8 R A &
EHREREEETZERABRZOLET + X
(V)RR B AR A AR AR E R A KRR
EITTETR -

BRARBEEHNRETSETRONBERE
ENERINNRETEMRRECAEITE
BF8%RBHRFNSBRMECTEEN
KRN o

AHERE

WARBETEMBE (BRERIEFE - #
A BESIRER) - AR BEH AR AR
RERXRARBEENRENREEERELER
BIMECRIWEA R R EMEERBHREDH
Dk MEREER T X()R()PHOERD
ETIN

(i) BRI REITE MR RE L RET
BEEF8RWEBRRFEEAMAE
(N1EsN: kR

(i) HEARIRODKRBEEBHOH QAT
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REDEEMABLE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Redemption rights (Continued)

Shares issued by the Company in the Series E Investments
shall be redeemable by the Company and the founding
shareholders of the Company upon the occurrence of
certain events, with the main conditions being: (i) a
qualified public offering does not occur within 4 years
upon the completion of the Series E Investments; (ii) the
Company or the founding shareholders of the Company
has received the redemption requests from the investors of
other series of Pre-IPO Investments; (iii) certain founding
shareholders of the Company dispose or pledge their
shares of the Company prior to the earlier of a qualified
public offering and 5 years upon the completion of the
Series E Investments; (iv) changes to the Company’s
beneficial controlling shareholder; (v) certain founding
shareholders of the Company resign or are unable to act
as the key management or core staff due to any subjective
reason; or (vi) any breach of contractual terms or
misconducts by the Company or the founding shareholders
of the Company.

The redemption price of the shares issued in the Pre-IPO
Investments shall equal to the aggregate of the original
issue price for the respective series plus an amount
accruing daily at 8% of the original preferred shares issue
price per annum minus all paid dividends.

Liquidation preference

In the event of any liquidation including deemed liquidation,
dissolution, bankruptcy or winding up of the Company, the
founding shareholders of the Company shall ensure that
the investors of the Pre-IPO Investments are entitled to
receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any
of the assets or surplus funds of the Company to founding
shareholders in order of priority, an amount equals to the
higher of (i) and (ii) below.

(1) the aggregate of the original issue price for the
respective series plus an amount accruing daily at
8% of the original preferred shares issue price per
annum minus all paid dividends;

(i) the fair market value of the relevant series of shares
on the date of liquidation.
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AARKEZ5)

AEEEE (&)

R EE

WARBREERARBERREREAE
EUERERARBENRECREESN
MERIEIMERAR  AREEGREREAR
AWEIRERATHERNREEERERD -
DA AR & S AR 2 BERR A IS O BN 48
BERMBTHERBABRE

EHRRDE

BOETELSRAE  HURENSEN
BEeERRELLETE - BRAHBEERR
BEANSRBERVLRIRRIZER
8 RRRIRERTE% ABHKATE -

REZE2021F12A31HILEE  BRYIER
B EEBRDRRL2.72%M % T E
NERAELE A+ RV RCERINIEEN
ETEREEBARRA LI 39%KIEEET
ERMEEMRESE ARV ENERESE
AR A0.08%REEETHENE=7F
REBLE BEREXAREEIRED
ZERBENFRES (REEDE) BER
i T EE RN EER TR B -
Ft - ATEERF & AR’ 935,475,0007T (B
NEAEZAPZECEERARABREEE
MemBENRAE) REZE2021F12 A31
HItFESEHHE Al -

RIMERA - JEBETEMNZESEAME
22(c) °
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REDEEMABLE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Anti-dilution right

If the Company increases its share capital at a price
lower than the price paid by the investors of the Pre-IPO
Investments on a per share capital basis prior to a qualified
public offering, the investors have a right to require the
founding shareholders of the Company to transfer for nil
consideration to the investors, so that the total amount
paid by the investors divided by the total amount of share
capital obtained is equal to the price per share capital in
the new issuance.

Presentation and classification

The redemption obligations give rise to financial liabilities,
which are measured at the highest of those amounts that
could be payable, and on a present value basis. The
financial liabilities arising from the Pre-IPO Investments are
measured at the transaction price at initial recognition, and
subsequently at amortized cost at an effective interest rate
of 8%.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the investor
in Series B Investment transferred 2.72% of the equity
interest of the Company to a limited partnership in the PRC;
certain investors in Series A+ and Series C Investments
transferred an aggregate of 3.39% of the equity interest
of the Company to an investor in Series E Investment; and
an investor in Series A Investment transferred 0.08% of
the equity interest of the Company to a third party limited
partnership in the PRC. The special rights attributable to
these investors of the Pre-IPO Investments, including the
redemption rights, are not transferable pursuant to the
shareholders’ agreement and were terminated upon the
completion of such transfers. Accordingly, redeemable
capital contributions of RMB935,475,000, being the
carrying amount of the financial liabilities arising from
these transferred equity interest of the Company on the
respective dates of transfers, was reclassified as equity
during the year ended December 31, 2021.

The movements of redeemable capital contributions during
the Reporting Period are set out in Note 22(c).
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REDEEMABLE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Presentation and classification (continued)

At the end of Reporting Period, considering that (i)
completion of a qualified public offering within the
stipulated time frame is beyond the control of the Group;
and (ii) shares issued by the Company in the Series E
Investments shall be redeemable if the Company or the
founding shareholders of the Company has received the
redemption requests from the investors of other series
of Pre-IPO Investments, the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer redemption of the capital
contributions from the issue of shares in the Pre-IPO
Investments for at least twelve months after the end of the
Reporting Period. Therefore, these redeemable capital
contributions were classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

On February 18, 2022, the Company’'s H Shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The special rights associated with the Pre-
IPO Investments were unconditionally terminated and the
redeemable capital contributions were reclassified as
equity upon the listing of the Company’s H Shares.
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31 HFREMBRRRANAEHR 31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) HEMBERRRAWEDEBIEE (a)  Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

20214 2020%F

2021 2020

ARET T ARBTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

REF] At the beginning of the year 50,260 21,516
FRHBICEMEHREE Provision for PRC Corporate Income

Tax for the year 109,588 97,361

[RANE LS Tax paid (113,808) (67,871)
HEN B AR (AiE22(e)) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries

(Note 22(e)) (48) (746)

RER At the end of the year 45,992 50,260

5 - Represented by:
BIEELFA Taxation recoverable (2,827) (562)
e R R Taxation payable 48,819 50,822

45,992 50,260
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31 HZEMBRRRABFFER (F) 31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) CRIELEHEEEREE: (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized:
(i) RAFE  REEFEIRRR (i) The components of deferred tax assets
HERAELET EEEAKE S recognized in the consolidated statement of
REEINT financial position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

HEEY

RAEE TNBHEE  MAER Hfp TR

BERE HERER i 28 ETHN  EHRE 8 Eh
Fair value

Expected change of Other

creditloss  Inventory Deductible  financial ~ Deferred temporary

allowance  provision tax losses assets  income Provisions differences Total

AR¥TR ARWTR AR®TR ARMTR ARWTR ARWTn ARETR ARWTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

R2020E1A1A At January 1, 2020 21,251 18,631 8,062 1,262 2,653 1,859 5,682 59,400
RERER Recognized in profit or loss 17,205 (6,837) 9,99 (1,262) (103 (1,733) (505 16,761
HEMBLRIRER (M2226)  Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Vote 27/g)) (475)  (3388) (6,955 - - - - (1081g)
R00%12A31R R At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021

20215181R 37,981 8,406 11,108 - 2,550 126 51711 65,343
RERER Recognized in profit or loss (1,189) 2593 3467 - - (126) 4,908 9,651
HENBLRIER (M7226)  Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (Vote 22/g)) (393)  (1,254) (1,456 - - - - (3,103)
HENBLTER Acquisition of interests in subsidiaries 7 - - - - - - 7

R2021£12A31H At December 31, 2021 36,406 9,745 13,114 - 2,550 - 10,083 71,898
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31

FEVBRRRANAED (&) 31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
(b) CEEREZHEEEREE: (HE) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized:

(continued)

(i) RAFE - REEFTEIRRE (i) The components of deferred tax liabilities
TERMIEES 18 8 EHEKE D recognized in the consolidated statement of
NEsmT financial position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

SREEL ERBEEN

RAEEES RERX &zt
Fair value Depreciation
change of  charge of right-

financial assets of-use assets Total

ARET R ARET R ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

#2020% 1418 At January 1, 2020 - 1,550 1,550

RERRER Recognized in profit o loss 1174 (303) 871
LEMBLRAER (f#22e) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries

(Note 22/e)) - (84) (84)

20205128318 2202141 418 At December 31, 2020 and January 1, 2021 1,174 1,163 2,337

RERHER Recognized in profit or loss 875 122 997
WEMBE L AR (H#22()) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries

(Note 22(¢)) - (126) (126)

R2021%12A318 At December 31, 2021 2,049 1,169 3,208
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31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized:
(continued)

(iii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement
of financial position:

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®T T ARBEFTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ERERELEHIEEE Deferred tax assets recognized 71,898 65,343

ERRELEHERE Deferred tax liabilities recognized (3,208) (2,337)
RERE TN R HERAIEETE  Net deferred tax asset recognized
HEEFE in the consolidated statement of

financial position 68,690 63,006

RERELEHEEE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognized

RIRME2(s) FTE E RTIR - 702021
F12A31H  AEELEHR] 25
THE B AR #198,297,0007T (2020
F: AR¥182,406,0007T) FER
REFREE E AR 18,365,0007T
(20204 : AR¥17,939,0007T) °
R2021F12A31H » AEEILER
RErREETE AR 5,724,0007T
(20204 : AR#50,812,0007T) i
RIELERIEE E A K% 10,383,0007T
(2020%F : AR#4,997,0007T) ° 48
ARG R AR R ERETAAERER
B8 A0 T 1 B AT P A K 8 B 18 % B R
EH o

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(s), the Group did not recognize deferred tax
assets of RMB 18,365,000 (2020: RMB17,939,000) in
respect of cumulative tax losses RMB198,297,000
(2020: RMB182,406,000) as at December 31, 2021.
The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets of
RMB10,383,000 (2020: RMB4,997,000) in respect of
cumulative time differences RMB95,724,000 (2020:
RMB50,812,000) as at December 31, 2021. It was
not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses and time differences can be utilized
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entities.
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32 EIEWA

R2021F 12 A31 8 » KEBIELU AFEH
FEHN B U BT /BN AR 17,000,000
7T (20204 : AR¥17,000,0007T) * AR

HBE T MEXNER

ELEWARmEAREEREE WA TR

RERERSLA -

33 EX - REREER
(a) EEHINEH
AEBRAERSARBINFIR

FREGOHEHRN

32 DEFERRED INCOME

As at December 31, 2021, deferred income of the Group
represented unamortized conditional government grants
amounting to RMB17,000,000 (2020: RMB17,000,000),

for stimulating the development of strategic emerging

industries.

Deferred income is recognized as income upon the

satisfaction of certain acceptance standards of the Group'’s
business project.

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

S gEa

o A g S g
e EmE

& o ARAHERI RO RFIRF
RzEBBHTEHINWT

Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:

it
Reserves
Bz FUIN ZitER Eh
Share Capital  Accumulated
ALH The Company capital reserve losses Total
it ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R202051B1BIER Balance at January 1, 2020 485,361 (2,271,638) (1,266,566) (3,052,843)
NNFEREE Changes in equity for 2020;
EERE Loss for the year - - (512,976) (512,976)
LRk Issue of ordinary shares 33(c) 23,297 1,176,703 - 1,200,000
FUBETERAARDAR Recognition of redeemable capital 30
contributions as current liabilities - (1,200,000) - (1,200,000)
R2020E12A31 B K Balance at December 31, 2020 and
02151 B1AMES January 1, 2021 508,658 (2,294,935) (1,779,542) (3,565,819)
NNFRELE Changes in equity for 2021:
EEEE Loss for the year = = (580,972) (580.972)
HUERT AN EAER Reclassification of redeemable capital 30
contributions as equity - 935,475 - 935,475
R2021512831 Al e Balance at December 31, 2021 37 508,658 (1359460)  (2,360514)  (3,211,316)
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33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Dividends

The Directors of the Company did not propose the
payment of any dividend during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

[N (c)  Share capital
A& E ARBTT
Number of
shares RMB’000
ERTRAZEER Ordinary shares, issued and

R2020%F1A1H
BEITE R (M)

fully paid:
At January 1, 2020 485,360,723 485,361
Ordinary shares issued (Note) 23,297,314 23,297

R2020F12A31H &
2021512 A31H

At December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2021 508,658,037 508,658

Wyt

M20204F « ARQFEEFTREE
SNIRERE B EREERE
mARAEEAR1,200,000,000
JC - R EUAR A ER) 23,297,314 B8 A%
B REEZ2020F12A31HILFE
i ARBEBREERAREITE
1TRESN23,297 314 E A% + BRAH
ANR#485,360,723 T MNE AR
508,658,037 7T °

EXNE

BARRTEIE ()5 & B EGR B U
HE(NBERBEAEKBENEARS
BOAR) SRR BB EE L HH =
B (NASERBHNERRRE
TR - MIFERRRBE R &M
BARESFTELENTE - R(ii)7A
BOIEREARBDAEMELNS
G

Note:

In 2020, the Company entered into an investment
agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which,
these investors agreed to invest RMB1,200,000,000
in the Company in exchange of 23,297,314 shares of
the Company. During the year ended December 31,
2020, the share capital of the Company increased
from RMB485,360,723 to RMB508,658,037 by issue
of additional 23,297,314 ordinary shares at RMB1 per
share.

(d) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (i) the difference
between consideration received for ordinary shares
subscription net of any transaction costs directly
attributable to the subscription and the par value
of the ordinary shares subscribed; (ii) the amount
arises from the purchasing or disposing the
interests in subsidiaries from or to non-controlling
shareholders while the Group retains the control of
subsidiaries; and (iii) the amount arises from the
adjustment of redeemable capital contributions as
current liabilities.
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33 EX-

(d)

(e)

AARKEZ5)

REERKRE (&)

BEXNRE ()

RERE B - AN S 3 m) 4R B JE 1 iR A
HWEETHBRAR (EERFERK
ERGEBIHEMIEE) WEIINR
o WHE— S MERZEN B AR
WEBE MASERBIZEGRE -
WS FE R R G B 2021612
AB1BLEFEMEARERIAR
#360,515,0007T (20204 : AR
333,936,0007T) + BlA IEIE AR i 2
TSRV & HE BN U B BT
FEERERAREE M ERE -

EXEE

AEBEREEANETEZERAR
EAKERELENESD KBS
B2 [ g 7 S AR 35 B 1 E o e AR 7S TE (B
IRESEERANRE @ BERK
ER 7 2R B R K 2 EL A M) 25 4 B 3 A 2R

Sz
s

AEBEBEELERBRT REEREER
B AERSBERLERIERN T AT
FEBE 2 B 18 FOK T B R oF 8 B AR
U R E O B AR B 2 RBP4
A [ 48 7 AR S ) S B S B AR IR A A

B

E2
o]

AEBNERHBEFAEER L X LE
EERHEEARE - itmE - &
EFABEAERBERAE (BHEE
EXRERAREERE  ETBHE
AEETE) RREERREEFEMN
NEHER - RARERBEMARE
s RATEENEE -

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Capital reserve (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired
additional equity interests in certain subsidiaries,
which were principally engaged in the merchandise
sales in commerce business in the PRC, from the
respective non-controlling interests and further
increased its ownership in these subsidiaries while
the Group retains the control. The acquisition of
non-controlling interests resulted in a decrease in
capital reserve of RMB360,515,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2021, being the difference
between the cash consideration paid to non-
controlling interests and the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests acquired on the date of the
acquisition (2020: RMB333,936,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans
and borrowings, and lease liabilities but excludes
redeemable capital contributions) less cash and
cash equivalents and time deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity and
redeemable capital contributions.
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33 EX - REEERE (&) 33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)
(e) EXEE(HE) (e) Capital management (continued)
REE 20214 202012 A31H The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio as at
RS ARFEEERLENT December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:
20214 2020
2021 2020
et AR¥T T ARBEFTT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
MEEE Current liabilities:
RITE R R H b &K Bank loans and other borrowings 23 129,460 212,782
REMBARIEERBEMEF  Loans from non-controlling 24
shareholders of subsidiaries 17,026 40,588
HEAE Lease liabilities 25 40,421 56,427
186,907 309,797
FERBEE Non-current liabilities:
HeEaE Lease liabilities 25 67,399 79,627
BB Total debt 254,306 389,424
B ReRBEEFED Less: Cash and cash equivalents 22(a) (2,966,920)  (4,315,977)
TERIFER Time deposits 21(c) (865,000) (690,000)
RARFEE Adjusted net debt (3,577,614)  (4,616,553)
E A EE Total deficit (1,717,446) (2,044,491)
o AERNEE Add: Redeemable capital 30
contributions 9,027,445 9,285,430
BRABER Adjusted capital 7,309,999 7,240,939
REARFEBEERLE Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio N/A N/A

FEA i@ A




220 EEERKRNERAT

Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

B 5 ¥ R B

Notes to Financial Statements

(REEEBEIN  UAREBZ5))
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 UHEMEEREMIBRZAAEME

REERBEBERBRREAZEER
& MRREEREE -

mEE

AEEHERNZERRIAEERNEEZ
2B i R ) B 765 R B 3R KSR I 18 01 st
AR e

(a) FERK

EERBRERSHFIERRAGNE
Eﬁﬁ%@l$’ilﬁiﬁﬂ%!§ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬂ
B ARBENEERRIZREES
FH&Z KR N oAt FE YRR - AR EA
RekBReEHEY  ERFEH - EH
FREEKREEMELENEERRE
R REARXZHFHIREAEEAR
EFERBRBENSEENRRITRE
B

BRMTRESEPTE SN - AN S B I S AR A
EREMAESAREAZEERR
BREE - RIMEMR - BRAZFE
BENSAEERRMKOSERHE
34(b)#% 5 °

34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit,

liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables
and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, time deposits and bills receivable
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit standing, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for those set out in Note 35, the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these provisions
at the end of the Reporting Period is disclosed in
Note 34(b).



3 HMBEREEREMIAZAAEE

(&)

(a)

FERR (&)
B SN BEL N EERR

AEEEHEEERREZRER - &
HHAAEERBRE - ELBEENE
FETEREENE - ZETEED
REPBEN BB RNRERE
REREEN  YEREPHFEE
HREFEEMENKERR -85
FEWRIER B R A B0 R AR
He—R&M5 ARBETEREFK
IR o

REBEREPELMETERBERIL
mMEAEPEERR - EAXEFE
ERBTERASERGBENER
MERRREES - R2021F12A
310 ' ESEWFIEBREFH22.0%
(2020%F : &) K 22.1% (2020 :
20.7%) DRI B EWAEEHE A
PRAREFHKIFIA °

AEERBENEHEHREEEEN
THFTES S RUGRIEN EEREE
HIVEMBERENE - ANAEHE
MBTEEERERYERTTRAE
Fo#BERZENERERN - HE
REBRENEEREL BN AEE
TRAEFPEM ZHE—FERD -

34
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Credit risk arising from trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 90 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in industries or countries in which the customers
operate. Significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. As at December
31, 2021, 22.0% (2020: nil) and 22.1% (2020:
20.7%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases.
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34

HREMREEREMIAEZ2AAREME 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(&)

(a)

FERRE (&)

(a)

E SN RELNIZERR (&)

TREHERASERBREERR R
B RWFRRSEREERNER

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables
(Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

20214
2021
FEHEER IREAE BEEE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

% ARBTR AR®BTR
% RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

BUER (g Hp)
# AR RA3ME A
B AR E 3 E A
BLR121E A
wHERBE121E A
BAR241E A
E BB 248 A

Current (not past due)
Less than 3 months past due

More than 3 months but less than

12 months past due

More than 12 months but less than

24 months past due
More than 24 months past due

0.7% 1,404,463 10,456
6.7% 64,284 4,318
9.6% 112,549 10,789
38.2% 25,111 9,596
100.0% 10,533 10,533

1,616,940 45,692
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3 HEEBREEREBIAEZAAEE 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(#&) VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) FERRE) (a) Credit risk (Continued)
B ZEWIEEL R EERER (&) Credit risk arising from trade receivables
(Continued)
20204
2020
TEHIEEX IREBE EERE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% ARBET T ARBET T
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BNER (R Af) Current (not past due) 0.7% 824,700 5,562
wE DR 3 {E A Less than 3 months past due 5.9% 57,322 3,371
BB @ 3 {E A More than 3 months but less than
BL121E A 12 months past due 9.5% 53,576 5,093
mHARE B 1218 A More than 12 months but less than
BALR24EA 24 months past due 35.1% 9,348 3,281
wEARB24E A More than 24 months past due 100.0% 6,964 6,964
951,910 24,271

BEHEBRXDEREBETFENERE
BER - ZFHLREHBEARBRKSE
E st IR B R - BRIAR
Ko 75 52 6| 44 LA R R TR H 4R R A R
MNBEZENESR -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the year over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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3 HMBEREEREMIAZAAEE
(&)

(a) RFERR(E)
E SN RELNIZERR (&)

FRERE S RUEGRN B RBRER

34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables
(Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

BEnT of trade receivables during the year is as follows:
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REV R AR Balance at the beginning of the year 24,271 42,928
EERRBIEEE Impairment loss recognized 28,239 13,742
FAMIEEE Amounts written off during the year (227) (44)
S BB A Bl A Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (6,591) (32,355)
RERBI AR Balance at the end of the year 45,692 24,271

H 1 [ RE LA E BRR

HREMEEFRIENE - AEBE DG
B RERAREERREE BEEIE
e fEEEREAEEN - NEES
RIE2 MR 1218 A FRHE S EIER
EEEEE -

SEEREEERR  AEECDERFE
HREEEEHNEMMEFARENE
ERBRFA  UREBEEZORRREE
BRERDE - EEFRBIEDHE
BASBEARINZ Fs - AEHE
BEFPREMEHANETHR - A%
SRR RREEBTFINEER
AR o BREASE S R HE R
HNEREEERFERME20H

= .

Credit risk arising from other receivables

For other receivables, the Group has assessed
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been
a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather
than 12-month ECL.

In order to minimize credit risk, the Group has
tasked its operation management to develop
and maintain the Group’s credit risk grading to
categorize exposures according to their degree of
risk of default. The credit rating information is drawn
from the Group’s own trading records to rate its
major customers and other debtors. The Group's
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored. Details of the ECLs in
respect of the Group’s other receivables during the
year is disclosed in Note 20.
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34 HMERAKREERSMIAZAAREE 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
(#&) VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) RENVERR (b)  Liquidity risk
REEANENSEEBEEEARZ Individual operating entities within the Group
ReEE  RERSABEBRZEHEE are responsible for their own cash management,
SREFAEMNERR SRR - including the short term investment of cash
fimfE kBB E T TEE KT - BlZA surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
BERARESSIE - NEBERNBUR cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
AEHERARSHESCHTREREET company’s board when the borrowings exceed
ERRENER - ARREERTE certain predetermined levels of authority. The
ReFERIERZEENEGERESMN Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
EREFZECHBEENTERAHER requirements and its compliance with lending
HE UncHEHEERRHES covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
Tk reserves of cash and readily realizable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
TRIITAEECREERARER The following tables show the remaining contractual
REOBTELNHEBR - LR ES maturities at the end of the Reporting Period of
HARBBHESRE (BREEAEOF the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
Tk (MEFE) BEME HERE on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
TNERFENFNENR) RAEEE interest payments computed using contractual
MR ERBEmMEL rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:
2215
2021
R2021F
1580E 25N L 1283188
1ERARER  BOM2E  BORSE SENL h HEE
More than More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at
1 year or on less than less than More than December 31,
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2021
AEETT  ARETR  ARMTn  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ROERRAER Bank loans and other borrowings 132,557 - - = 132,557 129,460
HEBE Lease liabilities 44,264 30,207 28,865 14,782 118,118 107,820
RAMBAREERERHES  Loans from non-controling
shareholders of subsidiaries 17,078 - - - 17,078 17,026
BIRNTERENRE Trade and bills payables 14,418,802 - - - 14418802 14,418,802
O EMRTERESER Other payables and accruals 612,025 - - - 612,025 612,025
TEETE Redesmable capital contributions 9,125,744 - - - 9,125,744 9,027,445
24,350,470 30,207 28,865 14,782 24,424,324 24,312,578




226 EBERERGERAR
Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

B 5 ¥ R B

Notes to Financial Statements

(BrZHIERIN - UARKEZT)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 HMEKEMEEREBMIAZAAEE 34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(#&) VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) RENVERR () (b)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
2020%
2020
#0205
15 E 2L 1283188
1EREER  BIR2E [EORSE SENE h SEE
More than More than Carrying
Within Tyearbut 2 yearsbut amount at
1year or on less than less than More than December 31,
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2020
ARBTR  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FOSTREMER Bank loans and other borrowings 216,034 - - - 216,034 212,782
HERR Lease liabilities 60,774 29,643 39,115 19,257 148,789 136,054
REWBATFEERERNES  Loans from non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries 40,704 - - - 40,704 40,588
BIRNTBRENRE Trade and bills payables 11,419,335 - - - 11419335 11419335
HftEMTERES 2R Other payables and accruals 43,761 - - - 443,761 443,761
Bz Redeemable capital contributions 10,028,264 - - - 10028264 9,285,430
22,208,872 29,643 39,115 19257 22296887 21,537,950

R2021F12A318 - AEEFEFE
EREERBE—FANFIRBREE
MERAROSEAAREZIT (2020
F: AR#45,981,0007T) °

NAFIHER 20222 A18BEES
BMAXSHMBRAGERLT - AR

AHER Em® - E2E

RAFEERTR

AR RN B & BRI AL
MBI EREN DRSS -

As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s maximum

demand.

liquidity risk exposure in respect of provisions is
RMB nil (2020: RMB45,981,000) within 1 year or on

On February 18, 2022, the Company’s H Shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The special rights

associated with the Pre-IPO Investments were

unconditionally terminated and the redeemable

capital contributions were reclassified as equity

upon the listing of the Company’s H Shares.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments
at variable rates as at December 31, 2021 are the
cash at bank except for fixed deposits, and the
cash flow interest risk arising from the change of
market interest rate on these balances of relatively
short maturity is not considered significant. The
Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments at
fixed interest rates as at December 31, 2021 and
2020 are fixed deposits, bank loans and other
borrowing, loans from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries and lease liabilities that are
measured at amortized cost, and the change of
market interest rate does not expose the Group to
fair value interest risk. Overall speaking, the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

(d)  Currency risk

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group is
not exposed to significant foreign currency risk
since financial assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of
the Company and its subsidiaries are not significant.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the Reporting Period on a
recurring basis, categorized into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:
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R20215E K 2020412 A 31
BNEMITARAARBENED
HranT -

34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date;

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available;

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Analysis on fair value measurement of
financial instruments as at December 31,
2021 and 2020 are as follows:
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3 HEEBREEREBIAEZAAEE 34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(#&) VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(e) 2AREEFE(E) (e)  Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) AR BEGTENEBEER (i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
B (&) fair value (Continued)
NaEEER (&) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
20215
12A31A
MALER R2021E12A31 AWA A ERTEAEA
Fair value at
December 31, Fair value measurement at December 31,
2021 2021 categorized into
ARETT £-4 £-8 £=8
RMB’000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ERMLAERETE Recurring fair value measurement
£E: Assels:
WAREEEAESHIA  Financial assets at FVOCI
B 2ANENSREE
- EaRAES - Unlisted equity securities 2,000 - - 2,000
NAREETEEESHIAES  Financial assets at FVPL
BifemaE
- EENERRERER - Structured deposits and wealth
management products 2,705,757 - - 2,705,757
12020F
12R318H
DRER R2020F12A31 AN AL BENENEA
Fair value at
December 31, Fair value measurement at December 31,
2020 2020 categorized into
AREFT R F ki F=R
RMB'000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BERNAERTE Recurring fair value measurement
EE: Assets:
UAREEFEBEHSH A Financial assets at FVOCI
Ht2ERENEREE
— ¥ ETRAES - Unlisted equity securities 2,000 S S 2,000

UAREEFFEBHRZH5 A Financial assets at FVPL
EMBERNSHEE
- ERUEGZRERER - Structured deposits and wealth
management products 1,073,930 - - 1,073,930
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34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

(CONTINUED)

INSTRUMENTS

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

HER %

Valuation techniques

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended December 31,

2021 and 2020, there were no transfers, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognize transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the Reporting Period in which they occur.

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements

EXTUBRGARE

Significant unobservable inputs

EA N

Unlisted equity securities

FRLEER RN ER
Structured deposits and wealth
management products

hERE (At

Valuation multiples (Note /)

MRALRE (Wil

Discounted cash flow (Note ii)

AERRARTEMHEHNEDHS
Changing trend of medium market
multiples of comparable companies

bl G
Expected return rate

(i) BTIHELTRAFSRZ
ARBEDFERGERS
HET  UYHAUALR
RNEIZHREMH B
ZEHBBIELAE -
ARAEEFEE]EL
BRRREMSEEN
BE B 2L IEMAE -
R2021F 128318 -
HEEmBEEMME SR
BTIENERT &
B RRFREMHER
B R 5% 158
BASEMNEMEEK
w=EMmRDARE
75,0007t (20204F © A
R¥75,0007T) °

Notes:

The fair value of certain unlisted equity
security is determined using valuation
multiples adjusted for changing trend of
medium market multiples of comparable
companies. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the changing
trend of medium market multiples
of comparable companies. As at
December 31, 2021, it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in change of
medium market multiples of comparable
companies by 5% would have
increased/decreased the Group's other
comprehensive income by RMB75,000
(2020: RMB75,000).
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(i) HEEMTF R NI ER
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TEHIARRIR & R 25T
o QNRhBEEFEHEE
ﬁﬂ@i&+ B M@ -
R2021412/8318 -
HETEFT A HA “51%
BIEMBERT &
HEER &fiﬁﬁiuum
REERD EIN5%
BERASEFAE
BEMNROARE
114,995,0007t (2020
F : AR 45,676,000
TT) °

SErMRAR S AR EED
TxﬁﬁTétl:f Al hERE
EET o BTSRRI E
ﬁﬁ’]’&ﬁ{ﬁfﬁﬂiﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) The fair value of structured deposits
and wealth management products
is calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows. The fair
value measurement is negatively
correlated to expected return rate. As
at December 31, 2021, it is estimated
that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase in fair
value of structured deposits and wealth
management products by 5% would
have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss for the year by RMB114,995,000
(2020: RMB45,676,000).

The fair value of unlisted equity security
is determined using valuation multiples
technique with comparable companies. The
fair values of the structured deposits and
wealth management products have been
calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation
from the beginning balances to the ending

REERREE AR - balances for fair value measurement in Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy:
UDAEEE  ULAEENHE
BHBEHA BEBEHA
Hit2EREN EHERN
SREE SREE @it
Financial assets  Financial assets
at FVOCI at FVPL Total
ARBTR AR¥ETR ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
20201 A1H As at January 1, 2020 2,000 3,607,396 3,609,396
AL EEFEAEZF: A Net realized and unrealized gains on
EHERNEHAECER  financial assets at fair value through
RAERMEFE profit or loss - 113,238 113,238
BB Purchases - 17,164,232 17,164,232
HERE Sales and settlements - (19,810,936) (19,810,936)
720204612 4310 220214 As at December 31, 2020 and
1R1R January 1, 2021 2,000 1,073,930 1,075,930
AR EEFEAEEZHH A Net realized and unrealized gains on
EHBEROLREECER  financial assets at fair value through
RARERUEFE profit or loss - 136,663 136,663
B8 Purchases - 23,313,959 23,313,959
HEREE Sales and settlements - (21,814,968) (21,814,968)
HERKB R AR ER Disposal of interests in subsidiaries = (3,827) (3,827)
120215128318 As at December 31, 2021 2,000 2,708,757 2,707,757
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Any gain or loss arising from the
remeasurement of the Group’s unlisted equity
securities held for strategic purposes are
recognized in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) in other comprehensive income.
Upon disposal of the equity securities, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income is transferred directly to accumulated
losses.

The gains arising from the remeasurement
of the structured deposits and wealth
management products are presented in the
“Other net gain” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All financial instruments carried at cost or
amortized cost are at amounts not materially
different from their values as at December
31, 2021 and 2020.
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35 HAREE 35

BEIFES4(b)FTEEMETABRAKO S
FHN 0 BE2021F12H318 - AEBET &
TRERSAEE -

36 EXBABAIXRZ 36
(a) FEEBASHH

AEFETZEEABNHH (2IEH
AeMEEMANRERENEFN
B RIR R M FEPTIR BRAE T &= ¥
il B TSRO FIR) 10T

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2021, except for the maximum
exposure in respect of provisions as set out in Note 34(b),
the Group does not have any material contingent liabilities.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
Directors and supervisors as disclosed in Note
8 and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

20214 2020

2021 2020

AR®T T ARBTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

EHEIEEET Short-term employee benefits 9,548 8,931
TE R TR IRET B Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans 213 16

9,761 8,947

M@ Est ATEIRA] (RWiE
6(b)) °

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

EXEBLRS (#) 36

(b) REARFEEETEHMEARS (b)
HYREHE S BB R BA ¢
HMBLHE  £8

Name of related party

Names and relationships of the related parties
that had other material transactions with the
Group during the year:

%

Relationship

pag el tea

Mr. Wang Jianguo

wEBLEE

Mr. Xu Xiuxian

FRfEET oA

Mr. Xing Jianhong

HEEREEERAR(IRE ) REBEB AT

Five Star Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (“Five Star") and
its affiliates

FERATEAREARRR ([EE]) RABE QA

Nanjing Qingying Technology Co., Ltd. (“Qingying”)
and its affiliates

WEEE (hE)@ERMERAR ([FMESEHRE])
JSE8: ) YN

Alibaba (China) Network Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Alibaba China”) and its affiliates

FEREEZE

Nanjing Yunhuihua

BiEMK

Xingda Network

FeEEELR

Shanghai Huidapuzhao

REEHE—HFARR

Single largest shareholder of the Group

RRABHNTES

Executive Director of the Company

AN EH) Bl AR E

Vice president of the Company

ANEEE B — AR AT S8 A 5] KR AL HEE A A

Company and its affiliates controlled by the
single largest shareholder of the Group

AR B B — BRI PTIE S 60 A 7] R BB 1 &)

Company and its affiliates controlled by the
single largest shareholder of the Group

REFEB SR ERE R EBE QT

The Group'’s significant shareholder and its
affiliates

REEB RIS QA

The former associate of the Group*

AN E B A A N |

The former associate of the Group*
REBEH RIS AR

The former associate of the Group*

* MR2021F2 AR IIE 2 EH
mERENRERZ  AEBR
BEEBEZNRERI6RIES
51% @ 2ERBKAETEEH
@R - AEEM2021F H
EERBREEER LFHE
TRARER  FMREEER
LEEELTRTBEALASED
Bt N B SRR o

* Upon completion of the acquisition of additional
equity interest in Xingda Network in February
2021, the Group increased equity interest
shareholding in Xingda Network from 46% to
51% and Xingda Network became a subsidiary
of the Group. Upon the Group’s disposal of
its equity interest in Nanjing Yunhuihua and
Shanghai Huidapuzhao in 2021, Nanjing
Yunhuihua and Shanghai Huidapuzhao ceased
to be associates or related parties of the Group.
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36 EXRBEMLIXZ (&)

(c) BEBATRENERRIIER

BRI ASENETRITBERESN
e B EE U7 2 e AR R R IR R UK
e FaEMNKREEI T

36

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

()

Guarantees and pledges issued by related
parties

Certain bank facilities granted to the Group and
rental payments were guaranteed or secured with
pledges issued by related parties. An analysis of
the carrying value of these liabilities is as follows:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AT & IBRY D FEE - Net exposure on:
RITER (H77723) Bank loans (Note 23) 100,000 150,000
WEBE (Wites) Lease liabilities (Note 25) - 12,735
ERTRIE (Bi26) Bills payable (Note 26) 5,998,851 5,077,929

R2021F KX 2020 12A31H + "&
B IRITER (HRMIFE23) mMER
HETHRTME B TEREE (1F
RAEEME-—SKARE) ®RFE
EE(BEAEARRIMNHITES) - R
EREBBARTTERFHEEERE
R BRARRMER  YHETER
SERTERREERIT o Bl R
2021F12 A31BRRITERL AN
R R RER K 202296 A28 H
ATEREEIR -

R2021F K& 2020F12831H » A%
B st a7 RN R (HRME26)
BEENETHRITRERIBZRLE
(FERAEEME —HARE) « 175
BEE (EAEARRIMNBITES) -
HEREBB AR ERETEE LR
ERR?D B R FREIER o BT
2021F12 A3 1HRENEELHAN
ERZEBR2022F 12831 HA 2
Hy o

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, certain bank
facilities granted to the Group for bank loans in
Note 23 were guaranteed by Mr. Wang Jianguo as
the single largest shareholder of the Group, Mr. Xu
Xiuxian as the Executive Director of the Company,
Five Star and its affiliate Hosjoy Comfortable Smart
Home Co., Ltd., and were pledged with Mr. Wang
Jianguo’s equity interest in Five Star. Guarantees
and pledges issued by related parties for bank
loans at December 31, 2021 will be fully released by
June 28, 2022 at the latest.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, certain bank
facilities granted to the Group for issuance of bills
payable in Note 26 were guaranteed by Mr. Wang
Jianguo as the single largest shareholder of the
Group, Mr. Xu Xiuxian as the Executive Director
of the Company, Five Star and its affiliate Hosjoy
Comfortable Smart Home Co., Ltd. Guarantees
issued by related parties for bills payable at
December 31, 2021 will be expired by December
31, 2022 at the latest.
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(d)  Other material related party transactions

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, the Group had following transactions with
related parties:

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T AREETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
g m Purchase of goods

hERHEBEBAR Five Star and its affiliates 265 3
oy E8 B2 B8 AR B K LB A A Alibaba China and its affiliates - 108,932
BEMS Xingda Network - 185
265 109,120

REBRE Purchase of services
hERHEBEBAR Five Star and its affiliates 102 193
Foy 8 F2 B2 AR B K BB B 1 A Alibaba China and its affiliates 14,073 7,288
LEEEER Shanghai Huidapuzhao 358 -

14,533 7,481
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36 EXRBEMLIXZ (&)

(d)

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

HtERBBHLRS (&) (d) Other material related party transactions
(Continued)
20214 2020%F
2021 2020
ARET T ARBETFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
HEBEME Sales of goods
hERHBEB AR Five Star and its affiliates 8,948 6,870
frEEEE AR EBE A A Alibaba China and its affiliates 74,716 49,270
BEMR Xingda Network = 499
83,664 56,639
IR Rendering of services
hEREBEEAR Five Star and its affiliates - 1
LEEEER Shanghai Huidapuzhao 1,902 -
1,902 1
BN RRMBBR ORL) /1 mn (Decrease)/increase in advances
from associates
R EEE Nanjing Yunhuihua (4,155) 4,155
BiEPEE Xingda Network (5,597) 8,023
(9,752) 12,178
W ERER Acquisition of non-controlling
interests
TR YT o Mr. Xing Jianhong 1,000 -
HERKEARNER Disposal of interests
in subsidiaries
BRRREBEAT Qingying and its affiliates - 54,030
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(e) Material related party balances

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group had
following balances with related parties:

BEoMtHE 20214 20204
Trade in nature 2021 2020
AR Tt ARBTIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B S ERRE Trade receivables

Fr] 8 0 B2 AR B EOBsE S R ) Alibaba China and its affiliates 7,621 -
A NEEE AT Qingying and its affiliates 5,600 5,872
13,221 5872

FENRE - REeEREMERRE Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables

hERHEBEB AR Five Star and its affiliates — 30
B E8 F5 E2 rp [ N LB /BB 1 ) Alibaba China and its affiliates 3,951 3,728
RN EEE AT Qingying and its affiliates 18,982 24,571
22,933 28,329
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36

EXBBMLIRS (&)

(e)

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

BEXRBEES & (&) (e) Material related party balances (continued)
EZME 20214 20204
Trade in nature 2021 2020
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BESEMNNRIE Trade payables
FrPEEEEREREBE AT Alibaba China and its affiliates 900 796
Htt e RERETER Other payables and accruals
hERHBEB AR Five Star and its affiliates 77 156
FA] E2 EX B2 AR B R HOBsE S R ) Alibaba China and its affiliates 705 -
782 156
EHERE Contract liabilities
hERHBEBEAR Five Star and its affiliates 18 76
P 22 E2 B2 PR B R LB /S 8 ) Alibaba China and its affiliates - 305
18 381
FEZHE 20214 20204
Non-trade in nature 2021 2020
ARET T AREETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
HitERRIERETER Other payables and accruals
R EEE Nanjing Yunhuihua - 4,155
BEMS Xingda Network - 8,023

12,178




36 EXRBEMLIXZ (&)

()

LHRARRERZNWERAM

bBrm EBERETREERE - M L8
HELTRIZURE  BEBEARRER
A e R SE TR AR A R AN 0 B P R
36(c) R (d)FriftE = 2021412 A 31
HIEFERREE AR SE/KR EmHRA
FUUAEMATNBER SNIFER
ERG o FRANE14AER TR
EEEHREETREHERS | —

& o

HZE2021F12A31HIEFEE WA
EREBBARREERS  MAEK
EEEE N R DA K P] B 2 R A B R EL B
BRARRERBUARGAEREHE
N A E P IR A R IR R
PRIBFEMERS - BHRREER ET
RAIB14A7T6(NIERENRER R
KEFHBR EMRAE14A 901K
REMMIEIRE  WARERET EMR

AIFVAAENZERERE °
BZERPI - ME36Mt & E

202112 A31 B I FE &) H b B B
HRGEUYTFE ETRAFE14AFFT
ATHERHIABFEBERINT
% °
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

()

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Apart from purchase of services from Shanghai
Huidapuzhao, rendering of services to Shanghai
Huidapuzhao, advances from associates and
acquisition of non-controlling interests, the related
party transactions during the year ended December
31, 2021 mentioned in Notes 36 (c) and (d) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided under
the section “Connected Transactions” in the Report
of Directors.

Guarantees and pledges issued, purchase of goods
from Five Star and its affiliates, purchase of services
from Five Star and its affiliates and Alibaba China
and its affiliates and sales of goods to Five Star and
its affiliates during the year ended December 31,
2021 are continuing connected transactions but are
exempted from these disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are below
the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1) or
they are financial assistance under Rule 14A.90.

Apart from these transactions, none of the other
related party transactions during the year ended
December 31, 2021 mentioned in Note 36 fall
under the definition of a connected transaction or
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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37 L EEBETBARRE

37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T AREETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
Y~ BB RS Property, plant and equipment 25,174 26,292
TREEE Right-of-use assets 49,909 49,470
RETB AR MRS Interests in subsidiaries 2,241,417 1,800,740
P RN O Interest in associates 15 1,579
EHRT R Pledged deposits 1,150,000 630,000
TEHIFER Time deposits 865,000 530,000
FIERIEE E Deferred tax assets 38,745 37,948
4,370,260 3,076,029
REEE Current assets
AR EEEREEB) A S BE28 Financial assets at fair value through
WEmEE profit or loss 2,705,757 1,060,429
FE Inventories 747
E S RBGRIE M EWEE Trade and bills receivables 954,551 861,028
TE IR « ke R E At FE YRR Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 4,483,309 3,319,260
PR Il 77 3% Restricted deposits 1,800 -
EHRIFR Pledged deposits 3,114,891 3,211,395
T BATF R Time deposits - 160,000
ReRReZEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,784,423 4,213,139
AJ Uy Bl T IE Taxation recoverable - 343
14,045,478 12,825,594
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37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (CONTINUED)

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR® Tt AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
REAE Current liabilities
IRITERRHMER Bank loans and other borrowings 100,118 150,143
HEBE Lease liabilities 10,557 10,113
Z N FIERERNRE Trade and bills payables 11,927,399 9,347,288
HAh R RUE R FERT & A Other payables and accruals 494,773 609,502
BHBE Contract liabilities 8,012 8,168
JEETAE Provisions — 843
AIEEEDEE Redeemable capital contributions 9,027,445 9,285,430
FE IR Taxation payable 2,696 -
21,571,000 19,411,487
REBEERE Net current liabilities (7,525,522)  (6,585,893)
WEERARBAR Total assets less current liabilities (3,155,262)  (3,509,864)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
HeEaE Lease liabilities 39,054 38,955
FEIEUT A Deferred income 17,000 17,000
56,054 55,955
BEFHE NET LIABILITIES (3,211,316) (8,565,819)
BARRGHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
f& s Share capital 508,658 508,658
1 Reserves (3,719,974)  (4,074,477)
Al TOTAL DEFICIT (3,211,316)  (3,565,819)
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38 WEMRNFARER 38

R2022F2A18H » ARRIHBRERTEHA
RGBRABEREM  UBRXAFABE
HRIZEEBERHKA3.008TTREERIE
IMEE F 1T REES1,606,200 K HA% © 5%
SRS RIBRENA2,21988 BT °
M2022F3A16H + ARBELREEE X
AAEEHFREREEENTE AR F
R EBETIHAL43.00/8 L2717 RIEFE I
2,305,600 % HA% © 1T{# HARR AL AR FE R RSN FT
SRIBRBENBIOEEEBT °

39 EHERRKRERHA 39

MR2021F12AH31H  EFRARNEFEL &£
BHENRERIERT -

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On February 18, 2022, the Company’'s H Shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, where 51,606,200 H Shares were issued and
subscribed at an offer price of HK$43.00 per H Share by
way of initial public offering to Hong Kong and overseas
investors. Gross proceeds from these issues amounted
to approximately HK$2,219 million. On March 16, 2022,
pursuant to the partial exercise of the over-allotment option
by the joint international underwriters of the initial public
offering, the Company issued and subscribed an additional
2,305,600 H shares at the offer price of HK$43.00 per H
Share. The additional gross proceeds from the exercise
of over-allotment option amounts to approximately HK$99
million.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At December 31, 2021, the Directors consider that the
Group has no immediate and ultimate controlling party.



40

BZE2021F12A31HLELEFEECEM
EEAREMNVIEE] - FHTERRZE
e

HEFLUBEARTIZAH  BES2EL
BESEBEMLZENEZ2021F12/831H
LEFE R A B I R A FE 58 B 75 B RHR R
KB ET M —TEFT AT 22 RI B PR B 75 3R o5 2RI 55
17 RBAAT - BB T AR EE
BRARAER] -
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Up to date of issue of the Historical Financial Information,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2021 and
which have not been adopted in the Historical Financial
Information. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

RUT BH 2 &%
METHRBER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

B R EERIEIRAERT - M RAELAVLEL

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BIFR & st ERIE16RANERT - WE - BE RRE - KT AT iF 5

Amendments to |IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
B g et ERIFEI7RMIER] - BB MEEA — BITEAIAIHAK

Amendments to |IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

EUfR 1 75 & 2E R 2018 5F 2 2020 4F JE] B & o /2 20

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

BR e ERE1RMIER] - HEEDEBRBHIERE

Amendments to |IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BIPREATS A LR ETS - RERAA
IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

B e R 1R B RS ERNEBERAF2RNE -

20221 H1H
January 1, 2022
20221 H1H
January 1, 2022
20221 A1H
January 1, 2022
20221 H1H
January 1, 2022
20231 H1H
January 1, 2023
20231 A1H
January 1, 2023

DEHR 20231 A1H

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies January 1, 2023

B REAIESHEMIER] - Baf BT HIEE

Amendments to |AS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates
e B E129NER]  HE—XGELWEERE BFBHIELHIE
Amendments to |IAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction

BB REERE 10 RER S EANFE28RNER] - REZHAB LA

BEPRZAEEL EXTE

20231 H1H
January 1, 2023
20231 A1H
January 1, 2023

fed AR HEETE 588 Il A2 2 B B

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an investor No mandatory effective

and its associate or joint venture

AEBEEFAZSEERREAEAEME
HERNZE - BB AL - AEERAR
MZFERT TRAIRE R A IS HMREKE

2,480
-2 -

date yet determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.



246 EBERERGERAR
Huitongda Network Co., Ltd.

PO & B A 22

Four-Year Financial Summary

meaBAmkEtEmRERTE

HE12A31BILEE

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31

HZ12A31ALLEE
Year ended December 31,

Summarized Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

20214 20204 20194 20184

2021 2020 2019 2018

ARETRE ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

WA Revenue 65,763,174 49,629,135 43,633,230 29,801,661

EF Gross profit 1,867,966 1,344,511 1,279,088 1,006,984

ReEFE Profit from operations 638,689 406,759 334,205 207,085

BRBATEE Loss before taxation (76,115) (198,521) (246,532) (193,383)

FEREE Loss for the year (177,049) (279,992) (304,823) (275,613)
R AL Attributable to:

KRR ERRE Equity shareholders of the Company (349,881) (405,287) (415,333) (295,749)

IR R Non-controlling interests 172,832 125,295 110,510 20,136

FREEWZEHE Total comprehensive income for (177,049) (279,992) (304,823) (275,613)

the year
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Summarized Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended December 31

BZ128310EE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204 20194 20184

2021 2020 2019 2018

AR¥TR ARETr ARETR AREFTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

*RBEE Non-current assets 2,245,193 1,419,961 353,239 202,726
RBEE Current assets 23,352,818 20,275,370 18,789,578 15,316,758
nREBAE Current liabilities 27,231,058 23,643,195 20,475,210 16,725,383
¥REBEE Non-current liabilities 84,399 96,627 118,972 71,687
EAAE Total deficit (1,717,446)  (2,044,491)  (1,451,365)  (1,277,586)
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REBESTREARKR
BMBE—EZTEURFTE - B0 R0 ER
EBERMESREREETDNESRENCLEEES
NEMESFRK - 2021F12A31H » HFINESE
MR EBYWAARE?2966.98 8T © M20204F
12A31HAIRARKE4,316.0B& T °

TREJIGEREREBRME -

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We had historically met our working capital and other capital
requirements primarily through capital contributions from

Shareholders, cash generated from issuance of convertible
redeemable preferred shares and cash generated from our
operating activities. We had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB2,966,9 million as of December 31, 2021, compared to
RMB4,316.0 million as of December 31, 2020.

The following table sets forth a summary of consolidated cash flow

statement:
HBE12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,
20215 20204 20194 20184
2021 2020 2019 2018
REEEME(FA) Net cash generated from/(used in)
BEFE operating activities 815,009 472263 613,936 (539,622)
REEE (FiA),/ Fig Net cash (used in)/generated from
Re&FE investing activities (1,535,509) 2,138,383 (2,174,263) (940,884)
MEEE (A, g Net cash (used in)/generated from
BeFHE financing activities (628,557) 537,622 227,068 2,756,157
BeRBEEEMW(RP),/  Net (decrease)lincrease in cash and
BIFE cash equivalents (1,349,057) 3,148,268  (1,333,259) 1,275,651
FReRReEED Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 4,315,977 1,167,709 2,500,968 1,225,317
FREASRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 2,966,920 4,315,977 1,167,709 2,500,968
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